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LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "SEHK" or “Stock Exchange”)

(Stock Code: 01219)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND HEAD OFFICE
IN THE PEOPLE’'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
(“PRC"” OR “CHINA")

No. 165 Jiu Gan Road, Songjiang District, Shanghai, China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suite 1101, 11/F, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE
ir. tenwow.com.hk

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Jianhua (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Juewei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Hang Boris (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Longgen

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong

Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lam Hang Boris

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Lam Hang Boris
Ms. Au Lai Hang
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Mr. Wang Longgen

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong
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Mr. Wang Longgen (Chairman)
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Mr. Lin Jianhua (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Longgen

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Hang Seng Bank Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

22/F, Prince Building, Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR

Paul Hastings
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COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Guotai Junan Capital Limited

28/F Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BE+TZA=1T—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-MEF “E-=F —E——F —T-TF
2014 2013 2012 2010
AR¥TR ARETT ARETTL ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 5,084,012 4,724,888 4,252,081 3,790,323 3,785,853
HEMK Cost of sales (4,230,150) (3,988,435) (3,708,838) (3,328,699) (3,439,350)
E Gross profit 853,862 736,453 543,193 461,624 346,503
DA Distribution costs (211,439) (156,411) (121,635) (133,239) (96,236)
THAX Administrative expenses (143,046) (140,300) (93,815) (79,948) (69,032)
Hi\ — 58 Other income — net 19,469 23,139 9,550 10,016 26,628
HinEiE Other losses (2,314) (8,556) (2,817) (103) (14,438)
BERF Operating profit 516,532 454,325 334,476 258,350 193,425
BIEHA Finance income 20,931 8,871 7,655 6,274 6,272
BE TSR Finance costs (96,635) (91,334) (67,374) (48,017) (31,676)
BB A- B Finance costs — net (75,704) (82,463) (59,719) (41,743) (25,404)
NGyl Share of profit of associates 514 565 1,057 93 3
i —FIA 4 AREN  Share of profit of a joint venture 29,736 30,459 25,613 19,826 15,612
BRETEBATER Profit before income tax 471,078 402,886 301,427 236,526 183,630
FrEfEY Income tax expense (113,797) (105,501) (71,082) (62,610) (49,564)
FEERA Profit for the year 357,281 297,385 230,345 173916 134,066
Htt2EBA Other comprehensive income
Hitmeegns ltems that may be subsequently
B&MIEE reclassified to profit or loss
—INEHEERE — Currency translation differences (1,783) (11,927) (3,112 3,077 (4,988)
FREAMAEE Total comprehensive income
for the year 355,498 285,458 227,233 176,993 129,078
FERASER Total profit attributable to:
ARRERFEA Equity holders of the Company 345,335 286,304 220,758 157,242 121,997
ES U g Non-controlling interests 11,946 11,081 9,587 16,674 12,069
357,281 297,385 230,345 173916 134,066
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BEt-A=1t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
~¥-mE  ZF-=F  ZFf B—F% ZF-%F%

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
ARET T ARETTT ARETTT AREFT AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEWABER : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ARRERBEA Equity holders of the Company 343,552 274,377 217,646 160,319 117,009
JEEIRE s Non-controlling interests 11,946 11,081 9,587 16,674 12,069
355,498 285,458 227,233 176,993 129,078
RATERZEAEL  Earnings per share for
BRNERERN profit attributable to
equity holders of the
Company
—ERREEERAR —Basicand diluted earnings
(AERARES per share (expressed in
FI8R) RMB cents per share) 17 17 15 10 8
RE Dividends 103,601 242,891 114,240 = =
mEEEHRAR CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R+=A=1+—8
As at 31 December
—F-mE —F=F & —F——% ZFTF
2014 2013 2011 2010
AR¥T T ARETT BTt AREFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FREEERT Total non-current assets 1,343,851 1,024,842 963,873 922,447 771,852
REEERE Total current assets 4,221,023 3,854,820 2,369,781 1,908,479 1,751,678
BEE Total assets 5,564,874 4,879,662 3,333,654 2,830,926 2,523,530
ErREaEan Total non-current liabilities 95,366 125,391 139,833 145,707 93,231
REEEEE Total current liabilities 2,835,582 2,347,229 2,269,830 2,026,244 1,937,678
AELE Total liabilities 2,930,948 2,472,620 2,409,668 2,171,951 2,030,909
[ stk Total equity 2,633,926 2,407,042 923,986 658,975 492,621
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RIZ—mOF  PENKERERTETERSE
Wik BREERE(BRREERE]) NIZFE
RERBEET A% ERBEEDERBIRFEER
20% > FEIRMERBITENTRERBLES -
HEHEABANNET  AEEERHELEE
TOBIMERRRER EEEMESARE
HEEZTIENFT R URBEREREBHE
& TR migEE -

EAERNEBREIRE2BETINE AT  A5E
MEEBER_T—NFEEERBEARBS0ET -
EEARKES0840E8ET  IHFHEET6H - BE
MBI KEERIBSTRBERER - HF -
REERERE [ REXRE] EBBRBORERSD
BE RAZIARBSEEL BEFHEE
57.1% c R MZERIVERB LD BIEZZT —HF
HEHRENEZNNBNREBERNFET#
BUREER BESARBRIESE - F=FREM
FBREBHE - G B RABRB R AR F1E
R58%EIARKE24647TEETL TERALEE
THALRERLERE  HEEZHERNER R
REIMMABESHEBRENLE - —T—MFEARRQA]
R R ([ B3R ) FE (& F R F 45 11 20.6% = A A
R¥3453E58 T SREMNABARB 7S 2
FEDHENR 6345 -

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the “Directors”)
of Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
“Tenwow") and its subsidiaries (which are together referred to as
the “Group”), | would like to present the annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”).

In 2014, the PRC's economy and overall retail industry continued to
slow down. The growth rate of the country’s gross domestic product
("GDP") decelerated to 7.4% while the consumer price index merely
increased by 2.0%. The growth in demand for food and beverages
also tapered off. To cope with the intensifying competition in the
market, the Group adhered to its business philosophy of developing
and improving products as well as enriching the product portfolio to
satisfy consumers’ diverse wants and needs. It also consistently
enhanced the operation of all of its businesses and thus its brand

equity.

On the back of an effective management mechanism and the
diligence of all the staff, the Group'’s turnover rose by 7.6% to
RMB5.084 billion in 2014 which was a new high surpassing the RMB5
billion mark for the first time. The businesses of four product
categories under the Group’s own brand recorded varying degrees
of growth. In particular, sales of the flagship non-alcoholic beverages
in its proprietary “Tenwow Tea” series remained strong with revenue
surging by 57.1% to RMB671.8 million. It was also encouraging that
the Group’s businesses of own-brand food, snacks and alcoholic
beverages still recorded growth despite the shortened period of
sales in the accounting period of 2014 arising from the difference in
Chinese New Year dates and the government’s anti-corruption
campaign. The sales of alcoholic beverages accounted for the
majority of the business of distributing third-party brand products,
and grew by 5.8% to RMB2.4647 billion. The growth was mainly
attributable to the Group’s adjustment to product portfolio that
resulted in sales of more mid-range and low-priced products and
higher proportion of direct sales of alcoholic beverages in revenue.
Profit attributable to the Shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) rose by 20.6% to RMB345.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. Earnings per share were 17 RMB cents.
Total annual dividend per share was 6.34 HK cents.

6 KIEEF IR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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In the year under review, the Group achieved balanced development
in all aspects of its business. Its own-brand beverage business
succeeded in launching new products such as “Charcoal Roasted”
and “VitC VItE” series in addition to the “Fruit Tea” series. The Group
stepped up its efforts to market the Tetra Pak of the “Charcoal
Roasted” and “Fruit Tea” series for larger market share after its
Shanghai-based Tetra Pak production line commenced operation in
the second half of 2014. On the other hand, it acquired a quality
mineral water source in Zhejiang province for bottling natural mineral
water by itself. The Group’s food and snack business kept introducing
new products to the market, including “Nuts’ Manor” (" 82 EE") and
"Happiness in a Bottle” (“=1&)ii& ") to seize opportunities in different
segments. Its alcoholic beverage business succeeded in introducing
imported wines under the brands of “{R " and " 32" into its sales
channels. The business of its Gu He (“A#1") brand rice wine also made
significant progress. The Group’s proprietary “V Planet cocktail”
("VE2FEFH ") also hits the shelves in eastern China with satisfactory
preliminary sales performance. The Group's business of distributing
third-party brand products was also optimizing both the product
portfolio and sales channels such that mid-range and low-end
products became the staple of the product portfolio of third-party
brand alcoholic beverages.

The Chinese government aims at improving standard of living in the
country by trying to increase national income, accelerating
urbanization and narrowing the gap between the rural and urban
areas. China’s national per-capita income has been rising
consistently in the past several years, leading to an increasing
purchasing power and a change to the concept of consumption,
notably the higher demand for product quality. Such change of
consumer behaviour generates opportunities for the Group’s
development. The Group shall be able to build a strong foothold in
the domestic market by developing various quality and innovative
own-brand products that target at different consumer groups.

201443  Annual Report 2014 7
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In 2015, the Group will continue to increase its efforts to promote its
own-brand products and improve existing products with new
flavours and new packages. It will also endeavour to market new
products, namely “Jingongquan” (" & & & ") natural mineral water, "V
Planet” cocktail, “Mai Ke Ai" (" 25 8] & ") brand malted milk beverage,
"Happiness in a Bottle” and “Nuts’ Manor”, etc.. The Group will
enhance and extend its promotional efforts nationwide to boost
product sales, aiming for a larger and reinforced share in existing
markets and its first foray into the markets of more second-tier cities.
We look forward to mutually beneficial cooperation with more
distributors this year in making the Group’s own-brand non-alcoholic
beverages available in more sales channels all over the country.

The Group's two aseptic production filling lines, which are
respectively located in Chengdu and Putian, Fujian, will become
operational in 2015 as part of its move to improve the nationwide
layout of its production lines to support the development of its own-
brand non-alcoholic beverage business across the country. This will
enable the Group to produce the “Charcoal Roasted” series in-house
and ensure both the product quality and production capacity.
Furthermore, the Group is planning the construction of an industrial
park in Tianjin which will basically complete the whole nationwide
layout of its production lines, and will thus support its business
development in the next several years.

China's market for packaged food and snacks abounds in
opportunities, the Group will seize them by developing upgraded and
innovative products continuously, expanding both production
capacity and distribution network, and raising operational efficiency.
It will also enhance its research and development capability to satisfy
demand. All these measures are aimed at improving the Group’s
core competency and developing it into a top producer and
distributor of packaged food and beverages in the country.

DIVIDEND

Having considered the Company’s performance in 2014, its surplus,
financial situation and capital expenditures, the Board will propose
distributing a final dividend of 4.06 HK cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2014 at the annual general meeting (“AGM”) to
be held on 18 May 2015. The proposed final dividend and the paid
interim dividend of 2.28 HK cents per share will together bring the
total annual dividend to 6.34 HK cents per share, which will represent
a consistent payout ratio of 30%.

8 KIEEF IR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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APPRECIATION

Thanks to the support and hard work of all the parties, the Group
was able to achieve satisfactory performance in 2014 despite the
challenging operating environment of the retail market. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to the clients,
suppliers, business partners and Shareholders for their unwavering
support. I would also like to thank all the staff for their contributions
in the past year. The Group will continue to try its best to drive the
business growth consistently and bring good returns to its
Shareholders.

Lin Jianhua
Chairman
20 March 2015
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2014, complicated and volatile international and domestic
economic environment continued to hinder the development of
overall economy. According to statistics from the National Bureau of
Statistics of the PRC, gross domestic product of the PRC increased
by 7.4% year-on-year. This growth pace is the slowest in 24 years.
Meanwhile, the PRC’s consumer price index in 2014 went up by only
2.0% year-on-year, specifically, prices of food rose by 3.1% while
prices for tobacco, liquor and related articles decreased by 0.6%
year-on-year. These figures demonstrated a weakening retail market
in China. In addition, the PRC's food and beverage market was
affected by certain factors during the year. Non-alcoholic beverages
market was affected by abnormal weather, while high-end alcoholic
market was still affected by the PRC government’s ongoing anti-
corruption campaign.

Despite the challenging environment, the packaged food market in
China is still full of opportunities. As China’s urbanization accelerates,
household income increases and living standard improves, people
are seeking for food with better taste and higher quality, lifting the
industry to a new level. Retail price is no longer the major factor for
capturing market share as a growing number of consumers are now
paying more attention to taste and quality, generating a shortfall in
supply on the market. Tenwow, as a leading mid-to-high range
packaged food player in China, is rapidly expanding its nationwide
business presence. The Group focuses on product quality and has
successfully developed a number of unique products. The Group is
satisfying consumers’ demand for high-quality products and is
poised to capture a greater market share.

10 KEFBIZAE AR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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Discussion and

ysis

REVIEW OF 2014

The Group's revenue increased by 7.6% from RMB4,724.9 million in
2013 to RMB5,084.0 million in 2014. The Group’s own brand non-
alcoholic beverages continued to be a key driver, with revenue
increased significantly by 57.1% year-on-year to RMB671.8 million in
2014. Although the alcoholic market was affected by anti-corruption
campaign, the Group’s third-party brand alcoholic beverages
maintained a healthy growth. Thanks to optimization of product
portfolios and sales channels, revenue of third-party brand alcoholic
beverages increased by 5.8% year-on-year to RMB2,464.7 million in
2014, offsetting the 13.7% year-on-year decrease in revenue from
the third-party brand food and snacks business, which recorded a
revenue of RMB716.7 million in 2014.

Driven by increasing contribution from own brand products which
have higher margins, gross profit of the Group increased by 15.9%
from RMB736.5 million in 2013 to RMB853.9 million in 2014. Gross
profit margin of the Group continued to improve, rising by 1.2
percentage points from 15.6% in 2013 to 16.8% in 2014.

The Group has put specific focus on the development of own brand
products which are increasingly important to its business. Own
brand products accounted for 33.5% of its revenue, while third-party
brand products accounted for 66.5% of its revenue in 2014. As gross
profit margins of own brand products were higher, own brand
products accounted for 57.2% of its gross profit while third-party
brand products accounted for 42.8% of its gross profit in 2014.

Profit attributable to Shareholders increased by 20.6% from
RMB286.3 million in 2013 to RMB345.3 million in 2014.

REVENUE

The Group produces and distributes a wide range of own brand
products and many well-known international and domestic third-
party brands of food and snacks, non-alcoholic beverages, alcoholic
beverages, and several other fast moving consumer goods in the
PRC. The Group’s own brand products and third-party brand
products are mutually complementary.

20144 %% o AnnualReport2014 11
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The Group’s revenue for 2014 was RMB5,084.0 million. Driven by
strong growth in own brand non-alcoholic beverages, revenue of
own brand products increased by 19.4% year-on-year to RMB1,703.0
million in 2014, representing 33.5% of the Group’s total revenue.
Revenue of third-party brands increased slightly by 2.5% year-on-
year to RMB3,381.0 million in 2014, representing 66.5% of the
Group's total revenue.

The table below sets forth the Group's revenue contribution by
product segments and main product categories for the years ended
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013:

BEt+t-HA=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-lmF —E—=
2014 2013
AR¥ TR ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEREER own brand products
By s Non-alcoholic beverages 671,774 13.2% 427,562 9.0%
SEREE R Alcoholic beverages 249,866 4.9% 238,217 5.0%
EmkER Food and snacks 724,861 14.3% 709,978 15.1%
Hph o Others® 56,509 1.1% 50,990 1.1%
1,703,010 33.5% 1,426,747 30.2%
E=FmEER Third-party brand products
BB SRR Non-alcoholic beverages 58,044 1.1% 57,427 1.2%
SEASEUE Alcoholic beverages 2,464,681 48.5% 2,328,926 49.3%
BEmkER Food and snhacks 716,660 14.1% 830,461 17.6%
Hip@ Others® 141,617 2.8% 81,327 1.7%
3,381,002 66.5% 3,298,141 69.8%
“et Total 5,084,012 100.0% 4,724,888 100.0%
B3 - Notes:
(1) HAFZaE IR AR RBEMH - Q) Primarily includes “Chuan Xiang" Chinese seasonings and packaging materials.

2 HEPEXEeFERtRM-

2) Primarily includes household care products.
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GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The Group's gross profit increased by 15.9% from RMB736.5 million
in 2013 to RMB853.9 million in 2014. Overall gross profit margin
further improved from 15.6% in 2013 to 16.8% in 2014. This was
primarily due to the Group’s dedication to own brand products which
have higher profit margins, and improve gross profit margin of its
product portfolio. The Group did not make any significant price
adjustment to its major products during the year.

The table below sets forth the Group’s gross profit, contribution and
margin by product segments and main product categories for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013:

BZE+-A=t-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-MF
2014
EF EH
Gross {194 ER= Gross EF=
profit Contribution Margin profit — Contribution Margin
AR¥ET ARETT
RMB'000 % % RMB'000 %
BERBER own brand products

R Non-alcoholic beverages 183,030 21.4% 27.2% 105,497 14.3% 24.7%
BB Alcoholic beverages 86,380 10.1% 34.6% 55,350 7.5% 23.2%
EmLER Food and snacks 206,210 24.2% 28.4% 226,802 30.8% 31.9%
Hit Others 13,182 1.5% 23.3% 11,482 1.6% 22.5%
488,802 57.2% 28.7% 399,131 54.2% 28.0%

FZIREER Third-party brand products
EERESE Non-alcoholic beverages 2,807 0.3% 4.8% 4,288 0.6% 7.5%
Mibf Alcoholic beverages 307,206 36.0% 12.5% 277,265 37.6% 11.9%
ERKER Food and shacks 46,850 5.5% 6.5% 50,558 6.9% 6.1%
Hity Others 8,197 1.0% 5.8% 5211 0.7% 6.4%
365,060 42.8% 10.8% 337,322 45.8% 10.2%
@st Total 853,862 100.0% 16.8% 736,453 100.0% 15.6%
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OWN BRAND PRODUCTS BUSINESS

The Group’s own brand products’ revenue increased by 19.4% from
RMB1,426.7 million in 2013 to RMB1,703.0 million in 2014, mainly due
to sales growth of all of the four own brand product categories in
2014.

The Group’s own brand products’ costs of sales increased by 18.2%
from RMB1,027.6 million in 2013 to RMB1,214.2 million in 2014.

The Group's own brand products’ gross profit increased by 22.5%
from RMB399.1 million in 2013 to RMB488.8 million in 2014, while
gross profit margin rose from 28.0% in 2013 to 28.7% in 2014. These
were due to the increased gross profit margins for both alcoholic
and non-alcoholic beverages, offsetting by the drops in gross profit
margin of food and snacks. Own brand products contributed to
57.2% of overall gross profit in 2014 (2013: 54.2%).

— Non-alcoholic Beverages
The own brand non-alcoholic beverages mainly comprise “Fruit
Tea”, “Charcoal Roasted”, “VitC VitE” juice drinks, iced tea
series, bottled water series, as well as other ready-to-drink

beverages.

The own brand non-alcoholic beverages’ revenue rose by
57.1% from RMB427.6 million in 2013 to RMB671.8 million in
2014. The Group maintained rapid growth despite the
slowdown in overall retail market and a relatively cool and
rainy summer in the PRC. This was primarily attributable to the
“Charcoal Roasted” series which were well received by the
market, and the "VitC VitE" juice drinks which achieved sales
increase after a series of marketing campaigns. The "VitC VitE”
series’ newly launched mango flavor and kiwi fruit flavor also
gained consumers’ recognition quickly. The “Fruit Tea” series
also saw strong demand and achieved sales boost in the
second half of 2014, following relevant marketing campaigns
endorsed by Mr. Lee Min Ho, a world-renowned celebrity.
Meanwhile, the Group further strengthened its distribution
network of non-alcoholic beverages in developed regions and
actively expanded into other regions with high growth
potential. In addition to the developed markets in eastern and
central China, the Group’s sales network now covers all
provincial capitals throughout the country. This laid the solid
foundations for the future growth of its non-alcoholic
beverages business.

14 KIEEF IR AR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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The gross profit of own brand non-alcoholic beverages
increased significantly by 73.5% from RMB105.5 million in 2013
to RMB183.0 million in 2014, while gross profit margin rose
from 24.7% in 2013 to 27.2% in 2014. The increases in both
gross profit and gross profit margin were primarily due to the
outstanding sales growth resulting in an increase in production
volume, leading to a dilution of fixed costs and decrease in
average unit cost of sales. Furthermore, the decrease in major
raw material prices, such as PET, also helped improve the
gross profit margin. Own brand non-alcoholic beverage
products contributed to 21.4% of the Group’s overall gross
profit in 2014 (2013: 14.3%).

Food and Snacks

The own brand food and snacks mainly include products sold
under the Group's flagship Tenwow brand (such as roasted
nuts and seeds, gift boxes, preserved fruits and meat snacks)
and other own brands (such as instant oatmeal series
under “Morning Smile” (-2 %8) brand and snacks sold under
“Happiness in a bottle” (24838 ) brand, etc.).

16

KIEEE IR ABR AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited



BEmERmMR E’]WJ\EE—f__EE']
AE%710.0E§%$§W£%21% | =
—UENARE72498 8T J(J“bfl]fcﬁﬁaz
R ARIFIER - BRSBATH® - HHEHT
WEMEENIMHBRAER - BEBATK
TEXRI T -NFEFEHEHEMIHERNE
WEE UREEEDBHTREKERE
TE-NEEHFEAHERRERE R
BE|NRKERINEFARSHENHE
BR FARREFREIRETE]NBE
RINERERZBRMATERBRIFRIFN
ERBY -

BEMERMEERNENH-_ZE—=F8
ARB268BFE T T 1%E =T —MMF
WARB2062BET  ENEHR-_ZT—=
FH319% THE - —HFER284% * £
ZHRALEREIMAHIE LA [
W X BI040 R EHE A = (I &5 r
FAORMBHKIE) 2 -

RIE+

Management Discussion and Analysis |

The own brand food and snacks’ revenue slightly increased by
2.1% from RMB710.0 million in 2013 to RMB724.9 million in
2014. The revenue growth in both roasted nuts and seeds and
preserved fruits was partially offset by the decline in sales of
gift boxes. The declining sales of gift boxes were primarily due
to the sluggish growth of the overall market during the Chinese
New Year in 2014, and the shortened period of sales in the
accounting period of 2014 arising from the difference in
Chinese New Year dates. “Morning Smile” instant oatmeal
series achieved satisfactory sales growth, while Tenwow's sub-
brand “Tenwow Idea” series’ small-packing products continued
to gain momentum through the Group's retail sales channels.

The own brand food and snacks’ gross profit decreased by
9.1% from RMB226.8 million in 2013 to RMB206.2 million in
2014, while gross profit margin decreased from 31.9% in 2013
t0 28.4% in 2014. This was primarily due to increasing average
salary of production line workers, and rising costs of certain
raw materials (such as pistachios and almonds for roasted
seeds and nuts).

HHFREK
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Alcoholic Beverages

The own brand alcoholic beverages include imported bottled
wine from ltaly, France and Chile marketed under the Group’s
own brands, and Chinese rice wine which the Group brew
inhouse. These products target middle to low-end mass
markets and are less susceptible to the government'’s anti-
corruption campaign.

The own brand alcoholic beverages’ revenue of the Group
increased by 4.9% from RMB238.2 million in 2013 to RMB249.9
million in 2014, mainly attributable to the sales contribution
driven by the Group’s new mid-range “Hao Zi Ran” ("t & #R")
series, a sub-brand of “Gu He" Chinese rice wine. This mid-
range Chinese rice wine was well received by consumers in
eastern China. Sales of wine sold under the brands of “{R "
and “FE32 " also contributed to the revenue growth.
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The own brand alcoholic beverages' gross profit increased by
56.0% from RMB55.4 million in 2013 to RMB86.4 million in 2014.
Gross profit margin rose significantly from 23.2% in 2013 to
34.6% in 2014. This was primarily attributable to the Group'’s
ongoing efforts in increasing sales contribution through direct
sales channels, including on-premise channels, modern
channels and wine cellars. Since the unit prices of the products
being sold through direct sales channels are higher than those
through distributors, revenue and gross profit margin both
recorded improvements. The drop in the exchange rate of Euro
also helped to reduce the Group's purchasing cost and
improve its margins.

Others
Other own brand products include “Chuan Xiang” brand
sauces and flavorings, and packaging materials.

The revenue of other own brand products increased by 10.8%
from RMB51.0 million in 2013 to RMB56.5 million in 2014,
mainly due to sales increase in both “Chuan Xiang” and raw
materials. Gross profit increased by 14.8% from RMB11.5
million in 2013 to RMB13.2 million in 2014, while gross profit
margin increased from 22.5% in 2013 t0 23.3% in 2014.
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THIRD-PARTY BRAND PRODUCTS BUSINESS

The Group's third-party brand products’ revenue increased by 2.5%
from RMB3,298.1 million in 2013 to RMB3,381.0 million in 2014. This
was primarily due to increase in revenue from third-party brand
alcoholic beverages, non-alcoholic beverages and other products
(mainly household care products), which was partially offset by the
decrease in revenue from third-party food and snacks.

Cost of sales of third-party brand products, which consists mainly of
the purchase cost from brand owners, increased by 1.9% from
RMB2,960.8 million in 2013 to RMB3,015.9 million in 2014. This is in
line with the revenue growth of third-party brand products.

The third-party brand products’ gross profit increased by 8.2% from
RMB337.3 million in 2013 to RMB365.1 million in 2014, with gross
profit margin slightly rose from 10.2% in 2013 to 10.8% in 2014. These
were attributable to the optimization of both product portfolio and
sales channels, which helped to enhance gross profit margin.

— Alcoholic Beverages
The third-party brand alcoholic beverage products include
sprits, wine, Chinese wine and beer. The Group acts as a
distributor for a wide range of international and domestic
brands, including Martell, Hennessy, Remy Martin, Carlo Ross,
Imperial Court and Maotai, etc..

The third-party brand alcoholic beverages’ revenue rose by
5.8% from RMB2,328.9 million in 2013 to RMB2,464.7 million in
2014. Third-party alcoholic beverages' gross profit increased by
10.8% from RMB277.3 million in 2013 to RMB307.2 million in
2014, while gross profit margin further improved from 11.9% in
201310 12.5% in 2014.
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Discussion and

lysis

The growth in third-party brand alcoholic beverages was a
result of the Group’s ongoing optimization of its product
portfolio and sales channels. During the year, the Group
focused on distributing middle to low-end wine and beer.
These mid-range to low-end products are less susceptible to
the PRC government'’s anti-corruption campaign, offsetting the
sluggish sales of high-end alcoholic beverages. For Maotai, as
its price decrease and cost-effective ratio improves, its retail
sales was picking up. The Group sold alcoholic beverages
through its direct sales channels. Since unit prices of products
being sold through direct sales channels are higher than those
through distribution channels, revenue and gross profit margin
both recorded improvements. The Group kept flexibly adjusting
its operating strategies. Therefore it is able to stand out as well
as maintain stable growth in a challenging environment.

Food and Snacks

The third-party brand food and snacks mainly include, amongst
others, Nestle, Dove, Wrigley, Glico, Kraft and Heinz. Revenue
from the third-party brand food and snacks declined by 13.7%
from RMB830.5 million in 2013 to RMB716.7 million in 2014,
primarily because certain regional sales companies of the
Group were shifting their business focus to own brand
products which have higher profit margins, and some sales
points and distributors purchased fewer food and snacks
during the year as certain brand owners significantly reduced
their marketing efforts in light of weakening market demand.

The third-party food and snacks’ gross profit decreased by
7.3% from RMB50.6 million in 2013 to RMB46.9 miillion in 2014,
while gross profit margin slightly increased from 6.1% in 2013
t0 6.5% in 2014. The decline of gross profit was a result of the
weak sales performance. The increase in gross profit margin
was attributable to the Group’s ongoing optimization of product
portfolio.

Non-alcoholic Beverages

The third-party brand non-alcoholic beverages include,
amongst others, Saratoga spring water and Red Bull energy
drinks.
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The third-party brand non-alcoholic beverages' revenue
increased from RMB57.4 million in 2013 to RMB58.0 million in
2014. Gross profit decreased from RMB4.3 million in 2013 to
RMB2.8 million in 2014, while gross profit margin decreased
from 7.5% in 2013 to 4.8% in 2014. The increase in revenue
was attributable to the additional contribution from the newly
established sales company in Taiyuan. The decreases in both
gross profit and gross profit margin were attributable to free
gift promotion in the second half of the year. Free gift
promotion boosted sales but affected overall gross profit
margin.

— Others

Other third-party brand category includes Unilever household
care products. Others category’s revenue increased from
RMB81.3 million in 2013 to RMB141.6 million in 2014. This was
primarily due to sales increase of household care products,
which successfully penetrated into the Group’s sales channel,
as well as sales contribution from a new third-party household
care brand in the second half of 2014.

The third-party other products’ gross profit significantly
increased from RMB5.2 million in 2013 to RMB8.2 million in
2014. The increase was driven by the sales growth. Gross profit
margin slightly dropped from 6.4% in 2013 to 5.8% in 2014.

REVENUE BY RETAIL CHANNELS

The Group distributed its products through direct sales which include
four main sales channels, and distributors which comprise Nanpu
Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (R AR am (& E) AR A 7]) (‘'Nanpu”) and
third-party distributors.

KIEBIBRIERAR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited



TREVAREBRBE-_ZE—NFERZ The table below sets forth the Group's revenue contribution by retail
T A=+ —HIEFERTSERBEED E’GH&U\E channels for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
Bt 2013:

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—F-lF —T=4F
2014 2013
ARET T ARBFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
HiERE Direct channels
BigrRiE ™ On premise channelst® 778,000 15.3% 560,321 11.9%
HRERF Modern retail channels? 772,324 15.2% 950,881 20.1%
TMIREEO Small business channels® 582,234 11.5% 624,084 13.2%
HuRigw Others channels® 104,267 2.0% 89,973 1.9%
NEE Sub-total 2,236,825 44.0% 2,225,259 47 1%
Bak-L5 Distributors
Bk Nanpu® 1,378,799 27 1% 1,393,631 29.5%
=N EN Third-party distributors 1,468,388 28.9% 1,105,998 23.4%
N Sub-total 2,847,187 56.0% 2,499,629 52.9%
st Total 5,084,012 100.0% 4,724,888 100.0%
BisE Notes:

(1) BEREABRMNERIBHERNEHERE BERKER (1) Includes chain restaurants, hotels, and leisure and entertainment locations that

IREEIZFT © supply products in cafeterias.
) BIEEHAEY  EHBTRERE - ) Includes chain hypermarkets, chain supermarkets and chain convenience stores.
(B BEHBPLRERTERE- (3)  Includes wholesale centers and various retail stores.
(4 FE2AEERAEE - (4) Primarily includes group purchase and online sales.
() M KEHME AT o (5)  Nanpu and its associates.
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REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHIC LOCATIONS

The table below sets forth the Group’s revenue contribution by sales
in different geographic locations for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013:

BEt+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-IF
2014
ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ER MR Eastern China 2,739,669 53.9% 2,852,070 60.4%
& Central China 1,482,712 29.2% 1,443,743 30.6%
HEE M & Southern China 541,573 10.7% 375,587 7.9%
AL R Northern China 153,856 3.0% 29,360 0.6%
P & Western China 166,202 3.2% 24,128 0.5%
st Total 5,084,012 100.0% 4,724,888 100.0%
o 88 B A DISTRIBUTION COSTS

DHEKATERFESEEEREENTE KB
BEREERAY ZRREBES - A5ENS
HRABH-_ZE—=FHWARMK 15645 E T L
B2%H T —MFEMARE21MABET * D
A AEERALERBIZN(ZTE—=F:
33%) * DEAAEAEZRHANREMBERER G
EMELEIIETBER  UBESRERER
= BR - HEABHBEINAREEEHT
BEAFETIEEALA S HERESEZN
EMtbEREREREHER LA -

Distribution costs primarily include wages and benefits, advertising
and promotion expenses, travel and transportation expenses
associated with distribution activities. The Group’s distribution costs
increased by 35.2% from RMB156.4 million in 2013 to RMB211.4
million in 2014. Distribution costs accounted for 4.2% of the Group’s
revenue (2013: 3.3%). The increase in distribution costs was primarily
due to increases in advertising and promotion expenses as the
Group expands its own brand non-alcoholic beverages. Moreover,
increase in labour cost was due to growing number of employees
and rising overall average wage, while increase in travel and
transportation expenses was due to an expanding sales network.
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Discussion and

lysis

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses consist primarily of wages and benefits for
management and administrative staff, and depreciation expenses
associated with property, facilities and equipment for administrative
purposes. The Group’s administrative expenses slightly increased by
1.9% from RMB140.3 million in 2013 to RMB143.0 million in 2014.
Administrative expenses accounted for 2.8% of the Group’s revenue
(2013: 3.0%). Increase in administrative expenses was primarily due
to increase in wages and benefits as a result of growing number of
employees and overall average wage.

OTHER INCOME

The Group's other income amounted to RMB19.5 million in 2014
(2013: RMB23.1 million). Other income consists of government grants
and rental income. Government grants were received from certain
municipal governments as an encouragement to the Group’s
contributions to the development of local economies in these
municipalities.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's financial costs include bank loan interest and handling
charges. Financial costs rose from RMB91.3 million in 2013 to
RMB96.6 million in 2014. This was primarily due to an increase in the
amount of borrowings to meet working capital needs of the Group.
Net finance costs reduced from RMB82.5 million in 2013 to RMB75.7
million in 2014. This was primarily due to increase in the amount of
finance income.

SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINT VENTURE

The Group’s share of profit of Nanpu decreased by 2.6% from
RMB30.5 million in 2013 to RMB29.7 million in 2014. Nanpu’s increase
in revenue and decrease in profit was mainly attributable to its
increases in distribution costs and finance costs in 2014.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company increased by
20.6% from RMB286.3 million in 2013 to RMB345.3 million in 2014.
Earnings per share amounted to RMB17 cents in 2014.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group's funds and capital required for operations are primarily
sourced from internal resources and loans provided by the Group’s
principal banks.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank deposits and cash in
the amount of RMB1,161.4 million (2013: RMB1,195.8 million).
Renminbi accounted for 79.5% of the Group’s cash.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total borrowings in the
amount of RMB1,570.1 million (2013: RMB1,318.8 million). Over 97.1%
of these borrowings were for terms of less than 1 year. The majority
of the Group's borrowings were in Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar.
The Group’s borrowings were either obtained at fixed interest rates
or variable interest rates.

The net borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2014 (total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash) was
RMBA408.7 million (2013: RMB123.0 million), representing an increase
of RMB285.7 million as compared to same period in previous year.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014 was 13.4% (2013:
4.9%). The Group has sufficient cash and bank lines of credit that can
meet future operation needs. Management is also prepared to make
careful arrangements and decisions based on changes in domestic
and international financial environments.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 17 September 2013 with net proceeds from the
global offering of approximately HK$1,714.2 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). According to the
intended usage as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and
Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 5
September 2013 (the “Prospectus”), the amount utilized as at 31
December 2014 was as follows:
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Net Proceeds (HK$ million)
B AEA EBA REH
Percentage Available Utilised Unutilised

BREBEERBNES  Expansion of production capacity

REBETEELE at the existing facilities and
construction of new production
facilities 45% 7714 287.4 484.0
ZERBEREEDHEBE  Strengthening and expanding
REEFHE existing distribution network
and expanding into new regions 25% 428.6 4277 09
e mEEMRR Research and development,
RIEZE R ERA such as purchasing research
HEAR equipment and hiring qualified
research and development
personnel 4% 68.6 14.5 54.1
EHLEREE Marketing and promotion activities 10% 1714 120.3 511
HERTEDERE Refinance existing bank loans 6% 102.8 102.8 0
REESREM—RK Working capital and other
rERR general corporate purposes 10% 1714 1714 0
100% 17142 11241 590.1

AR B TS RO B A IR AR
BAZFTEO A -

BRI REREH

—T-mE - ARENEAFAIXERERARKE
BMBLABETL(ZT—=F: ARB91BET) -
TEEREERH  LEMRILRIRIEAER
AR BWBRABRKEERERAZ BE_T
—OFE+ A=+ BAKEERE T AR
BARAGER/AREIIATABET °

The Company has no intention to use the remaining proceeds
contrary to the description as stated in the Prospectus.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

In 2014, the Group had capital expenditures and investments of
RMB343.6 million (2013: RMB79.1 million). This primarily included
expenditures for new production facilities in Shanghai, Putian and
Wuhan and acquisition of natural mineral production plant in
Zhejiang. The Group’s capital commitments relating to land and
equipment was RMB374.7 million as at 31 December 2014.
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
The following table sets forth the Group’s key financial ratios for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013:

BE+t-A=+—-RLEFE
Year ended 31 December

—E-mEF =%

2014 2013

EHE Gross profit margin 16.8% 15.6%

S Ve S Operating profit margin 10.2% 9.6%

RNATIRERS A AEMSFIEZ=  Margin of profit attributable to equity holders

of the Company 6.8% 6.1%

TENLL X Current Ratio 1.49 1.64

RB)LL Quick Ratio 1.24 133

BRAEEE Gearing Ratio 13.4% 4.9%
KREBFERE CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

BE-_T-WE+-A=+—BILFE +4H
WEEBRSRAFERARK25AEL(=
TR FEGEEDRSRLFE: ARE
USCHBTL) - MEEFHRLMMEEEMMNA
S 8 R PR BT AR B 1 R P TR E
B 1 R K =

FE BEZERRFERESEMNRE
TREFI TAEER - T NFR-F—=F
oA+ AMEERESHE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s net cash inflow
from operating activities amounted to RMB302.5 million (net cash
outflow from operating activities for 2013: RMB345.6 million). Such
improvement in cash flow was primarily attributable to the Group’s
efforts in strict control over inventory and successfully obtaining
better payment terms from suppliers.

INVENTORY, TRADE RECEIVABLE AND TRADE
PAYABLE

The following table sets forth the inventories and trade information
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013:

BE+-A=+—RHLEE
Year ended 31 December

—2-mFE =ZT—=

2014 2013
FEAREBTT) Inventory (RMB'000) 707,881 742,163
FERAERH(X) Inventory turnover days (days) 62 62
B RWRER (ARETIT) Trade receivable (RMB'000) 1,977,038 1,612,452
B oW EE RS (X)  Trade receivable turnover days (days) 127 107
EHEMZTBE(ARETIT)  Trade payable (RMB'000) 976,788 841,026
B S ERZIEFEXRE(X)  Trade payable turnover days (days) 77 86
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Discussion and

lysis

Inventory

The Group’s inventory primarily includes finished products, followed
by raw materials and packaging materials, as well as in-process
products.

Inventory dropped from RMB742.2 million as at 31 December 2013 to
RMB707.9 million as at 31 December 2014. Inventory turnover days
were maintained at 62 days.

The decline in inventory was mainly attributable to the
implementation of an effective inventory control system that
required close co-ordination among the Group's sales, marketing,
raw material procurement, and production and storage departments.
This enabled the Group to accurately project safety stock level and
speed up its inventory turnover.

Trade Receivable
The Group's trade receivable refers to the Group’s accounts
receivable balance from its customers.

Trade receivable increased from RMB1,612.4 million as at 31
December 2013 to RMB1,977.0 million as at 31 December 2014.
Trade receivable turnover increased from 107 days in 2013 to 127
days in 2014.

The increases in both trade receivable and trade receivable turnover
days were primarily due to the fact that some high-quality customers
in modern retail channels delayed payments as a result of the
retailing environment, and newly established sales companies in
Taiyuan, Tianjin and Chengdu expanded into new markets through
modern retail channels which usually have longer trade receivable
turnover days. Furthermore, as the Group adjusted its product
portfolio of alcoholic beverages by reducing the sales of high-end
alcoholic beverages with higher selling prices and shorter turnover
days, average turnover days of trade receivables were affected to a
certain extent.

The Group made proactive efforts in monitoring the credit terms of
its distributors and customers and follow up with regular review of
the progress of the collection of receivables. The Group is gradually
optimizing the sales channel mix in light of current market conditions
to improve the turnover days of trade receivables. As at 10 March
2015, the Group has received RMB990.8 million of the trade
receivable as of 31 December 2014.
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Trade Payable

The Group's trade payable primarily includes payment due to
suppliers of third-party brand products, raw materials and
outsourced products.

Trade payable increased from RMB841.0 million as at 31 December
2013 to RMB976.8 million as at 31 December 2014. Trade payable
turnover decreased from 86 days to 77 days.

The increase in trade payable was primarily due to the Group's
business growth, which led to expanded scale of procurement.
Taking into account status of trade receivables, the Group
successfully obtained better payment terms from some suppliers in
order to ensure greater flexibility in cash flow management.

The trade payable turnover days decreased primarily because the
Group paid on cash on-delivery, or prepaid to certain suppliers in
order to secure better pricing and stable supply of products.

PROSPECTS

The year of 2015 will be full of challenges and opportunities. The PRC
government continues to forge ahead with reform and has shifted
the focus of economic development from quantity in the past to
quality now. As the reform goes on, every industry will inevitably
continue to feel the pains during the reform period. It is expected
that the PRC government will use a variety of timely and flexible
monetary policies to regulate the economy, ensuring steady progress
in the overall economic development at the new equilibrium. It will
also aim to safeguard people’s jobs, improve their income and
enhance their living standards.

The consumers begin to change their attitudes as their living
standards and purchasing power improve. Therefore, Chinese
packaged food companies need to be innovative, keep reforming its
operations and continue to improve the quality and flavors of their
products in order to cater to the changing consumer behavior.

FUTURE STRATEGIES

In order to capture the opportunity of the packaged food and
beverages market in the PRC, the Group will continue to leverage its
own competitive advantages to promote the development of the its
business. The followings are the key future strategies of the Group.
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Reinforce and Strengthen Existing Products

The Group expects its own brand products, especially non-alcoholic
beverages, to continue to maintain high growth. Meanwhile, Tenwow
will continue to promote other key products in order to achieve
greater market share.

Riding on the great market responses generated by the “Charcoal
Roasted Milk Tea” series, the Group introduced a new flavor of
“Charcoal Roasted Red Bean Milk Tea” in the first half of 2015.
Meanwhile, the “Charcoal Roasted Milk Tea” series also features a
new packaging with taller and streamlined bottle design which
makes it more eye-catching on the shelves. The Group will also
launch a brand new slim Tetra Pak package for the “Charcoal
Roasted Milk Tea” series, which leverages better printing process for
shiny metallic effects, in a bid to gain greater market share in the
modern channel. A new packaging has also been introduced for the
“Charcoal Roasted Coffee” series. Furthermore, the “VitC VitE” juice
drinks, which are very popular among younger consumers, achieved
encouraging sales performance under the effective marketing
strategies. In 2015, a brand new mango flavor and kiwi fruit flavor
have been introduced under the “VitC VitE" series, in conjunction
with promotional activities in the school campus nationwide. The
Group is confident that “VitC VitE” will continue to maintain its rapid
growth.

The Group will also facilitate the promotion of its own bottled water,
i.e. “Jingongquan” (& & &%) natural mineral water and “Tenwow
Natural Water”. Bottled water is one of the fastest growing categories
in the PRC beverage market. After acquiring the natural mineral
water source in the second half of 2014, the Group began producing
water independently instead of through original equipment
manufacturing. The Group is well positioned to substantially expand
its business of bottled water so as to seize the opportunity for
growth, by virtue of its advantages in several channels, especially
those in on premise channels and special channels such as night
clubs, bars, karaokes, hotels, airport lounges, schools, hospitals and
government agencies, etc.. Mr. Wu Xiubo, a renowned celebrity in
China, has been appointed as the Group's spokesman for
"Jingongquan”, a high-end natural mineral water for which a variety
of promotional activities are being prepared currently.
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For wine, the Group mainly purchases wine from Europe. Euro
exchange rate has been declining since 2014. As purchasing cost
reduced, the Group has more flexibility in pricing, rebates and
marketing activities. In order to boost sales in 2015, the Group
intends to conduct more diversified marketing activities, such as
redemption and group purchase, as well as explore new markets
such as wine for weddings and banquets, etc..

For food and snacks, the Group will continue to strive for bigger
market share. In addition to “Tenwow Idea” line, the Group
introduced “Nuts’ Manor”, a series of roasted products in new
packaging. The consumer market during festive seasons at the end
of 2014 has picked up, the Group is ready to capture the
opportunities and expects that gift box sales and group purchases
will achieve sales growth in 2015.
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Actively Explore New Product Categories

In addition to further consolidating existing own brand products, the
Group will also actively explore a variety of new product categories.
For alcoholic beverages, the Group successfully introduced “V Planet
cocktail” ("v 27&#)8 "), a low-alcohol content, fruit-flavored ready-
to-drink cocktail product targeting at young and high-spending
consumer groups. The cocktail was launched in selected market at
the end of 2014 and received positive initial market responses. The
Group enhanced the packaging and taste of “V Planet cocktail”
products in response to the market feedback. A variety of marketing
activities will be held in the first half of 2015, and “V Planet cocktail”
products will be distributed in the Group's direct sales channels and
modern sales channels.

For non-alcoholic beverages, the Group will introduce “Mike and Ike”
("ZR]E "), a brand new dairy beverage. This nutrition-rich beverage
is suitable for the general public who pursue health, especially the
younger consumer group. The Group will promote “Mike and Ike”
through existing modern channels and small business channels. The
promotion will also extend to new markets and venues targeting
parenting consumers. Market data shows that the growth in market
for milk or protein beverages remained strong in the past few years.
The Group expects that “Mike and Ike” can help the Group to develop
a greater variety of businesses in the field of non-alcoholic
beverages.
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For food and snacks, the Group will leverage on Tenwow's
advantages in Chinese New Year goods to launch own brand of
groceries and dried food. Besides, the Group introduced brand new
"Happiness in a Bottle” (“Z4&fk#&") handmade candy and snack
products. “Happiness in a Bottle” features beautiful packaging and it
is popular among young consumers, especially office ladies.
Depending on market feedback, the Group will timely adjust its
marketing strategy and product portfolio in order to maintain its
competitive advantages.

Strategic Expansion of Production Capacity

In order to meet the market demand for non-alcoholic beverages of
Tenwow brand and for the layout of national development, the
Group actively acquired production equipment and strategically
constructed industrial parks. In the second half of 2014, the first
Tetra Pak production line has commenced production in Shanghai,
and the second Tetra Pak production line in Shanghai is expected to
commence operation in the second half of 2015. The Group’s aseptic
production lines in Wuhan and Putian will also be successively
completed in the second half of 2015. With the new aseptic
production lines, the Group is able to produce a wide range of
beverages inhouse (including dairy products), and can adjust
production capacity flexibly according to demand, and enable the
Group to explore different beverage markets in the long run.

The Group currently has three industrial parks and three production
plants in operation. The industrial parks are strategically located in
Shanghai (covering eastern China), Wuhan (covering central China)
and Putian Fujian (covering southern China). The fourth industrial
park is being constructed in Chengdu. The first phase of Chengdu
Industrial Park (including hot-fill line, warehousing and logistics) will
commence operation in the second half of 2015, and will significantly
help the Group for further business expansion into southwestern
China. The Group also acquired a land parcel in Tianjin for the
construction of Tianjin Industrial Park to cover northern China, where
the Group sees strong demand for its beverages. The first phase of
Tianjin Industrial Park is expected to commence operation in 2017.

In addition, the Group has selected a high-quality water source in
Zhejiang Province as the production base for its natural mineral
water and spring water. In order to cope with business development,
the Group has kicked off expansion and new production equipment
is being added. The new equipment is expected to commence
operation in the first half of 2015.
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Keep Optimizing Distribution Network

In order to seize the opportunity arising from the increasing demand
for the Group’s products among end customers in the PRC, the
Group will expand its market coverage through further expansion of
the distribution network. The Group has established comprehensive
sales channels across the PRC and is capable of distributing its
Tenwow beverages nationwide. The Group is strengthening its
foothold in and expanding its share of the existing markets while
continuing to expand into secondary cities in order to tap the fast-
growing purchasing power there.

With consistent improvement of its sales channels, the Group plans
to distribute the highly-popular Tenwow non-alcoholic beverages by
itself after its agreement with Nanpu over the latter’'s exclusive rights
to distribute Tenwow's non-alcoholic beverages nationwide expires
at the end of 2015. The recovery of nationwide distribution rights will
help the Group to define each company’s business more clearly and
bring benefits to the investors.

The Group expanded its national channels through own brand non-
alcoholic beverages. When the channels become more
sophisticated, the Group will promote other categories of own brand
products in those channels under its control, with the aim of
achieving greater synergy. The small packaged snacks under
“Tenwow Idea” brand, “Happiness in a Bottle” packaged snacks, and
"V Planet” cocktail are targeting at these channels. It is expected that
penetration of the Group’s own brand products in retail outlets will
increase.

Regarding the online channel, the Group will continue to promote its
food and snack products online. Targeting at different consumers,
the Group introduced a variety of products, such as handmade
candy and snacks under “Happiness in a Bottle” line with packages
of refreshing and dainty design, etc.. The Group received a
satisfactory sales response for the small packaged snacks from
online sales channel. The Group will increase online promotion, such
as launching different sales promotional activities to gain more
publicity for its brand and boost sales, ultimately increasing the
revenue contribution from online sales.
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Keep Optimizing Product Portfolio

The Group has been closely monitoring consumer trends, and keeps
optimizing and adjusting its product portfolio to enhance overall
gross profit margin. With the unigue integrated business model that
produces and distributes its own-brand products and distributes a
variety of the third-party brand products, the Group not only enjoys
synergies and obvious cost advantages, but is also able to adjust
product portfolio flexibly, regardless of the condition of the economic
environment. The Group will continue to consolidate production and
distribution of its own brand products and third-party brand
products, as well as add and eliminate types of products
appropriately in order to strengthen its foothold in the increasingly
competitive market.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The majority of the Group’s transactions are settled in Renminbi,
which is not a free-floating currency. The fluctuation of Renminbi
during the year did not affect the Group’s performance. The Group
will periodically review its foreign currency risks.

As the Group is exposed to minimal exchange rate fluctuation risks,
the Group has not undertaken any hedging policy. However, the
Group will closely monitor and control its foreign currency risks and
consider hedging where appropriate.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group was still in the process
of renewing certificates for certain land use rights with net book
value amounting to RMB1.3 million and RMB1.2 million, respectively.
The Group might incur certain obligations in connection with such
application of land use rights certificates, while since the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, no
provision was made in the consolidated financial statements.
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ASSET PLEDGE

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had trade and bills receivables
of RMB95.7 million (2013: RMB89.8 million), and buildings and land
use rights with net book value of RMB268.5 million and RMB24.4
million, respectively (2013: RMB204.0 million and RMB19.2 million,
respectively) which were pledged for borrowings.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND STAFF REMUNERATION
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 3,001 employees
in the PRC and Hong Kong (31 December 2013: 2,751 employees).
The Group's employees are remunerated with reference to their
position, performance, experience and prevailing salary trends in the
market. The Group provides professional management training to
employees, and offers incentives and share options pursuant to the
Company'’s share option scheme based on employee performance
and the Group's profits.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, total employee benefit
expenses (including Directors’ remuneration) were RMB195.1 million
(2013: RMB142.9 million).
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The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors along
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Currently, the
Company, through its subsidiaries, associated companies and joint
venture company primarily produces and distributes its “Tenwow”
own brand products. It also distributes well-known third-party brand
products. Primary products include alcoholic beverages, food and
snhacks, non-alcoholic beverages, and other fast moving consumer
g00ds.

Segment analysis of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2014 is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The overall performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out on pages 102 and 103 in the consolidated
financial statements.

DIVIDEND

An interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2014 of
HK$2.28 cents per share in cash was paid to the Shareholders on
Wednesday, 17 September 2014, representing a total payment of
approximately HK$47.3 million.

The Board proposes to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$4.06 cents per share in cash to the Shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2014, representing a total payment of
approximately HK$84.2 million. The final dividend is subject to
approval by the Shareholders at the AGM to be held on Monday, 18
May 2015.

Upon Shareholders’” approval to be obtained at the AGM, the final
dividend will be payable on or around Tuesday, 9 June 2015 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Monday, 1 June 2015.

Details of the dividend are set out in Note 30 to the financial
statements.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 14 May 2015 to Monday, 18 May 2015, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitiement
to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and appropriate
transfer forms must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 13 May 2015.

In addition, in order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders
to receive the proposed final dividend (if approved), the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28 May 2015
to Monday, 1 June 2015, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to receive the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares
of the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
appropriate transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 May 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, and investment property for the year ended 31
December 2014 are set out in Note 6 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Notes 16 to 18 to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share premium,
other reserves and retained earnings. As at 31 December 2014, the
Company had distributable reserves of RMB1,796,001,000.
Movements in the Company’s reserves during the year is set out in
Notes 16 to 18 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
During the financial year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board was made up of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Jianhua (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Juewei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Hang Boris (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming

Ms. Au Lai Hang

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Longgen

Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong

Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The Company is satisfied that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent as defined under the Listing
Rules.
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In accordance with Article 108 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), Mr. Wang Longgen, Mr.
Liu Chang-Tzong and Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren shall retire from
their offices as independent non-executive Directors at the AGM to
be held on 18 May 2015. All of the above retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 76 to 84 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has
entered into a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration shall be determined based on
recommendations from the Remuneration Committee, while also
making reference to the complexity of the Director’s work, workload,
responsibilities, as well as the Company’s remuneration policies.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest-paid
individuals of the Group are set out in Note 25 to the financial
statements.
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(i) RAEDXTREDHES

BEENA
Name of Director

RSN

Nature of interest

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
"SFQ")), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of the Company

BREFE0.10EBTHEBR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
BAKRBE D

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

FrERAEE
Number of
shares held

MR R LB Ry s )
Lin Jianhua Interest of controlled corporation Mot 1,415,262,000 (L) 68.25%
RER EREAA
Lam Hang Boris Beneficial owner 2,030,000 (L) 0.10%
L— & (L) — Long position
B 5E Note:

MRESREREEHLEBRAR100%  MEHLES
R 7] BB AN A 7] 1,415,262,000 & i 15 © Bt » Aok
ERRARERDEARARIIFANAAT,415,262,000
RRAGIA R i o

Mr. Lin Jianhua owns Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited as to 100%, which in turn owns
1,415,262,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Lin is therefore deemed to be
interested in 1,415,262,000 shares of the Company held by zhi Qun Enterprises
Limited.
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(ii)
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EEHR

Name of Director

=R E

Au Lai Hang
MR

Lam Hang Boris
FIE

Wang Juewei

5 HIEH

Yeung Yue Ming

L—Fe

(ii)

EatE

Nature of interest

EnHEBA
Beneficial owner
EnlEa A
Beneficial owner
Em#EA A
Beneficial owner
EmHEBA
Beneficial owner

Interests in underlying shares of the Company

SREHEO0.10BTNERER
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

REBERQRER
BREGTERHNBRET
FrisERR 8B

Number of underlying
shares held pursuant to
share options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme

1,666,667 (L)

4,166,664 (L)

1,666,667 (L)

1,666,667 (L)

(L) — Long position

BRARERBE D
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

0.08%

0.20%

0.08%

0.08%
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(i) REH EZENES

46

EERAF
Name of Director

HEEEERE
Name of associated corporation

(iii) Interests in associated corporations

BABREDS L
KRB EE
RELHE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding/
investment
amount in
the associated
corporation

BERGNESHE
RRELH
Number of

securities
interested or
investment
amount

ERiHE
Nature of interest

MEE EHERERD ERAA TRRAR 3 (L)
Lin Jianhua ZhiQun Enterpnses Limited Beneficial owner 1share (L) 100%
Mz FEXRERREERRAA Fe B ARHE50,0007T (L)
Lin Jianhua Shanghai Tenwow Food Production Co., Ltd. Interest of spouse " RMBS50,000 (L) 5%
THE LERRERMBRAA ERBEA AR #130,0007T (1)
Wang Juewei Shanghai Mornflake Food Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner RMB130,000 (L) 1%
THE LR EREMBBRAT BREBA AR 875,0007C (L)
Wang Juewei Shanghai Dingshang Packing Material Co., Ltd.  Beneficial owner RMB875,000 (L) 3.5%
L—tFE (L) — Long position
B Note:

MEEEENREBRERREIN LERBERREEER
AEEA R (RESERARKS0,0007T) » MIMELE
WRRRZ AR P EAERD °

BMEXEEEN RZT—EOF+=A
=+—B  BEAZESFHIAQRESITHA
BATAE  BIEEEIANAHSTHRAE
RARRNHAEMEREE (EERBSHR
R GHIZE XV ED) BRI - MHEERGH 3k
BERBFPEBBRERS RAEGHEXVE
F7 R BIEE X BAM AR # R B LR R
b %&HH%'?{I*W'J%%Zflmfﬁrtrﬁﬂﬁi‘i‘uﬂ
it - SRBIEEFRIREEAMGERR
R E AR o

KIEBIBRIERAR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Ms. Yan Yuzhen, the spouse of Mr. Lin Jianhua, is interested in Shanghai Tenwow
Food Production Co., Ltd. as to an investment amount of RMB50,000, and Mr. Lin
is therefore deemed to be interested in the same.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, so far as
was known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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R-T—

RAEXFR G B ER

FERRER HH
Name of
substantial shareholder

EHPERRAR]
Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited

China FNB Investment Holdings
Limited Mot

Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, L.p. Mo

CAGP IV General Partner L.p. Mote)

CAGP IV, Ltd. Mo

TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings
SUb, |.p. (Note)

TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings,
|.P. (Note)

Carlyle Holdings Il L.p. Mot

Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C. Mot

The Carlyle Group L.P. et

LO—F2

Direct rs
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, so far as was known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, Shareholders (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company whose interests were
disclosed above) who had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which shall be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Interests in shares of the Company

EEMNE
Nature of interest

EmHEAA
Beneficial owner
ExnEEA
Beneficial owner

iR ErN oY
Interest of controlled corporation
REIEEE R S
Interest of controlled corporation
iR ErN el oL
Interest of controlled corporation
REIEEE R =
Interest of controlled corporation

REIEEE R S
Interest of controlled corporation

R A B RS
Interest of controlled corporation
REIEEE R =
Interest of controlled corporation
R A B RS
Interest of controlled corporation

(L) — Long position

BREEO0.10BTHERER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

FrERHBEE
Number of
shares held

1,415,262,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

116,178,000 (L)

REMAB D
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

68.25%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%

5.60%
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Note:

These shares are held by China FNB Investment Holdings Limited. The Carlyle Group L.P.
is deemed to be interested in these shares under the SFO by virtue of its 100% interest
in Carlyle Holdings Il GP L.L.C., which in turn owns 100% interest in Carlyle Holdings I
L.P., which in turn owns 100% interest in TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings, L.P.,
which in turn owns 100% interest in TC Group Cayman Investment Holdings Sub, L.P.,
which in turn owns 100% interest in CAGP IV, Ltd., which in turn owns 100% interest in
CAGP IV General Partner L.P., which in turn owns 100% interest in Carlyle Asia Growth
Partners IV, L.P., which in turn owns 90.83% interest in China FNB Investment Holdings
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Company has
not been notified by any person (other than the Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had any interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS'/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and in Note 34 to the financial statements, no
contract of significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules) in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of 2014, and there was no
contract of significance between the Company or a subsidiary of the
Company with the controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Set out below are interests of the Group’s Directors in a business
which competes or is likely to compete with the Group's business for
the purpose of Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules as at 31 December
2014:

REME EEME

Name of Director Name of company

MEBESLE 2R}
Mr. Lin Jianhua Nanpu

RZE—NF+ZA=+—0 BERLEESE
BREEZ)EMBRARRELERBAXEEGR
ANAI(MEHARARNEEE2ENBRR)®E
51% A% & B EgmigEER(RE)BRAR( £
WEEEE ) BE49% - BEUEAERRRNA
BRAAR -HEE TRREHEBAME - &
AREKMB AR T HER AN EENME AR

MEREMBAR —ERSHARBINERER
Lo MRELANEFTHHREEABESERER
REASE L - BESSH/\BEFANK
HhAZ(BREER)ALEREEBRME =
FHRE(RE)RAERATARLBREEXS
RABMERE - ERREE AR —RARS
BRB=0Z A EBENFSE ALLE - Bt
AEBEEES MR EE L BB EEGE -

Nature of business Nature of interest

PR B R R mREE D R
Packaged food and beverage
distributor in the PRC

5%
Directorship

As at 31 December 2014, Nanpu is owned by the Group as to 51%
through Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Tiansheng
Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. (/8 REE S B R A 7)), both of which are
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and by
Shanghai Tangjiu (Group) Co. Ltd. (b8 miEZEERER) AR A R)
(“Shanghai Tangjiu") as to 49%. Nanpu is accounted for as a joint
venture of the Company. Nanpu and its subsidiaries are not being
considered as subsidiaries of the Group from an operational,
management and accounting perspective.

Nanpu and its subsidiaries have been operating under separate and
independent management. The directorship of Mr. Lin Jianhua is for
the purpose of representing the Group's interest on the board level
of Nanpu. The board of directors of Nanpu consists of eight directors,
five of which (including the chairman) were appointed by Shanghai
Tangjiu and three of which were appointed by Tenwow (Fujian) Food
Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd.,
collectively. At the shareholders level, decisions in general require
approval from holders of more than two-thirds of the equity interests
in Nanpu. The Group does not therefore control Nanpu both at the
board and shareholders level.
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Nanpu is a packaged food and beverage distributor in China and
there is little competition between the distribution business of the
Company and Nanpu. Nanpu is one of the Group's distributors and
its distribution channels primarily focus on the eastern and northern
regions of China, which is complementary to the Group’s own
distribution channels. In specified areas or distribution channels,
mainly in East China (“Tenwow East China Channels”), Nanpu
uses the Group as a sub-distributor. The Tenwow East China
Channels are (i) Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang (Hangzhou), in respect of
on-premise channels or third party distributors and (ii) Zhejiang
(Ningbo), in respect of on-premise channels, modern retail channels
(supermarket chains and convenient stores), small business channels
and other channels, as well as third party distribution channels. In
other words, Nanpu's distribution channels in East China do not
conflict with the distribution channels of the Group in East China
because, as the Group built up its distribution capabilities for specific
regions or channels, the Group does not rely on Nanpu's distribution
capabilities in respect of those regions or channels. The Directors
believe that the Company is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arm’s length from Nanpu.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or any of their respective associates had any interests in
the businesses, apart from the Group’s businesses, which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

In order to protect the Group’s interests and its current business
activities, the controlling Shareholders of the Company, namely, Zhi
Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua, entered into a
non-competition deed on 31 August 2013 (the “Non-competition
Deed") in favour of the Company, under which Zhi Qun Enterprises
Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua have undertaken and covenanted with
the Company that they shall not and shall procure their respective
associates not to directly or indirectly participate in, or hold any right
or interest in, or otherwise be involved in any business that may be
carried out by the Group from time to time subject to the terms and
conditions of the Non-competition Deed. The Company has received
a confirmation from Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua
in respect of their compliance with the terms of the Non-competition
Deed for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed and
confirmed the compliance with, and the enforcement of, the Non-
competition Deed by Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited and Mr. Lin Jianhua
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than a contract of service with a Director or any
person engaged in the full-time employment of the Company,
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2014.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following
transactions are continuing connected transactions as defined in the
Listing Rules which are subject to the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Certain of these continuing
connected transactions which also constitute related party
transactions are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS

1. Purchase of goods from Shaowansheng
Commerce and its associate
The Group purchases goods from Shanghai Shaowansheng
Commerce & Food Ltd. (= /& 28 & £ & B & B & &)
(“Shaowansheng Commerce”) and its associate, Shanghai
Huanglongtai Tea Company Limited ( /B8 EBRERZ L EBR A F)
("Shanghai Huanglongtai”), (which are both connected
persons of the Group), in the ordinary course of its business.
On 1 August 2013, each of Tenwow Foods (Group) Co., Ltd. (<
BEm(EE)ARAT) (“Tenwow Group”) (@ wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) (on behalf of itself and its
subsidiaries, excluding Nanpu and its subsidiaries (the “Nanpu
Group”)) or Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) entered into
a framework agreement with each relevant connected person
in respect of the purchase of goods on normal commercial
terms for a period of three years commencing on 17
September 2013 and ending on 16 September 2016. Payments
will be made upon delivery of the goods or monthly.
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Shaowansheng Commerce is a substantial shareholder of
Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and Food Co., Ltd. (_t& /11348
TR R MmAMR A7), and Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory (=
IR E & A R A7), both of which are subsidiaries of the
Company. Shaowansheng Commerce is therefore a connected
person of the Company. Shanghai Huanglongtai is wholly-
owned by Shaowansheng Commerce, a connected person of
the Company, and is therefore its associate and a connected
person of the Company.

As Shanghai Huanglongtai is wholly-owned by Shaowansheng
Ccommerce, the continuing connected transactions under the
above framework agreements have been aggregated pursuant
to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules for purpose of determining
its compliance obligations under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the annual cap for the
above continuing connected transactions in respect of the
purchase of goods under the framework agreements and the
actual amount paid for the transactions are as follows:

BE_2-NE+-A=t—-RALFE
Year ended 31 December 2014
EELR BEREH

(AR¥T) (AR¥ )
Annual Cap  Actual Amount
(RMB) (RMB)

REEB (RRAZ LREKE  Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and

NE TEERRER) its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) 70,098,000 35,196,000
EE(RREEER) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 122,881,000 120,912,000
192,979,000 156,108,000

BRLARZHE—FER  FLHBRE
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For further information relating to the above transactions,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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Purchase of goods from Shanghai Tangjiu Group
The Group purchases goods from various members of the
Shanghai Tangjiu and its associates (together “Shanghai
Tangjiu Group”) (who are all connected persons of the Group)
in the ordinary course of its business. Each of Tenwow Group
(on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu
Group) or Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) entered into
two framework agreements with Bright Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
CtBR M(EE) B R A R) (‘Bright Group”) (on behalf of
itself and the Shanghai Tangjiu Group) on 5 July 2013 and 26
July 2013, respectively, in respect of the purchase of goods on
normal commercial terms for a period of three years
commencing on 17 September 2013 and ending on 16
September 2016. Payments will be made upon delivery of the
goods or monthly.

Shanghai Tangjiu is a substantial shareholder of Nanpu, which
is indirectly owned by the Group as to 51% and a subsidiary of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company. Bright Group is
the holding company of Shanghai Tangjiu and is therefore its
associate and a connected person of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the annual cap for the
above continuing connected transactions in respect of the
purchase of goods under the framework agreements and the
actual amount paid for the transactions are as follows:

BE-_Z—NE+-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December 2014
FELER EREHE

(AR¥ ) (AR¥T)
Annual Cap  Actual Amount
(RMB) (RMB)

KEEBR(RERAFRHNEB  Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and

NR TNEEEHER) its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) 133,368,000 34,928,000
mE(RREEEER) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 396,004,000 344,070,000
529,372,000 378,998,000

ER LR ZeE—FER  B2HEERE

i

For further information relating to the above transactions,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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Sale of goods to Shaowansheng Commerce and
its associate

The Group sells goods to Shaowansheng Commerce and its
associate, Shanghai Shaowansheng Food Company ( /& 88&
AR M 7)) (“Shaowansheng Food") (who are both connected
persons of the Company), in the ordinary course of its
business. On 1 August 2013, each of Tenwow Group (on behalf
of itself and its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) or
Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) entered into a
framework agreement with each relevant connected person in
respect of the sale of goods on normal commercial terms for a
period of three years commencing on 17 September 2013 and
ending on 16 September 2016. Payments will be made upon
delivery of the goods or monthly.

Shaowansheng Food is wholly-owned by Shaowansheng
Commerce, a connected person of the Company, and is
therefore its associate and a connected person of the
company.

As Shaowansheng Food is connected with Shaowansheng
Ccommerce, the continuing connected transactions under the
above framework agreement have been aggregated pursuant
to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the annual cap for the
above continuing connected transactions in respect of the sale
of goods under the framework agreements and the actual
amount paid for the transactions are as follows:

BE-—Z-—NE+-A=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 December 2014
FELR EReE
(AR%R)
Actual Amount
(RMB)

(AR%TT)
Annual Cap
(RMB)

KEEB (RERNG RHWE  Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and
NE TREEEEE) its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) 135,670,000 27,400,000
mE (RREHER) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 221,048,000 35,812,000
356,718,000 63,212,000

BRLARZHE—FER - FLHBRE
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For further information relating to the above transactions,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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Sale of goods to Shanghai Tangjiu Group

The Group sells goods to various members of the Shanghai
Tangjiu Group in the ordinary course of its business. Each of
Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries,
excluding the Nanpu Group) or Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu
Group) each entered into a framework agreement with Bright
Group (on behalf of itself and the Shanghai Tangjiu Group) on 5
July 2013 and 26 July 2013, respectively, in respect of the sale
of goods on normal commercial terms for a period of three
years commencing on 17 September 2013 and ending on 16
September 2016. Payments will be made upon delivery of the
goods or monthly.

Shanghai Tangjiu is a substantial shareholder of Nanpu, which
is indirectly owned by the Group as to 51% and a subsidiary of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company. Bright Group is
the holding company of Shanghai Tangjiu and is therefore its
associate and a connected person of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the annual cap for the
above continuing connected transactions in respect of the sale
of goods under the framework agreements and the actual
amount paid for the transactions are as follows:

BE2-Z-NME+-A=+—HLEFE
Year ended 31 December 2014
FELR BREHE

(ARM ) (AR¥%T)
Annual Cap  Actual Amount
(RMB) (RMB)

KEEE (RERG RHWE  Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and

A TEEREEE) its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) 305,528,000 152,291,000
R (RERBEHEER) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 1,007,673,000 595,260,000
1,313,201,000 747,551,000

B LR ZME—FER - FLHARE

e

For further information relating to the above transactions,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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Sale of goods to Nanpu

The Group sells own brand products and third party brand
products to Nanpu in the ordinary course of its business. On 1
August 2013, Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and its
subsidiaries, excluding Nanpu Group) and Nanpu (on behalf of
the Nanpu Group) entered into a framework agreement in
respect of the sale of goods on normal commercial terms for a
period of three years commencing on 17 September 2013 and
ending on 16 September 2016. Payments will be made upon
delivery of the goods or monthly.

Nanpu is a joint venture owned by the Company as to 51%
through Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. (KIR (F8i2) R RAR
"ﬂ) and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. ( /&

2% B % A [ 2 7)) collectively, and as to 49% by Shanghai
Tangjlu. Nanpu is deemed by the Stock Exchange as a
connected person pursuant to Rules 14A.07(6) and 14A.19 of
the Listing Rules for the following reasons:

1. the Group was entitled to appoint four out of seven
directors of Nanpu in the past and the overlapping
management between Nanpu and the Group suggests
that the Group may be able to exercise significant
influence over Nanpu's decision and business operation;

2. the Group's reliance on Nanpu remains material in terms
of monetary value and the sales and repurchase
arrangement is not an industry practice; and

3. deeming Nanpu as the Group’s connected person will
enhance the transparency of the transactions between
the Group and Nanpu and provide the Shareholders an
opportunity to review and approve its future transactions
with Nanpu under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the annual cap for the
above continuing connected transaction in respect of the sale
of goods under the framework agreement is RMB2,266,696,000
and the actual amount paid for the transaction is
RMB1,615,558,000.
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For further information relating to the above transaction,
please refer to the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 18 November 2013 and 30 December 2013
and the circular of the Company dated 14 December 2013.

Purchase of goods from Nanpu

The Group purchases own brand products and third party
brand products from Nanpu in the ordinary course of its
business. On 1 August 2013, Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself
and its subsidiaries, excluding Nanpu Group) and Nanpu (on
behalf of Nanpu Group) entered into a framework agreement in
respect of the purchase of goods on normal commercial terms
for a period of three years commencing on 17 September 2013
and ending on 16 September 2016. Payment will be made upon
delivery of the goods or monthly.

Nanpu is a joint venture owned by the Company as to 51%
through Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. (XIR (F812) R R AR
‘A #A]) and Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits Co., Ltd. (/&
X BB % B R A 7)) collectively, and as to 49% by Shanghali
Tangjiu. Nanpu is deemed by the Stock Exchange as a
connected person pursuant to Rules 14A.07(6) and 14A.19 of
the Listing Rules. For further information, please refer to the
continuing connected transaction for sale of goods to Nanpu
above.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the annual cap for the
above continuing connected transaction in respect of the
purchase of goods under the framework agreement is
RMB1,317,879,000 and the actual amount paid for the
transaction is RMB1,026,570,000.

For further information relating to the above transaction,
please refer to the Prospectus, the announcements of the
Company dated 18 November 2013 and 30 December 2013
and the circular of the Company dated 14 December 2013.
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Lessee Lessor Date of lease  Term

RHEREE W —2——F —B2——F
BRAT Mr. Lin ~A—H RNA—BZE

Shenzhen Nanpu 1 June 2011 —E-hE
Industrial Co., Ltd. +=ZA=+—H

1June 2011 to
31 December 2015

2] REBR 5 5
Nanpu Tiansheng ~ —HA—H —RA—HZE
Warehouse ~ 1January 2011  =Z—HF

+-A=1+—-8

1 January 2011 to
31 December 2015

—F—F  FF

—A—H —A—R%
1January 2011 —ZE—AHF
+-A=1+—-8

1 January 2011 to
31 December 2015

PARTIALLY-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Set out below is a summary of the continuing connected transactions
for the Group, which are exempt, under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules, from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements,
but are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

1. Leasing of properties from Mr. Lin Jianhua and his
associate
The Group leases premises from Mr. Lin Jianhua (“Mr. Lin")
and his associate, Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd. (_E
8RB A AR 2 7)) (‘Tiansheng Warehouse”) in the
ordinary course of its business. The table below sets out: (1)
the principal terms of the various tenancy agreements entered
into between the Group and Mr. Lin or Tiansheng Warehouse;,
and (2) the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2014:

(AR®F )

EEEE Annual Cap
(E5X) R#/BA for the
Gross (AR™) year ended
floor  Monthly 31 December

L/ : area rent/fees 2014
Property (m?) (RMB) (RMB'000)
ARARET =HKHEE WAE 492 60,000 720
SRPLFEBAETRIFE Office

Units 33A and 33F of

Noble Financial Centre
Main Building, Fuzhongsan Road,
Futian District, Shenzhen

EBNTEE13005% /NS 2,513 126,526 1,943
ESFRENBATEN Office

An office unit located at

Building No. 5, 1300 Jiugan Road,

Shanghai
iR £ LT 5130055 BE 970 35,371
FOFEERNE 42 Dormitory

1st-4th Floors,
No. 6 Dormitory Building,
1300 Jiugan Road, Shanghai
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BE-E2-IF

LEFEM

FELR

(AR%T )

EEEE Annual Cap
(FHK) RHE/EA for the
Gross (AR™) year ended
floor  Monthly 31 December

:4iiha) ik ihz) HOBH L/ i area rent/fees 2014
Lessee Lessor Date of lease Property (m?) (RMB) (RMB'000)
EEEHERMAR REE G —T——F —2——F I L8 N8 1300%% WAE 3,769 189,789 8,259
HRARA Tiansheng ~ —A—H —A—RA% E5RARERNBAZEN Office
Shanghai NanpuFood ~ Warehouse ~ 1January 2011 —Z—H%F An office unit located at
Pudong Limited +=ZA=+—-H Building No. 5, 1300 Jiugan Road,

1 January 2011 to Shanghai
31 December 2015

—Z——F T EEATE 130055 65 EE 1,455 53,062
—A—A —A—RA% BEAE1-42 Dormitory
1lanuary 2011 —ZT—FHE 1st-4th Floors, No. 6 Dormitory

+=ZA=1+—-H Building, 1300 Jiugan Road,

1January 2011 to Shanghai
31 December 2015

—T-=F —Z-=F f# £ T8 13005749 BE 19,705 491,008
—A—H —A—BZ& IR EEREBRME Storage
1January 2013 —Z—AHF Warehouse No. 3 and

+=ZA=+—-H auxiliary facilities located at

1January 2013 to 1300 Jiugan Road, Shanghai
31 December 2015

PEREESERAR REAR —T——F —T——F iz £ T8 130097 WRE 3,769 172,144 8,322
Shanghai Puxing Tiansheng ~ —A—H —A—A% FEFAENHNREN Office
Trading Limited Warehouse ~ 1January 2011  =Z—H%F An office unit located at Building
+=A=+-H No. 5, 1300 Jiugan Road, Shanghai

1 January 2011 to
31 December 2015

25 —2——F EENTEE13005% BE 1,455 43,129
—A—H —A—HZ FORBEERNE1-418 Dormitory
1January2011  Z—ZF—RF 1st-4th Floors,

+=A=+-H No. 6 Dormitory Building,

1 January 2011 to 1300 Jiugan Road, Shanghai
31 December 2015

=5 —T-=F IR E78 LT85 130057 49 BE 19,262 496,817
—A—H —fA—RZ 25 R B R EBNRT Storage
1lanuary 2013 Z=F—HF Warehouses No. 2 and

+-A=+—H auxiliary facilities located at

1 January 2013 to 1300 Jiugan Road, Shanghai
31 December 2015
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EEEE Annual Cap
(FHK) RHE/EA for the
Gross (AR™) year ended
floor  Monthly 31 December

AER ekihz) HOBH L/ i area rent/fees 2014
Lessee Lessor Date of lease Property (m?) (RMB) (RMB'000)
PEERBEERRR REEH —2——F 25 iz £ LT 130097 WAE 523 26,357 316
Shanghai Royal Wines ~ Tiansheng ~ —HA—H —A—BZ& ESFRENBATEN Office
and Spirits Co., Ltd. ~~ Warehouse 1 January 2011~ —Z—[NF An office unit located at
+—AtA Building No. 5, 1300 Jiugan Road,
1January 2011 to Shanghai
7 November 2014
PERREEERE XERH —T——F T4 I L8N F B 1300%% /NS 1,256 63,265 8,652
BRATA Tiansheng ~ —A—H —A—R% E5RARERNBAZEN Office
Shanghai Tiancheng Warehouse ~ 1lanuary 2011  —Z—A%F An office unit located at
Enterprise +ZA=+—-H Building No. 5, 1300 Jiugan Road,
Development Limited 1January 2011 to Shanghai

31 December 2015

—R——i —T——F EEATFHE13005 B 485 17,687
—A—A —A—RA% FoFEENE1-4E Dormitory
1January 2011 —Z—AF 1st-4th Floors,

+=A=1+—-H No. 6 Dormitory Building,

1January 2011 to 1300 Jiugan Road, Shanghai
31 December 2015

—Z-=F —Z-=F IR EENTFHE 15 R A5 BERRAZE 2354 705,629
—A—A —A—R% SRR Storage and
1lanuary 2013 =—T—H%F Warehouses No. 1and 4 and office

+ZA=+—-H auxiliary facilities located at

1 January 2013 to Jiugan Road, Shanghai
31 December 2015

PERBEXBERAR KBAHK —T——F —T——F Az 8 N F 3 13005% POE 523 26,357 316
Shanghai Tiansheng Tiansheng  —A—H —A—RZ% FEEFAERNMATERN Office
Wines and Spirits Warehouse ~ 1January 2011 =Z—4F An office unit located at
Co., Ltd. +—-A+H Building No. 5, 1300 Jiugan Road,
1 January 2011 to Shanghai
7 November 2014
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BE-2-mF

+=A=+-A

LEFEM

FELR

(AR%T )

EEEE Annual Cap
(FHK) RHE/EA for the
Gross (AR™) year ended
floor  Monthly 31 December

:4iiha) ik ihz) HOBH HE L/ i area rent/fees 2014
Lessee Lessor Date of lease  Term Property (m?) (RMB) (RMB'000)
EE-EURERRE REEH —T——F —2——F i £ T 130097 YN 1,256 63,263 7,278
Shanghai Yijia Logistics ~ Tiansheng ~ —A—H —A—B& ESFAENMBATEN Office
Limited Warehouse ~ 1lJanuary 2011  —Z—A%F An office unit located at
+-A=+-H Building No. 5, 1300 Jiugan Road,

1 January 2011 to Shanghai
31 December 2015

—T——F —T——F HENTFHE13005% EE 485 17,687
—A—A —A—A% FoFEENE1-41E Dormitory
1lanuary 2011 =—ZF—HEF 1st - 4th Floors,

+=ZA=1+—-H No. 6 Dormitory Building,

1January 2011 to 1300 Jiugan Road, Shanghai
31 December 2015

—T-mF —T—mF T 130057 BE 16,000 1,051,200
+A—A +tA—RBE 1EABERE Storage
1July 2014 —T-hEF Warehouse at 1st - 4th Floors of

+=ZA=1+—-H 1300 Jiugan Road, Shanghai

1July 2014 to
31 December 2015

2t

Total 35,806
MEBELEEABRNNBERBRRFZES - @AM Mr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling Shareholder and a Director of
BEARRMBEEALT REEFRAEBH(H the Company and hence a connected person of the Company.
B)REBRARINEZENB AR - MEH Tiansheng Warehouse is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nan Pu
(BB)REBRAFTAEMNEELEHEESR (Hong Kong) Investments Limited (B8 (&) RE AR A A)),
30% ° AL - RERERAMBEELENKE which is in turn owned by Mr. Lin Jianhua as to more than 30%.
A WAKRRRBEEAL - Therefore, Tiansheng Warehouse is an associate of Mr. Lin

Jianhua and a connected person of the Company.

ARRBREREMEERRE W ENHEE As Tiansheng Warehouse is connected with Mr. Lin, the
METHFREAEIZFIERE LTHRANE continuing connected transactions under the above tenancy
1AAB K& BIETE - agreements have been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of

the Listing Rules.
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BE_ZT-NF+_A=+—RHLFENE
MMEERRERFHNES N ERERFE
EREHAESER S AR 29,499,000
T e BRFAI A E R - REMEE R
FELRBEETER - BOARANR_-F

—MFLtAZHHRAE  BHE_ZT—NF
TZRA=t—RBILFERMMREERRERS
FRHNHESREBRAREFE LREHTESE

B &5 A AR 35,806,000 © M B
SR

RIESE (RERA T R H B

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the original annual cap
of the aggregate rent and fees payable to Mr. Lin and
Tiansheng Warehouse, on an aggregated basis, is
RMB29,499,000. As a result of entering into of the new lease
agreements, the original annual cap for the leases
contemplated under the existing lease agreements needed to
be revised. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 2 July 2014, the annual cap of the aggregate rent and
fees payable to Mr. Lin and Tiansheng Warehouse, on an
aggregated basis, was revised to RMB35,806,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the actual amount paid for the
transactions are as follows:

BE-Z-—NMF+-A=1+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2014
FELR EReE
(AR% )
Actual Amount
(RMB)

(AR%TT)
Annual Cap
(RMB)

Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and its

Nal o NEEERER) subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) 1,352,000 1,259,000
ma(RREEEER) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 34,454,000 33,550,000
35,806,000 34,809,000
FALARZNE—FPER %2 Fs‘ﬁ%ﬂxi For further information relating to the above transactions,
BUKHBHAZZ —NFLtA—HHNAR please refer to the Prospectus and the announcement of the
NS Company dated 2 July 2014.
EMEELENBHERABEER 2. Purchase of goods from Mr. Lin Jianhua's

AEBEE - REBBREFAMTENLD
BEA(ZEERARRNBEALIEES
meR-_F—=FN\A—B REEB(R
KAGREWBLAR TEEMBERE)X
Mm(KEAmREE) &8 B AEREAL

REBEEGRETIERGZ BT —=
¢j’bﬂ+‘t5ﬁ_i_£ /\\ﬁzjlﬂ+/\E|

1 BE=F - BEFEMR N E mEX
BAXN -

KIEBIBRIERAR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

associates

The Group purchases goods from some of Mr. Lin's associates
(who are each a connected person of the Company) in the
ordinary course of its business. On 1 August 2013, each of
Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries,
excluding the Nanpu Group) or Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu
Group) entered into a framework agreement with each relevant
connected person on normal commercial terms for a period of
three years commencing from 17 September 2013 and ending
on 16 September 2016. Payments will be made upon delivery
of the goods or monthly.



TREHMNERBREENIHE A MAKRE The table below sets out: (1) the information in relation to each

EREALTHSHBEEINER  RQ#EE relevant seller that is Mr. Lin's associate and the connected
—E-NE+ A=+ HILFENFE L person of the Group; and (2) the annual caps for the year
R ended 31 December 2014:

BA
Purchaser

BEC-T-DF
+=A=t-H
LEENFELR
(AR%F )

Annual Cap for
the year ended
B (MEENHBARBEAL) 31 December
Seller (Mr. Lin's associate and 2014
connected person) (RMB’000)

REEE (REART RENE IHEMERERESHER AT R
N TREFEEE) Jiangsu Province Linning Food
Tenwow Group (on behalf of International Company Limited 985
itself and its subsidiaries, BHMEERMBRAF BEME
excluding the Nanpu Group) Putian Xinghua Food Limited Packaging materials 632
EBRERMBABRAT Bm
Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited ~ Food 60,554
it
Sub-total 62,171
B (RERmEBERE) FHREAEEERAA Rin
Nanpu (on behalf of Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited Food 18
the Nanpu Group) EEXBRMBRAT X
Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited ~ Food 2,519
g
Sub-total 2,537
Bt
Total 64,708
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Rep

of the Directors

MEELEERARFIERBRRES - EAm
RARTNEEAL - THEANERBRES
BRA T BMEEREN BN EAL LN
B#E50% - AN ASMEELENBEA KK
RAMBEEAL -HBHEMEERAERAA
MR EE ST A B0 ST SR MR B RS A R SE
EHFAERES% B AMTENBHEA
RARRBNEEAL - EEXNBRBERAD
AIAMEELENEBEREZ LT RARE
=R EE ERE LA B A 30% K 70%
Am AT ENBHEARRNRBAEEA
T -BHEBREXARAFAMNEELLEN
FEAEMIXLHEEES0% B AMEE
TEMNBEARRNARWEEAL

R IHREMNERRESERAR  BHE
HEXARAR FATEERMARADA
kR EBRBRBARARGBMEENBE
A BAEEERLETRETOAZETH
BREM  LMERRGZE THRERERS
ERE TR RIS 14A81 IRE BIETHE -

KIEBIBRIERAR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Mr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling Shareholder and a Director of
the Company and hence a connected person of the Company.
Jiangsu Province Linning International Company Limited is
owned by Mr. Lin Jianming, a brother of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to
more than 50%, and is therefore an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua
and a connected person of the Company. Putian Xinghua Food
Limited is collectively owned by Mr. Lin Quangin and Mr. Lin
Jianhong, both brothers of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to more than
50%, and is therefore an associate of Mr. Lin and a connected
person of the Company. Shanghai Tianpu Food Company
Limited is owned by Ms. Yan Yuzhen, the spouse of Mr. Lin
Jianhua, as to 30% and Mr. Chen Lei, a senior management of
the Company, as to 70%, and is therefore an associate of Mr.
Lin and a connected person of the Company. Putian Nanpu
Shiye Company Limited is owned by Ms. Zhou Yulan, a sister-
in-law of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to more than 50%, and is therefore
an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a connected person of the
Company.

As Jiangsu Province Linning International Company Limited,
Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited, Putian Xinghua Food
Limited and Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited are all Mr.
Lin's associates, the continuing connected transactions under
the above framework agreements have been aggregated
pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules for purpose of
determining its compliance obligations under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.



eport of the Directors

WMERFAR  BE-ZT—NF+_A=1—
BIEFE - ﬁ%ﬁtz_ﬁﬁﬁ’f[ SE L S
BEREXHFELRMAHAERERRS
MERESN BN

As shown in the table above, the annual cap for the above
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2014, in relation to all of the above framework
agreements on an aggregated basis and the actual amount
paid for the transactions are as follows:

BECE-NME+-A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December 2014

FEER BERSH

(AR¥T) (AR¥T)
Annual Cap  Actual Amount
(RMB) (RMB)

KEEBR (RERAFERHNE  Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and

NR TEEREER) its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) 62,171,000 60,585,000
EAGE N EIED Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 2,537,000 1,443,000
64,708,000 62,028,000

ERALRSR#E—SER  F2HEARQ
BRER -

AMEERLENBBAHESER
AEEEE - REBRERAMTENLD
BEA(BAREENBEAL)HERER
R-ZZ—=F/\A—H REEE(KXX
FEEMBAR - TRERAEE) XEB
(REFMBEE) S8 EBZAMAEALRE
BRRGFGILERGZE BT —=FAh
A+tBEE-Z-—R"EFNATRBL B
H=%F - FARASNINERFHEAX
e

For further information relating to the above transactions,
please refer to the Prospectus.

Sales of goods to Mr. Lin Jianhua's associates

The Group sells goods to some of Mr. Lin's associates (who are
connected persons of the Group) in the ordinary course of its
business. On 1 August 2013, each of Tenwow Group (on behalf
of itself and its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) or
Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) entered into a
framework agreement with each relevant connected person
on normal commercial terms for a period of three years
commencing from 17 September 2013 and ending on 16
September 2016. Payments will be made upon delivery of the
goods or monthly.
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TR (NSRBI ERBEARAKRE
BREEALOZEBEETNER - UEQ®&
ECT-NF+-_A=FT—HIEFENFE

ctors

The table below sets out: (1) the information in relation to each
relevant purchaser that is Mr. Lin's associate and a connected
person of the Group; and (2) the annual caps for the year

FR : ended 31 December 2014:
BE-_Z-DOF
+t=A=t—8
LHEENEE LR
(AR%T )
Annual Cap for
the year ended
B (MEENBEARBEAL) 31 December
Purchaser (Mr. Lin’s associate 2014
and connected person) (RMB'000)
RESE(REAF KEKNE FERBERMABRAT BEME
DR TEEEEER) Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited Packaging materials
Tenwow Group (on behalf of
itself and its subsidiaries,
excluding the Nanpu Group) 806
Nt
Sub-total 806
R (REEEEE) BHEBEEXARAA i
Nanpu (on behalf of Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited Wine 162
the Nanpu Group) FEERREERRAR #E KA Em
Shanghai Buy Well Company Limited Beverage; household
chemicals 1,899
EERBERMARRA B R
Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited Wine; food 7,555
NEE
Sub-total 9,616
et
Total 10,422

KIEBIBRIERAR AR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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MEBEELERERERRES - A AARR
AIMBEAL - EEXBRBAER DB BN
BEXENEBREZ LT RARRSRE
8BRS E D RIEA 30% K 70% - A i A&
MELERNBEARARBNEEAL - BH
MBEXARARBMEELENDBLEEEL
B PR B150% © [ AR I 5 A B
BARARRNEEAL - DEARNEE
BRARBHMEELENSLBMERTER
MZESLENEBE X EHES0% A5
MRBESLENREARRNRBNEEAL -

RREHEBEXERAR - LEARHE
EERABANEBRERMER QB [/
BELENBEA  WABEAER LHRR
FTHAETHEMREME  LAERBET
RIS ERER 50 RIE ETREIE 14A81 1%
BHEHE -

WMERAMR BE-_T-—NWF+-_A=+—
BIULFEAH LAMBERGHENEGHAE
FELRERZNERDH BT

Mr. Lin Jianhua is a controlling Shareholder and a Director and
hence a connected person of the Company. Shanghai Tianpu
Food Company Limited is owned by Ms. Yan Yuzhen, the
spouse of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to 30% and Mr. Chen Lei, a senior
management of the Company, as to 70%, and is therefore an
associate of Mr. Lin and a connected person of the Company.
Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited is owned by Ms. Zhou
Yulan, a sister-in-law of Mr. Lin Jianhua, as to more than 50%,
and is therefore an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a
connected person of the Company. Shanghai Buy Well
Company Limited is collectively owned by Mr. Lin Jianhong, a
brother of Mr. Lin Jianhua, and his spouse as to more than
50%, and is therefore an associate of Mr. Lin Jianhua and a
connected person of the Company.

As Putian Nanpu Shiye Company Limited, Shanghai Buy Well
Company Limited and Shanghai Tianpu Food Company Limited
are all Mr. Lin Jianhua's associates, the continuing connected
transactions under the above framework agreements have
been aggregated pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules
for purpose of determining its compliance obligations under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As shown in the table above, the annual caps for the year
ended 31 December 2014, in relation to all of the above
framework agreements on an aggregated basis and the actual
amount paid for the transactions are as follows:

BE_Z-NE+-A=t—-RALFE
Year ended 31 December 2014
FELR BEREH

(AR% ) (AR¥ )
Annual Cap  Actual Amount
(RMB) (RMB)

KEEBR(RERAFRHNEB  Tenwow Group (on behalf of itself and

NR) o NEEEHER) its subsidiaries, excluding the Nanpu Group) 806,000 260,000
R (REEEEE) Nanpu (on behalf of the Nanpu Group) 9,616,000 389,000
10,422,000 649,000

BRLARZ0E—FER  B2HARE
2o

For further information relating to the above transactions,
please refer to the Prospectus.
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ARRZHENE B ICGESR N BB ERE
REEESHMAGELNEBEEEXBERE
300055 1) [ /F 52 B 15 & BB 5t BB A SN EE 7R
(%] R2REBHAFE7405 [FE LT
FRTE )R B R XX 5 MY A BT (1 | AR SR B A
ECT-WFT AT RLEFENFERE
ZHEHER - LBENERIE LT AR RIS 14A56
Rl B ERE B R K - I EE S ERE A
SERERERXZNERNELE - ARFEHE
AT BRAM K 1 B AN X 2 B P

RAE ERAIE 14A55(6 - BUIFAITERC R
B EX AR R BRER S UHERZEHE
BERXH))

1. RARBBEEEHBIEPET
2. RIEFHEEREERET K

3. REMBEMREHRGET BAYAEAR
MAERDABRRAEE M -

RBLRS
AEERARXRGEETETHNERBBIRS
BN MK L34 - ZERE T X FIEBK
EARAARENFERER S » #N EX[5ER
BRP |  ARBENE LWRUETEOAE
MR HRE

Confirmation from the Auditor and Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company in relation to
the Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged to
report on the Group's continuing connected transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2014 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of continuing connected transactions set out
above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

1. inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
2. onnormal commercial terms or better; and

3. according to the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in the normal course of business are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements. Those related party transactions which
constituted continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, are set out in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above, and the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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FEEFRMHEEH
HE-_Z-NWF+-_A=Z+—ALEE A£EE
BEAHEEE A AHENBENBE S LSRR
16.9% K 43.0% - REBHEAEF RAKNEFEWN
MEEE DD R A271% K%385% HZE - Z
—MFE+A=+—HLFE  BEEENTM
BENBERHE ALAR B ERIRE (EESFTR
MEBRABDEITHRAS% A L) NI AREE
AAMERRE A T o

fBRAESTE

BXARBERNBREE
RZF—=FN\A—B  RRAFEM/ARRFERX
AEAFENERET S ((BERDMBEATBRE
B AERARBEMNBRESBSEERTSZ
HEBMAREARAEROEE  UBESEE
RAEKRBEYE  ABADHBRELEAEE RS
BREBNENBRERMNS RS

RZZE—NF+—A=+—H BREBXAHE
ERERE RN ERETHREFTAQFR
NEaHERFAR AN S DR E17,916,667
B8 A& 15 $219,166,667 B B 17+ 93 Bl A 2N F =) B
HAR AN B B 31 TAR AN 490.86% [ 470.92% °

ERARERARRREERXAREEBRE
SRR A B BE N S RBIERER1.0078
T RIBERAFEENBRETSINERITE
ER180BT  BARRBMNNR T —=FNA
TLtREREBMERGMERAAERET (L
W) B IR B EEITEA2.86% ° FN > FHER
BYEET TRERAFHEEABRER S MR
TEEREE BN EMFIIN R H R ITES -

BE_Z-NF+-_A=+—HILFE HEE
RAFIEERBIAERT 8 TR BEEETTE - (&
TXAAEREOERES  ARRLERES
RAFRERBRENSE - PETRRABR
1 o

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the percentages of
purchases from the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers were 16.9% and 43.0%, respectively. The percentages of
sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers were 27.1% and 38.5%, respectively. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates, or any Shareholders of the Company (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in any of the Group’s five
largest suppliers or customers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 1 August 2013, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give the participants an
opportunity to acquire a personal stake in the Company and to help
motivate such participants to optimize their performance and
efficiency. It also helps to retain the participants whose contributions
are important to the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, the maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue in respect of which options were
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 17,916,667
shares for Pool A and 19,166,667 shares for Pool B, representing
approximately 0.86% and 0.92% respectively of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the annual report.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 was paid by the grantees upon
acceptance of the grant of option by the Company under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme. The exercise price per share under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is HK$1.80, representing a 42.86% discount
to the offer price of the shares during the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 17 September
2013 (the “Listing”). Each option was subject to a vesting scale and
exercise period as detailed in the note to the movement of
outstanding share options of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
during the year set out in the table below.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no share option under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was exercised. Save for the options
which have been granted as described below, no further options will
be offered or granted by the Company pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.
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SR

RRAERER
Name or category
of grantees

F2(24)
Directors (Pool B)
THBRAE

Mr. Wang Juewei
WEEE

Mr. Lam Hang Boris
@ EE

Mr. Yeung Yue Ming
EEELL

Ms. Au Lai Hang

BREEERAMESR
(F4)(%:t)

Senior Management and
other employees (Pool A)

(in aggregate)

BREERRAMER
(248)(#zt)

Senior Management and
other employees (Pool B)

(in aggregate)

w@it
Total

70

Rt A
Date of Grant

—2-=%)\R—H
1 August 2013
—F-=%7\A-A
1 August 2013
—Z-=%\A—H
1 August 2013
~3-=4/\A-R
1 August 2013

—F-=f7\A-H
1 August 2013

—T—=57\A-H
1 August 2013

—T-=f)\A—H
1 August 2013

Balance as at
1 January
2014

1,666,667

4,166,664

1,666,667

1,666,667

17,916,667

10,000,002

37,083,334

R

GES

during the year ended 31 December 2014:

BREHE

Number of Share Options
Bz Bz
k3 —E2-mEF
+=A=+-B t=A=t-H
LEEERH LEEREAXN
Cancelled Lapsed
during the during the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2014 2014

LEEER
Granted
during the
year ended
31 December
2014

LFEERAE
Exercised
during the
year ended
31 December
2014

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
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Balance

as at

31 December
2014

1,666,667

4,166,664

1,666,667

1,666,667

17,916,667

10,000,002

37,083,334

shkH
fTEEBT
Exercise
price

per share

1.8077T
HK$1.80
18087
HK$1.80
1.80 7T
HK$1.80
1808 7T
HK$1.80

1807 7T
HK$1.80

18078 7T
HK$1.80

1.80787T
HK$1.80

The following table discloses details of the Company’s outstanding
share options held by the Directors and certain employees of the
Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and its movement

T
Exercise
period

Bk 1
Note 1
S
Note 1
Bt 1
Note 1
BitaE 1
Note 1

i)
Note 2

Bt 1
Note 1
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READFRERAREEANERESSEEBRENS
CHREE NS B REIRIAT 77 AT 0 KRR

A=F-=FAATLAE-FT-MEARTE
AU E RS S 10% :

BE-E-EFAA+TNBE-ZE-—AFAA+L
B RITTE O 5% R AR 5 % 30% R B 1T 1 i A i
L 4

BE-T—RAFNA+tNREZZE—R"FAA+L
B AITT{E B 55 i B AR 5 25 50% 5 B 7118 BB AR 4
8

B-Z-RFAATNHE-Z—tFNA+LE
HAfTRE R BRI RS 70% B T2 A
A

BE-Z—tHFNAATN\RREERER L AL
FHEMOF (RERAREEABEIETBRER
LE B AR AR IR ) LE HA TR AT 7T {2 35 1 B A pE Ol
BITEERENEE -

READFERAREENERESERBERENS
FAAEE AN A RIRIAT 7 AT 60 KRR

B=F-=FAA+LAE-F-NFEAA++
BRI B B AR % 10%

B-E-—WFAATNBEZZE-—AFNA+L
BRI RN R % 35% R B 1T LR E
A

E-T—RAFAATN\REZZ—XFALA+Lt
B AJTT{E B35 L IS AR 4 5 % 65% 3 B 1T {E BE AR 4
%8

B-Z-RFAATN\HREBRERH AL
FHEMSF (RERAMBENBREBIRRR
IEEV ST AR IR ) L EARE AT 774682 B 3% th BB AR A AL
EATEMBARENEE -

Notes:

Each grantee who falls under Pool B with share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company will be entitled to exercise his/her
options in the following manner:

up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from 17
September 2013 to 17 September 2014;

up to 30% of the share options granted less the number of share options
exercised are exercisable from 18 September 2014 to 17 September 2015;

up to 50% of the share options granted less the number of share options
exercised are exercisable from 18 September 2015 to 17 September 2016;

up to 70% of the share options granted less the number of share options
exercised are exercisable from 18 September 2016 to 17 September 2017,

such number of share options granted less the number of share options
exercised are exercisable from 18 September 2017 and ending on the
expiration of 9 years from the date of grant of the option (subject to the
provisions for early termination under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).

Each grantee who falls under Pool A with share options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company will be entitled to exercise his/her
options in the following manner:

up to 10% of the share options granted are exercisable from 17
September 2013 to 17 September 2014,

up to 35% of the share options granted less the number of share options
exercised are exercisable from 18 September 2014 to 17 September 2015;

up to 65% of the share options granted less the number of share options
exercised are exercisable from 18 September 2015 to 17 September 2016;

such number of share options granted less the number of share options
exercised are exercisable from 18 September 2016 and ending on the
expiration of 8 years from the date of grant of the option (subject to the
provisions for early termination under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme).
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Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 19 August 2013
(the "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”), which became effective
on the listing date on 17 September 2013. The purpose of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group. The Directors consider that the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will enable the
Group to reward its employees, Directors and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group and to encourage
them to give their best performance and efficiency to the Group in
future. It is also designed to attract and retain or utilize other means
to maintain good relations with qualified individuals who are or will
be beneficial to the Company’s development or success. The
Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite any directors and
employees of any member of the Group (including the Nanpu Group),
any advisers, consultants, distributors, contractors, customers,
suppliers, agents, business partners, joint venture business partners,
and service providers of any member of the Group to take up options
to subscribe for shares of the Company. The options may be granted
to any company wholly owned by one or more persons belonging to
any of the above classes of participants. The eligibility of any of these
classes of participants shall be determined by the Directors on the
basis of the Directors’ opinion as to the participant’s contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the day
on which trading of the shares of the Company commenced on the
SEHK and any shares issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment
option during Listing, which were 207,361,200 shares representing
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.
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The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company
(including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2014, no share options had been granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The share options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme are exercisable within a period of 10 years after the date of
grant. The Directors are entitled to determine the performance
targets to be achieved as well as the minimum period that an option
must be held before an option can be exercised at the time of offer
of the Options to the participants. The subscription price per share
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will be a price determined
by the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the SEHK's
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the SEHK's daily quotations for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant.
The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 17 September 2013. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant of
an option.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO PURCHASE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2014 was the Company or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements that
would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Saved as those disclosed under the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not have any significant
investment during the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE, OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

TAXATION
Details of the taxation of the Group are set out in Note 28 to the
financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
level of public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date
of this annual report.

NON-COMPLIANT BILL FINANCING

In the past, the Group has engaged in non-compliant bill financing.
The Group has ceased entering into any new non-compliant bill
financing transactions since 25 June 2012 and settled all related bills
by 25 December 2012. Since the cessation of the non-compliant bill
financing arrangements, the Group has undertaken a series of
measures (out of its own initiatives and/or as recommended by its
internal control consultant) to ensure that non-compliant bill
financing arrangements will not occur in the future. In March 2014
and February 2015, the internal control consultant reviewed the
design and implementation of the remediated controls surrounding
the issuance and discounting of bank acceptance notes at Tenwow
Group, Wuhan Nanpu Food Co., Ltd. (RZME/ERRARETAR)
("Wuhan Nanpu”) and Ningbo Contemporary Trading Co., Ltd. (%)%
MR EXELE AR AA]) ("Ningbo Contemporary Trading”) for
the period from September 2013 to September 2014 and has
reported to the Company that it has not raised any further
deficiencies regarding the remediated controls relating to the
issuance and discounting of bank acceptance notes at Tenwow
Group, Wuhan Nanpu and Ningbo Contemporary Trading. The
internal control review was conducted based on information
provided by the Company and no assurance or opinion on internal
controls was expressed by the Company’s internal control
consultant.
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DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations in
the amount of approximately RMB1.6 million.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The results and the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been reviewed and
approved by the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”). The Audit Committee is of the opinion that such
financial statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and all other applicable legal
requirements. The Audit Committee therefore recommended for the
Board's approval of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2014 with the Company’s auditor,
and discussion has been conducted regarding auditing, internal
control, and financial reporting (including review of the general
accounting principles adopted by the Group).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no subsequent events between the balance sheet date
(i.e. 31 December 2014) and the date of this annual report that would
cause material impact on the Group.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire at
the conclusion of the AGM. PricewaterhouseCoopers, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Lin Jianhua
Chairman

Hong Kong
20 March 2015
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Jianhua (##2£), aged 56, is the founder and chairman of
the Group and was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company in August 2011. He is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Lin is responsible for the overall strategic planning
and business direction of the Group. Mr. Lin has more than 21 years
of experience in the food and beverage distribution industry. Mr. Lin
worked at Putian Huanan Food Co., Ltd. (BBl M ZERE IR mER A F)
as a manager from September 1985 to September 1992. In October
1992, Mr. Lin founded Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (FE B & 5h (= H)
B2 7)) (previously known as Shanghai Nanpu Food Co., Ltd. (&
B EAERMA R A A, and is currently the general manager. In
December 1999, Mr. Lin founded Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (X
12 & m(& E)B R 2 &) (previously known as Shanghai Tenwow
Food Co., Ltd. (LB RERMBRAF)), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and has since served as the chairman. Mr. Lin is
also a director of Praise Sheen Limited (585 R /A7) and Nan Pu
International Limited (R 1 BB B R A &), wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lin was appointed as the chairman and
authorized representative of Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co., Ltd. (K
(A ER) & fm A BR A &) and Tenwow (Tianjin) Food Co., Ltd. (K1 (K52)
& AR A7), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company in June
2013 and December 2013, respectively. Mr. Lin was appointed as the
chairman, general manager and authorized representative of
Tenwow Food Group (Shanghai) Sales Co., Ltd. (KIE & REE (LF)
2 $4 A R A 7)) in March 2014, a director of Tenwow Beverages
International Company Limited (KIEZER BB AR A F]) in July
2014, and the chairman and authorized representative of Tenwow
(Chonggaing) Food Co., Ltd. (EEMXERMAER A F) in December
2014. Mr. Lin has been a director of Zhi Qun Enterprises Limited (&
B EAR AR, the controlling Shareholder of the Company.
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Mr. WANG Juewei (EE), aged 45, is the chief executive officer
of the Group and was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company in May 2012. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Wang oversees the day-to-day business and the
general management of the Group. Mr. Wang graduated from East
China Normal University (%= 5 Al 5 KX £) in 1991 with a bachelor’s
degree in English literature. From October 1991 to March 1997, Mr.
Wang worked as a teacher at Shanghai Medical Workers' College (£
3B T 282287 ) and later from March 1997 to May 2003 at the School
of Foreign Languages at East China Normal University (2= 5 ffi &5 K 22
SNEEERRR ). Mr. Wang joined Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (FSH R &
(%£E) AR F]) in June 2003 and served as a brand manager until
June 2006, where he was in charge of managing the distribution of
products from several brands, including “Changyu” (“3&#: "), “Great
wall” ("FEE K ") and “Cook’s Choice” (" EFiE "). From July 2006 to
June 2007, Mr. Wang was in charge of the human resource
department of Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wang joined the
Group as the general manager of Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (X
2R (EE) AR A F]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
in October 2007.

Mr. LAM Hang Boris (##), aged 44, is the chief financial officer
and company secretary of the Group and was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company in May 2012. Mr. Lam is
responsible for the overall financial operation of the Group, investor
relations related matters and overall secretarial matters of the
Company. He is also in charge of communications with The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and other regulatory authorities. Mr.
Lam graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy in 1996. Mr. Lam has more than 18
years of audit and finance-related experience. He joined KPMG (£ 5
[ & 5 b 28 75 Fr) in September 1996 and resigned in March 2011.
Mr. Lam has been an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since January 1999, and a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since November
2000.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. YEUNG Yue Ming (#5%188), aged 49, is a vice president of the
Group and was appointed as an executive Director of the Company
in May 2012. Mr. Yeung is responsible for the Group’s overall sales.
Mr. Yeung received his bachelor’s degree in social sciences
(journalism and communications) from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1988. After graduation until March 1994, Mr. Yeung
worked at Nestlé (China) Ltd. (# £ (& B) & R 2 7). Mr. Yeung
then worked as the senior regional manager in charge of the Beijing
Region for Maxxium Shanghai Limited (BB & 5( L8 AR AF)
from March 1994 to June 2006. From June 2006 to April 2012, Mr.
Yeung worked at Nanpu Food (Group) Co., Ltd. (BB E @ (£E) A
fR 2 7)) as a vice general manager, overseeing Nanpu Food (Group)
Co., Ltd.'s marketing and sales activities. Mr. Yeung joined the
Group as a vice general manager of Tenwow Food (Group) Co., Ltd.
(RERM(EE)ABRAF), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, in May 2012.

Ms. AU Lai Hang (E&18), aged 46, is a vice president of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director of the Company in May
2012. Ms. Au is responsible for the overall sales and marketing and
promotions of the Group. Ms. Au graduated from the University of
Hong Kong in 1989 with a bachelor’s degree in social work. Ms. Au
worked at Nestlé (China) Ltd. (2 & (1) BBR A 7)) after graduation
to May 1995, starting as a marketing executive trainee and was
promoted to the position of senior product manager. Ms. Au then
worked at A.S. Watson Group (/& E K& &) from May 1995 to August
2011 where she was the marketing director for water & beverages
for Mainland China when she departed. During her employment, Ms.
Au continued her education and received a master degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1997. Ms. Au joined the Group in May 2012 as a vice president of
Nan Pu International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. CHEN Shirley Shiyou (BR+##), aged 49, is the non-executive
Director. Ms. Chen was nominated by CICC TW Investment Limited
pursuant to its right under the Investors Rights Agreement dated 31
May 2012 and was appointed as a Director in May 2012. Ms. Chen
has over 19 years of experience in investment banking. She has been
working with China International Capital Corporation Limited (A
B 4 8 B B2 A 7)) since February 2003 and is now a managing
director mainly responsible for strategy, business development and
investment decisions of its private equity business. Ms. Chen is also
the chairperson of CICC Jia Cheng Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(P& ERIREE AR A A, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
International Capital Corporation Limited. Prior to joining China
International Capital Corporation Limited, she was a director in the
investment banking department of Credit Suisse First Boston in New
York and Hong Kong from August 1995 to March 2002. Ms. Chen
obtained a master degree in Business Administration in 1995 from
Yale University. From August 2009 to September 2012, Ms. Chen has
been a director of Zhejiang Beingmate Scientific Industrial Trade
Share Co., Ltd. (#T B EERITERR KB R A E]), a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002570). From August
2011 to December 2013, Ms. Chen was a non-executive director of
Freetech Road Recycling Technology (Holdings) Limited (5<iE A &
AR (£ E) AR A7), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 06888). From December 2010 to
November 2013, Ms. Chen was a director of Gl Technologies (Beijing)
Co., Ltd. (F X B (b ) B 1m 2 7)), a company listed on the growth
enterprise market of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
300309).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Chang-Tzong (2] # :R), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 17
September 2013. He is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Liu
graduated from Chien-Hsing Industrial College (now known as Chien-
Hsing University of Science and Technology) in 1975. Mr. Liu served
as a distribution manager at Taiwan Coca-Cola Ltd. (& /& "] O A] 24f%
3 B R A &) from May 1988 to July 1990, and then as a national
sales manager at Taiwan Nestlé Ltd. (B/E&ERHBERAF) from
August 1990 to October 1995. Mr. L|u subsequently worked at Nestlé
China Ltd. (% £ (8 &) % R 2 7)) as the director of national sales
from November 1995 to June 2002, and then at Nestlé Purina
(Shanghai) Ltd ( /8= 8 EmRk B8R Q7)) as executive general
manager and director from July 2002 to May 2006. Mr. Liu was last
employed by Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corporation from July
2006 to February 2012, and served as executive vice president of the
convenient food division and was chairman of North China before
departure.

Mr. CHEUNG Yui Kai Warren (3R& %), aged 47, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company since 17
September 2013. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company. Mr. Cheung graduated from the University of Southern
Queensland of Australia with a bachelor’s degree in business and
has more than 21 years of corporate finance experience. Mr. Cheung
held management positions of corporate finance in several financial
corporations such as Standard Chartered Asia Limited, Standard
Chartered Australia Limited, ABN AMRO Asia Corporate Finance
Limited, SMBC Nikko Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Ping An of
China Capital (Hong Kong) Company Limited. Currently, he is the
Managing Director and Head of IBD of Great Wall International
Corporate Finance Limited. Mr. Cheung is also a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. From June 2006
to July 2011, Mr. Cheung served as an independent non-executive
director of Hisense Kelon Electrical Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 00921.HK and 000921.57), a company listed on both The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
respectively.
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Mr. WANG Longgen (E&ER), aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 17
September 2013. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wang was qualified as a senior economist by the
Shanghai Economics (Circulation) Senior Professional and Technical
Title Qualification Evaluation Committee in 1995. Mr. Wang graduated
from Air Force Political College of the People’s Liberation Army of
China in economics and management in 1999. Mr. Wang also
received a master’'s degree in economics from Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics in 1999. From May 1979 to June 1989, Mr.
Wang worked at Huangpu District Tobacco & Wine Co., Ltd. (&#[&
&8/~ &) and Huangpu District Commerce Commission (i & 5 2
Z 8®). From June 1989 to March 1991, Mr. Wang served as the
deputy director-general of Huangpu District Industrial and
Commercial Administration Bureau (B8R TETHREER).
Subsequently, from March 1991 to October 1996, Mr. Wang served
as the deputy director-general, director-general and then deputy
secretary of the Chinese Communist Party Committee of Huangpu
District Industrial and Commercial Administration Bureau (Z)f& T
BT E R D). From October 1996 to June 1999, Mr. Wang was the
director-general and then deputy secretary of the Chinese
Communist Party Committee of Huangpu District Economic and
Trade Commission (E/AELLEE $Z 8 9). From June 1999 to April
2011, Mr. Wang served as vice chairman, president and deputy
secretary of the party committee in Shanghai New World (Group) Co.,
Ltd., and chairman and secretary of the party committee from April
2011 to January 2013
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHEN Lei (BR%), aged 41, is a vice president of the Group and
is in charge of the Group's administration and human resources. Mr.
Chen received a certificate in foreign affairs secretary in 1995 and
graduated from Shanghai International Studies University (_t &M
58 K E)in 2001 with a bachelor's degree in English language and
literature. Mr. Chen received a master degree in Business
Administration in 2004 from the MBA program jointly organized by
the Shanghai Maritime University (_t/&/&% X 28) and the Maastricht
School of Management of the Netherlands (55 BT45 1€ 4 & 12 E205 ).
Mr. Chen worked for Shanghai Huili Group Company Limited (_E & (&
BB (5% B) 2 |)) from July 1995 and joined Nanpu as an assistant to
the general manager in May 2000. Mr. Chen was promoted to the
position of deputy general manager of Nanpu in March 2009 in
charge of human resources and office administration matters. Mr.
Chen was appointed to his current position in the Group in January
2013.

Ms. LU Ying (BES?), aged 45, is a vice president of the Group and is
primarily responsible for the Group’s financial operations. Ms. Lu
received a bachelor’s degree in accounting in 1994 from Changchun
Taxation College (& & #t 1% £ B2 ). Ms. Lu received her accountant
qualifications in 1996 and became a non-practising member of the
Shanghai Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2009. From July
1989 to December 2000, Ms. Lu worked at Jilin Chemical Industrial
Co. Lid. (F# M T AR F]) in the accounts department, and
was promoted to the position of chief accountant before her
departure. Ms. Lu then served as the financial manager at Petro
China East China Refining & Marketing Taicang Company (7 B4 #
FR(LTHEHE KB AR from December 2000 to March 2002. Ms.
Lu served as a deputy general manager in charge of finance and
administration at Shanghai Miaoshi Dairy Co., Ltd. (/&8 3 %¥4E
fR A~ |]) from January 2003 to October 2008. Ms. Lu joined the Group
in November 2008 as the financial controller for Tenwow Group, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. She was
appointed to her current position in August 2010.
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Mr. DONG Chen (Z&), aged 41, is a vice president of the Group
and is responsible for the marketing and sales of the Group’s non-
alcoholic beverages. Mr. Dong graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (/83238 AE) in 1994 with a bachelor’s degree in nuclear
reactor engineering. Mr. Dong served as the general manager of
Shanghai Tropicana Beverages Co., Ltd. (/& 4t m#EBLEa kG R A 7))
from January 2000 to March 2009. Mr. Dong joined the Group in
January 2010 as the chairman of Shanghai Tenwow Tea Co., Ltd. (£
BRBERESRERAE), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Dong also served as deputy general manager
concurrently in Nanpu since April 2011. He was appointed to his
present position in January 2013.

Mr. ZHOU Yanwen (/& #E 3X), aged 39, is a vice president of the
Group and is primarily responsible for the marketing and sales of the
Group's food and snacks. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Wuhan
University of Technology (& /& T % X £) (now known as Wuhan
University of Technology (&% ¥ T KX £)) with a bachelor’s degree
in management engineering in 1999. Mr. Zhou received an executive
MBA degree from Wuhan University (& & A £) in 2008. Mr. Zhou
joined the Group in March 2000 as the general manager of Wuhan
Nanpu. Mr. Zhou also serves as the general manager of several other
jointly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, including the general
manager of Tenwow (Wuhan) Food Co., Ltd. (X (RZE) B RAR D
A]) since June 2009, the general manager of Wuhan Tenwow Drinks
Co., Ltd. (B0 )% X 8 %8 & 8k ¥ A IR 22 7)) since August 2010, the
general manager of Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd. (EE M KIE
B @ A BR 2 7)) from December 2010 to December 2014 and the
general manager of Xiangyang Nanpu Food LLC (ESHEHRE LB
R & £~ &) since November 2011, overseeing the operations and
management of each company. Mr. Zhou was appointed to his
present position in January 2013.
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Ms. YANG Xuyi (#f818), aged 34, is a vice president of the Group
and is primarily responsible for the Group's legal and compliance
and investment matters. Ms. Yang received her bachelor’s degree in
law from the East China Institute of Politics and Law (R EUEZ6T)
(now known as the East China University of Political Science and Law
(FERBUEKER)) in 2003, obtained the PRC legal practicing certificate
in 2006 and received her master’s degree in civil and commercial law
from Koguan Law School of Shanghai Jiao Tong University in June
2013. Ms. Yang worked from July 2003 to February 2004 as a legal
assistant at Shanghai Tong He Law Offices (/& B MEAIEFT)
(now known as Shanghai Jiuzhou Tong He Law Offices ()8 LM 3@
FMERNEFFT)). Ms. Yang then worked as a special assistant to the
chief operating officer of Project Solutions International Group
(Shanghai) Ltd. (19 $E %18 B EI255:1( /8) AR 2 a]) from February
2004 to July 2005. Ms. Yang joined Nanpu in April 2006 as a legal
manager, overseeing legal and compliance and investment matters.
Ms. Yang was appointed to her current position in the Group in
January 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, to enhance corporate value and
accountability, and to formulate its business strategies and policies
for the development of the Company.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year under review, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the
CG Code. The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure that it will continue to
meet the requirements of the CG Code and the rising expectations of
the Shareholders and investors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the "Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, including five
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lin Jianhua, Chairman of the Board and Chairman
of the Nomination Committee
Mr. Wang Juewei, Chief Executive Officer and member
of the Remuneration Committee
Mr. Lam Hang Boris, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
Mr. Yeung Yue Ming
Ms. Au Lai Hang

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren, Chairman of the Audit Committee
Mr. Wang Longgen, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 76 to
84 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
Mr. Lin Jianhua and Mr. Wang Juewei respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on
the Company's business development and daily management and
operations generally. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors representing one-
third of the board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors is engaged by a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

All Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation
once every three years and any new director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by Shareholders at the first general meeting or
next AGM after appointment pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
Directors of the Board take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company.
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All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors are regularly kept up-to-date with the legal and regulatory
developments, and business and market changes to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visits to the
Company'’s key plant sites and meetings with senior management of
the Company where appropriate.

Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. They are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses. Internally-facilitated
briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
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During the year ended 31 December 2014, all the Directors, namely
Mr. Lin Jianhua, Mr. Wang Juewei, Mr. Lam Hang Boris, Mr. Yeung
Yue Ming, Ms. Au Lai Hang, Ms. Chen Shirley Shiyou, Mr. Liu Chang-
Tzong, Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren and Mr. Wang Longgen had
attended a training session on Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information organized by professional advisor.

Mr. Wang Juewei and Ms. Au Lai Hang, executive Directors, had
attended a seminar on Rule Amendments relating to Connected
Transactions, and Review of the Implementation of Inside Information
Regime and Continuing Obligations under the Listing Rules organized
by the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang Juewei had also attended the
seminar on Corporate Governance Update and Enforcement and
Updates of the Listing Rules organized by the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lam Hang Boris, executive Director, had attended seminars on
New Companies Ordinance and training sessions on Compliance
Control Guide for Share Option Scheme, Updates on Corporate
Governance Code and Associated Listing Rules, and Managing
Working Capital organized by professional advisors. In addition, Mr.
Lam Hang Boris had read relevant reading materials including
Amendments to the Main Board Listing Rules relating to Connected
Transactions and the Definitions of Connected Person and Associate
(effective 1 July 2014), and Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information issued by the Securities and Futures Commission during
the period.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members who are all
independent non-executive Directors with one of whom possessing
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The members are Mr. Cheung Yui
Kai Warren (chairman), Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong and Mr. Wang Longgen.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditor, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee held
three meetings to review annual financial results and reports in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013, interim financial
results and reports in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2014,
and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditor, connected transactions
and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor three times
during the year.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. The members are
Mr. Wang Longgen (chairman) and Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong, independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Wang Juewei, executive Director.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management; and establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2014 to review and make recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management and other related matters.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, with the
majority being independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Mr. Lin Jianhua (chairman), executive Director, and Mr. Liu
Chang-Tzong and Mr. Wang Longgen, independent non-executive
Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to
the Board for adoption.

20144 %% o AnnualReport2014 91



RYBLEHECENEST NER  REZEEH
SERREANMER  BR L BIUEER
EACERBLEHESTENEZ TILABEN
Hp PR E(ER)  ERTEREFS(FL
HEER -

HE-Z-—NF+-_A=+—HIFE &%
BEECRBT—R8% URIJEFSNRE -
BN SRBYERTERT 2R LIE - AR
ERNBRBFAG LIRENREESTZER -
REZBER/ EFT HARAOINKES
Tt e

s

EERBAE
EECRERIKEEERTADNTRIENE
D.3.1RETEI HO Bk BE o

EEeRHNARANEEERARRLESR &=
ReEBERENEIRFEREXER AQFE
SPERMERMENBERER - ETHREST
LEBE®EES - RARAEKEEERTAD
AR ARBEE R RS T AVEE

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2014 to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, and to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors
standing for election at the AGM. The Nomination Committee
considered that sufficient diversity has been maintained in the
Board.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company'’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
and the Company'’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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iR Lin Jianhua

THE Wang Juewe

R Lam Hang Boris

LD EE Yeung Yue Ming
EEE Au Lai Hang

PR+ b7 Chen Shirley Shiyou
E R Liu Chang-Tzong
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TR Wang Longgen
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the table
below:

HEEERRE

Attendance/Number of Meetings
S
BEAE
REZEE §ZES BEREES Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting
5/5 iVl N/A N/A i7Al
5/5 N/A 11 N/A 0/1
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
5/5 N/A N/A N/A i7Al
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 11
4/5 N/A N/A N/A 01
4/5 l 11 3/3 0/1
4/5 N/A N/A 3/3 11
4/5 il 11 3/3 11

The Chairman has also held one meeting with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without
the presence of executive Directors during the year.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about

their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 97 to 98.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration to be paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to RMB3,390,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, risk management functions, the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function. An independent consulting firm was also engaged by the
Group to review the design and implementation of the remediated
controls in relation to the issuance and discounting of bank
acceptance notes at Tenwow Group, Wuhan Nanpu and Ningbo
Contemporary Trading for the period from September 2013 to
September 2014. Please refer to “Report of the Directors — NON-
COMPLIANT BILL FINANCING".

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Board appointed Mr. Lam Hang Boris as its Company Secretary
in accordance with the Articles of Association and in compliance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31
December 2014, Mr. Lam complied with the professional training
requirement as set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or
more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be
made in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, any member
who wishes to propose a person other than a retiring director at a
general meeting for election as director of the Company may lodge a
notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as director and a notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected at the Head Office at Suite 1101, 11th Floor, 28 Hennessy
Road, Hong Kong or at the Registration Office of the Company at
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the notices will commence
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days
prior to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of
the period during which such notices to the Company may be given
will be at least 7 days.

Shareholders who wish to put forward other proposals at general
meetings may follow the procedures set out above to request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting for the
transaction of business specified in the requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board of the
Company by sending written enquiries to the Company at the
following address. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: The Company Secretary

Suite 1101, 11th Floor, 28 Hennessy Road, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2808 1721
Email: enguiry@tenwowfood.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address apart from other
specified address, if any, and provide their full name, contact details
and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2808 1972 for assistance
if required.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and
other general meetings. At the AGM, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to the Articles of Association. An up to date version of the
Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website.
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To the shareholders of Tenwow International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tenwow
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 99 to 216, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statements of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statements for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888 www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's consolidated profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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R=F—WF+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2014

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E—NF T4
2014 2013
BT ARET T AREEFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current assets
ME - RENMEE Property, plant and equipment 6 745,911 520,070
- Hb A A Land use rights 7 93,290 85,734
EREE Intangible assets 8 61,110 9,187
REEE RN RIHRE Investments in associates 10 27,704 27,190
R—HEEERRNEE Investment in a joint venture 11 400,757 369,186
RIEFTEMEE Deferred income tax assets 22 15,079 13,475
1,343,851 1,024,842
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 13 707,881 742,163
B 5 N H {th e W zkaE Trade and other receivables 14 2,351,712 1,916,835
ZRHIRE Restricted cash 15 468,417 118,287
He RIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15 693,013 1,077,535
4,221,023 3,854,820
EEHAE Total assets 5,564,874 4,879,662
R EQUITY
N Share capital 16 164,634 164,634
& A5 (B Share premium 16 1,263,332 1,385,486
E Other reserves 18 201,293 168,621
REB&EF| Retained earnings 17 955,507 642,039
2,584,766 2,360,780
FIEZRER Non-controlling interests 49,160 46,262
ERAR Total equity 2,633,926 2,407,042
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RZZE—WFE+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December 2014

R+=—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-—NEF —ZT—=
2014 2013
BT ARET T AREETIT
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
=L LIABILITIES
FnBER Non-current liabilities
(B Borrowings 21 46,171 88,100
BEILEFSEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 22 25,953 11,871
BRI 8 B IR A U A Deferred income on government grants 19 23,242 25,420
95,366 125,391
REEE Current liabilities
B 5 K E e~ FoE Trade and other payables 20 1,234,833 1,039,984
BIERFr S A E Current income tax liabilities 73,863 73,590
(B Borrowings 21 1,523,971 1,230,740
BT mBREW A BN EZES  Current portion of deferred income on
government grants 19 2,915 2,915
2,835,582 2,347,229
BEHE5E Total liabilities 2,930,948 2,472,620
ERREERE Total equity and liabilities 5,564,874 4,879,662
BEREBEE Net current assets 1,385,441 1,507,591
EEAERABAR Total assets less current liabilities 2,729,292 2,532,433

1082216 B HIMi e mére MRS S o The notes on pages 108 to 216 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

FEVENENMBEBRRCHETERN _FT—5
FZA-TH#EE  IRRE=FSERE -

The financial statements on pages 99 to 107 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 20 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf.

S =
Director Director
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EEREXR

Balance Sheet
R=F—WF+=-A=+—H
As at 31 December 2014

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-mE —ET—=F

2014 2013
(=2 AR¥T T ARETIT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—EMNEBRARMIRE Investments in a subsidiary 9 572,312 572,312
m—EMBARMER Loan to a subsidiary 9 1,299,013 1,293,805
1,871,325 1,866,117
REEE Current assets
m—EMBARMNER Loan to a subsidiary 9 257,449 5,209
o e Wk Other receivables 16 8
B RESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 15 4,698 256,690
262,163 261,907
EEH#E Total assets 2,133,488 2,128,024
s EQUITY
[ Share capital 16 164,634 164,634
{25 (B Share premium 16 1,263,332 1,385,486
HithfhiE Other reserves 18 561,745 554,160
25TE1E Accumulated losses 17 (29,076) (21,569)
FELS AR Total equity 1,960,635 2,082,711
REAE Current liabilities
R Borrowings 21 123,142 -
FERTB B A R FRE Amount due to subsidiaries 9 49,711 45,313
BfERE Total liabilities 172,853 45,313
ERRAERAE Total equity and liabilities 2,133,488 2,128,024
BREEE Net current assets 89,310 216,594
EEHAERARBESE Total assets less current liabilities 1,960,635 2,082,711

F108E216 AW RiFE MISHRARERIS o The notes on pages 108 to 216 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FRRI7ENMBHMREBAESTEN_5—F The financial statements on pages 99 to 107 were approved by the

FZAZ At URKRESFEEE - Board of Directors on 20 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf.
BE BE
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-T—WNF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BEt+=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—F-mE T =F
2014 2013
B &E AR¥ T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 5 5,084,012 4,724,888
SHE AR Cost of sales 24 (4,230,150) (3,988,435)
EF Gross profit 853,862 736,453
SO =] N Distribution costs 24 (211,439) (156,411)
TR Administrative expenses 24 (143,046) (140,300)
EMU A — F58 Other income — net 23 19,469 23,139
Hith 58 Other losses (2,314) (8,556)
R Operating profit 516,532 454,325
EUR TN Finance income 20,931 8,871
B R RR R Finance costs (96,635) (91,334)
IR — BEE Finance costs — net 26 (75,704) (82,463)
FEAGBS: & A T )m A Share of profit of associates 10 514 565
FE(E—EA & A Rm Share of profit of a joint venture 27 29,736 30,459
MRETEH AR R Profit before income tax 471,078 402,886
TSR Income tax expense 28 (113,797) (105,501)
FERA Profit for the year 357,281 297,385
Hg 2B A Other comprehensive income
HEAESESES Items that may be subsequently reclassified
EaiIEH to profit or oss
— NI E ERE — Currency translation differences (1,783) (11,927)
FEHEWAEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 355,498 285,458
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e EERER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-ZT-—NMG+-_A=+—BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E—-mE —E—=F
2014 2013
Bt e AR¥T T ARBT T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
FERFNBER : Total profit attributable to:
RARE=RE A Equity holders of the Company 345,335 286,304
FEE AR M AR Non-controlling interests 11,946 11,081
357,281 297,385
BEBAEEBR : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
RARERFEA Equity holders of the Company 343,552 274,377
FEFE R Non-controlling interests 11,946 11,081
355,498 285,458
AT EREE AEN Earnings per share for profit attributable
Y 1953 AR 2 R to equity holders of the Company
— EARREEERAT — Basic and diluted earnings per share
(expressed in RMB cents per share) 29 17 17
BE Dividends 30 103,601 242,891

$108E216 B MM ALr A SRR LIS »  The notes on pages 108 to 216 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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meERBHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-T—WNF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

FRNALRE BRFEA
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Fahy 4
A AR Al RARH Non- ERaR
Share Share Other Retained @t controling Total
capital premium IBServes eannings Total interests Equity
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR ARETRE  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(HtsE16) (Htsk10) (Hzk18) (Hzk17)
(Note 16) (Note 16) (Note 18) (Note17)
“3-=F-f-BER Balance at 1 January 2013 8 189,534 165,045 526,345 880932 43054 923986
ek Comprehensive income
R Profit for the year = = = 286,304 286,304 11,081 297,385
EREMEZERA Other comprehensive incorne for the year - - (11.927) - (11927) - 1927
SRANE Total comprehensive income - - (11.927) 286,304 274377 11,081 285458
HFEENRS Transactions with owners
BAEf Capitalisation issug 119,09 (119,09) - - - - -
BTk Issuance of new shares 15,534 1,315,004 - - 1,360,578 - 1,360,578
s Dividends = = - (157,000) (157,000) (7873) (164,873)
HRDRENRAEEHE  PrelPOshare award scheme —
—EnEEREER value of current employee services - - 1,893 - 1,893 - 1,893
BfEERANEE Total transactions with owners,
RERTESRED recognised directly in equity 164,626 1,195,952 1,893 (157,000) 1,205,471 (7873 1,197,598
BBy 1 Appropriation to statutory reserve = - 13610 (13610) = = =
ZE-ZE+ZA=1-H#&e Balance at 31 December 2013 164,634 1,385,486 168,621 642,039 2,360,780 46,262 2,407,042
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meERBHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZT-—NMG+-_A=+—BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BENADE EEREA
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FERER
i RA&EE Hfte REE7 Non- ERAE
Share Share Other  Retained &5 controlling Total
capital  premium reserves earnings Total interests Equity
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000
(Hisk16) (Hizk16) (HfzE18) (3E17)
(Note 16) (Note 16) (Note 18) (Note17)
“E-ME-A-BER Balance at 1 January 2014 164,634 1,385,486 168,621 642,039 2,360,780 46,262 2,407,042
Gals Comprehensive income
EERA Profit for the year - - - 345,335 345,335 11946 357,281
EEEfp2AHA Other comprehensive income for the year - - (1,783) - (1,783) - (1,783)
Gafls Total comprehensive income - - (1,783) 345,335 343,552 11,946 355,498
HFRENRA Transactions with owners
S Dividends - (122,154) - - (122,154) (9,048) (131,202)
ENDRERNRMEDHE  Pre-POshare award scheme —
— ERERBEE value of current employee Services - - 2,588 - 2,588 - 2,588
HFEERGNAE Total transaction with owners,
RERTEERT recognised directly in equity - (122,154) 2,588 - (119,566) (9,048)  (128,614)
ERETTRE Appropriation to Statutory reserve - - 31,867 (31,867) - - -
“E-MET-A=T-A4#H Balance at 31 December 2014 164,634 1,263,332 201,293 955,507 2,584,766 49,160 2,633,926

F108E216 B MM R A M IRR B IR AL

o

The notes on pages 108 to 216 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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mEBRERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-T—WNF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BEt+=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—F-mE T =F

2014 2013
Bt ek AR%T R ARKETT
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
BRETEHNRERE cash flows from operating activities
wEmE,/ (FrR)BES Cash generated/(used) in operations 31 401,747 (263,167)
BUF & Interest received 11,738 6,324
BT TS Income tax paid (110,991) (88,741)
ST M A () Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating
)R] activities 302,494 (345,584)
RETENASRE Cash flows from investing activities
EEWB AT (KSR S) Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of
cash acquired 33 (102,146) -
IEE T A Purchase of land use rights (487) (12,015)
BEYE  WENEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (259,556) (49,251)
HEME  WENMBKESZR  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 31 920 226
BEEFEE Purchase of intangible assets (112) (545)
) BB 7 W Bl R B R Loans collected from related parties 34(b)(iii) - 7,951
B EFIR S R 5 Net cash outflow from investing activities (361,381) (53,634)
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mEBHERMER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-ZT-—NMG+-_A=+—BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-NE —E—=F
2014 2013
Bt ek AR¥T T ARBT T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
METEHNESRE cash flows from financing activities
BITHROFFTS K Net proceeds from issuance of new shares 16(11)&(iii) - 1,360,578
B8 B 7 e 3K Repayment of related parties’ borrowings 34(b)(iii) - (14,710)
IRITRERPTIS K Proceeds from bank borrowings 1,553,993 1,528,080
BRIBITER Repayment of bank borrowings (1,302,692) (1,205,930)
2 F & Interest paid (95,721) (91,986)
YR IR & Payments of restricted cash (350,130) (19,602)
S AHAAR A Bl iE R Dividends paid to equity holders of
FEANKRE the Company (122,154) (257,283)
XA AE IR RE TS HI AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (9,048) (7,873)
MEEHIHE CGRE),RA Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
financing activities (325,752) 1,291,274
HREeRBESEEYN Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
FORD), B cash equivalents (384,639) 892,056
FURENBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 1,077,535 187,886
EXREFEFHIRG RIRGE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
EBYHNZE on cash and cash equivalents 117 (2,407)
FRESRESEEY cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 15 693,013 1,077,535

F108E216 B MM FE iR & M IR N D

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 108 to 216 are an integral part of these
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE—T-ME+-A=t+—BLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

108

rEEN-—RER
RNEBBFIZERBIR AR ([AAF]) BNEE
EE(TERBRRDR=_ZE—F N \A=+Hh
ARBERSEESATE(ZT—ZFEEIAN)
ERSHEEMKIIAEREERAF o K
AR EBRBRER-_ZE—=FNLA+tH#E
BEEMERIMBERAT(BEBHERS
Frl) =R £ o 5% =5 BE Hb 4k A& Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands °

AR (—EREZEBRAR]) REWE AR
((HFEEDETEEPEARKMBE(HED)
HEHH RE TRUREGERHE

BRIEDEHD - BARBRRAARE (A
RB¥ )25 - RS BRRECHEFER
2—HE= A=+ AIETIR -

KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP
Tenwow International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated by Mr. Lin Jianhua (the “Controlling
Shareholder”) in the Cayman Islands on 25 August 2011 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (2010 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. The Company's
ordinary shares were listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK") on 17 September
2013. The address of its registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands.

The Company, an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing, distribution and trading of beverages, food and
snacks and others in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 20 March 2015.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2-MEF-A=+—BLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

HEZ

2

EESEBRAE

RENFAMBHRRRANEZ S BRH
RTX - BRABHAN - L FHEAEPTT R
MATEFERNERER -

2.1

fmBE %
ARBERAMBERRTIRBE AR
BREEN((ERMBREER DR
B FEMBERROEELRA LR
E

BB RRRBRBEA(R ARG
(FREPIERE)WERRTE > A
MBRFEMLBEE MRS -

RETEBEMBEREENNM R

FEEAE TG G - &N
FEEEEARAASENEER
MBI ITEEAE - 8 RS E ) H
KEMENRIS - OF RE A B
R 1F h BAR R AN A AT EY #0572 P
AEAREE -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap.32 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) for this financial year and the comparative
period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statement are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE—T-ME+-A=t+—BLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following standards have been adopted by the
Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 but have no
material impact on the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 36, ‘Impairment of assets’,
on the recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financial assets. This amendment removed certain
disclosures of the recoverable amount of CGUs
which had been included in HKAS 36 by the issue
of HKFRS 13. It also enhanced the disclosures of
information about the recoverable amount of
impaired assets if that amount is based on fair
value less costs of disposal.

HK(IFRIC) 21, ‘Levies’, sets out the accounting for
an obligation to pay a levy if that liability is within
the scope of HKAS 37 'Provisions’. The
interpretation addresses what the obligating event
is that gives rise to the payment a levy and when a
liability should be recognised. The Group is not
currently subjected to significant levies so the
impact on the Group is not material.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from
the Company’s first financial year commencing on
or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section
358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of expected impact of the
changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of
initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be
significant and only the presentation and the
disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements will be affected.



B ISR AR MR

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-F-MF+-A=+-ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2 EEETBERE® 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 SHHEMNEENEE (5) 2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) =—Z—MFEEREEAEEEER (b) Standards, amendments and interpretations
HERRIREEANIETRZE to existing standards effective in 2014 but

not relevant to the Group

ETFIBHBHZER
FEHABEN
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
EE G ERIE 325 (1B3]) TRIA: 25 —HiFepEErEREE —ZE—NF—H—H
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation — 1 January 2014
Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities
B EFTERIE 39 R AIEE] ST A  fTETRAFNERN 2 —E-WF—-H—H
Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial instruments: Recognition and 1 January 2014
measurement, on novation of derivatives
BERUBREAERE 105 mEREER —E-mME—-H—H
BB HREERFE 1258 R
BB g ERIE 275 (1B3])
HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27 Consolidation for investment entities 1 January 2014

(Amendment)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-T—WNF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2 EESHEEBE®)
22 EBRENMBEENSE(S)
(€ MARFRMOIFTERFNRE(E)

BEARERTAN  BEGH
MAE ((EERTMAR]) DS
5 T 5 B2 S B 2 B AR BB =
T-mE— - BRBNEER
S HARS R AR - BAEERIE
SRMOITER - BT RE
7

BB RELERFE 105K EET
Amendments to HKFRS 10
BB RELERE 1R EFT
Amendment to HKFRS 11
BB RS LR 1457
HKFRS 14

BAGTERZE 165REET
Amendments to HKAS 16
BAGTERE 2757 EFT
Amendment to HKAS 27
BB G AERE 3B IRIEFT
Amendments to HKAS 28
BAGFTERFE 38RIEET
Amendments to HKAS 38
BB EERE 155
HKFRS 15

BB IS E LR E 5%
HKFRS 9

BrLaEs  BEGAMAEE
M FEERIRAR - AREE—
T FE_T-NFREFH
A —L I - WHHATINE
AR ML - AEEHRER T
R BOE R &l R B RT
BERUEMEER

112

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(c) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted
Up to the date of issue of this report, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") has issued the following new
standards, amendments and interpretations which
are relevant to the Group's operations but are not
yet effective for the annual accounting period
beginning after 1 January 2014 and also have not
been early adopted by the Group:
B3 BBHzE
RN FERBEN
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
iRa @K —E—RE—A—H
Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2016
B TH —ET—RF—H—H
Joint arrangements 1 January 2016
EEIRTERRP —ET-RF—-H—H
Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
M - BERRE —ZE—RF—H—H
Property, plant and equipment 1 January 2016
e MBS I —ZE—R"F—H—H
Consolidated and separate financial statements 1 January 2016
BREE —ZT—R"F¥—H—H
Investment in associates 1 January 2016
B EE —ET—RF—H—H
Intangible assets 1 January 2016
ERNEF & RMARER —T—tF—-H—H
Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017
CRITER —E-N\F—H—H

Financial Instruments

1 January 2018

KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued the
annual improvements project which addresses
several issues in the 2012-2014 reporting cycle, and
includes changes to the following standards. The
Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs
published in the annual improvements project.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZT-—NMG+-_A=+—BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

2 EERETBEEE®

22 SHEREMBENEE (B

(c) AR ERMZE(E)

BAMBRERAEINR
HKFRS 3
BAMBHEEE R
HKFRS 8

BB HREERF 135
HKFRS 13
BAGTREAE 1657
HKAS 16
BAGEAE 245
HKAS 24

BB GRTERIE 385
HKAS 38
BAGTREAE 405
HKAS 40
BAMBHEEANE SR
HKFRS 5

BAMBHREENET7 R
HKFRS 7

BB ERE 195
HKAS 19
BAGERIE 345K
HKAS 34

A B RS ER BT R

RBUAEEHBRED
REEEBS

B ATFREIER A £

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)

(c) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (Continued)

BT5EEH 2%
BRMFEREER
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
=i —E-MFELH—H
Business combinations 1 July 2014
D ED —E—NF+EH—H
Operating segments 1 July 2014
ARBERFE —ET-—FEH—H
Fair value measurement 1July 2014
Mm% - HE R —E-MFEEH—H
Property, plant and equipment 1 July 2014
A A TR 5E —ZE—NF+EHA—H
Related Party Disclosures 1 July 2014
mEE —ZT-NFEEH—H
Intangible assets 1July 2014
HEMEME —ET—NFEH—H
Investment property 1 July 2014
FHEHERIEMBEE R BRI E X —E-—RFLH—H
Non-current assets held for sale and 1 July 2016
discontinued operations
ST HE : HE —E-—RFEH—H
Financial instruments: Disclosures 1 July 2016
EE @A —E—R"FtH—H
Employee benefits 1 July 2016
R ERRF TS —E-R"FtH—H
Interim financial reporting 1 July 2016

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of these standards, amendments and

ARG T ARERBHRK
EREATE o

interpretations on the financial statements of the
Group. The adoption of the above is currently not
expected to have a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group other than the disclosure
changes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE—T-ME+-A=t+—BLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income
statement (Note 2.10).

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group's accounting policies.
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with
the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying amount of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in OCI in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3 consolidation (Continued)

2.3.1 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investments in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in OCI is recognised in OCI
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of profit of associates in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and
obligations each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to
be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in OCI. When
the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group's net investment in the joint ventures), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive Directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Group's presentation currency.
Other than the Company and subsidiaries located
outside Mainland China, whose functional currency
is Hong Kong Dollar, all other subsidiaries’
functional currency is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within “finance income or
cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within “other gains/(losses)
— net”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rates on
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in OCI.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in OCI.
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No depreciation is made on CIP until such time as
the relevant assets are completed and ready for intended
use. When the assets concerned are available for use,
the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy
as stated below.

Property, plant and equipment include buildings,
machinery and equipment, vehicles and other
equipments. All property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment (if
any). Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 16-30 years
— Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
— Vehicles 3-10 years
— Other equipments 2-5years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “other gains/(losses) — net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Land use rights

All land in Mainland China is state-owned or collectively-
owned and no individual land ownership right exists. The
Group acquired the rights to use certain land. The
premiums paid for such right are treated as prepayment
for operating lease and recorded as land use rights,
which are amortised over the lease periods of 20 to 50
years using the straight-line method.
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries,
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer
software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Acquired computer software
licences are capitalised on the basis of costs
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. The cost are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of 10 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Trademark
Separately acquired trademark is shown at
historical cost. Trademark has finite useful lives and
is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of trademark over their
estimated useful lives of 5-10 years.

(d) Mining licenses

Mining licenses acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Mining licenses have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of mining rights over
their estimated useful lives.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of an impairment at each reporting
date.
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to maturity
investments and available for sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. Financial assets held by the
Group are loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables”, “cash and cash
equivalents” and “restricted cash” in the balance
sheet.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the l0ss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services provided in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected within one year, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

2.16 Restricted cash

Restricted cash represents restricted term deposit and
amounts held by banks, which are not available for the
Group’s use, as securities for issuance of letters of credit,
letter of guarantee, bank acceptance notes and bank
borrowings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet
date.
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is recognised in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the group companies operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax

(b)

(1)

(ii)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(@)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group entities in Mainland China participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by relevant government authorities for
its employees in Mainland China and contribute to
these plans based on certain percentage of the
salaries of the employees on a monthly basis, up to
a maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated
by the relevant government authorities. The
government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing
and future retired employees under these plans.

The Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

Housing benefits

Employees of the Group entities in Mainland China
are entitled to participate in government-sponsored
housing funds. The Group contributes to these
funds based on certain percentages of the salaries
of the employees on a monthly basis, up to a
maximum fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by
the relevant government authorities. The Group'’s
liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contribution payable in each period. Contributions
to the funds are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

. including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

133
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period
and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (and share premium).

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group'’s
activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the
specifics of each arrangement.
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KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Revenue recoghnition (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised
when the risk and reward of the goods has been
transferred to the customer, which is usually at the
date when a group entity has delivered products to
the customer and the customer has accepted the
products, the collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assumed and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

Rental income from properties is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the periods of the respective
leases.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans is
recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.



B ISR AR MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_ZTNFE+_A=1+—HItFHE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

2

EEZEEMBRBE®)

2.26 BT B

2 BEH A TR B S ] WK T 8 B -
MAKE KSR A A M & GREFER
BT RHOHEHERE AR EERER
AR °

BERANE B2 RS B IRE AR - I
B E KA S HATE HRES
arEKERPESR -

HEEYE  THMMNMREAR B
MESIARBDARESELCERFMH
B WIRBEBEEZ AT FRIAER
EESRA R HRERER

2.27 REHE

AR B P A HE ) B KB 0 R B AN S A
HEEARE  2BREEHE R
BREHEE AR HEAR
THUERSBEER) REERRAE
REEGEEEMBRERSH -

2.28 REDE

AARR AR D BB EEREER
NERRFES (REE) $L/ENERE
AR BERERATIREILE -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred government grants and are credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

2.27 Operating Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

2.28 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company'’s shareholders or directors where appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group'’s financial performance.

(a)
(0

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated and
settled in RMB. However, the Group has
certain trade receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables and borrowings
denominated in HK$ and USS$, which is
exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
Details of the Group's trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other payables, borrowings are disclosed
in Notes 14, 15, 20 and 21 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2014
and 2013, the Group has not hedged its
foreign exchange risk because the exposure,
after netting off the assets and liabilities
subject to foreign exchange risk, is not
significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(@

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets. The
Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact on interest-
bearing assets resulted from the changes in
interest rates because the interest rates of
cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash are not expected to change significantly.

The Group's interest-rate risk mainly arises
from borrowings. Borrowings obtained at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest-rate risk. Borrowings obtained at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group does not hedge
its cash flow and fair value interest rate risk.
The interest rates and terms of repayments
of borrowings are disclosed in Note 21.

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates on
bank borrowings had been 10% higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, the net
profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB7,015,000 lower/higher
respectively (31 December 2013:
RMB6,538,000), as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

139
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
arises from cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, trade and other receivables, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions. Certain
Group's sales are settled in cash or by its
customers on delivery of goods. Credit sales are
made only to selected customers with good credit
history. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of
RMB610,588,000 were due from Nanpu, a joint
venture of the Group (31 December 2013:
RMB545,121,000). Nanpu has a history of making
profits and the directors of the Group assessed
there is no credit risk in relation to the trade
receivables from Nanpu.

Other than the receivables from Nanpu, the Group
has no significant concentration risk. The carrying
amounts of cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, trade and other receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets.

At 31 December 2014, all cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash were placed in
highly reputable and sizable banks and financial
institutions without significant credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Cash flow is managed at group level by head office
finance department (“Group Finance”). Group
Finance monitors the Group's liquidity
requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs at all times and does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its
borrowing facilities. Group Finance usually takes
into consideration the Group's debt financing plans,
covenant compliance and compliance with internal
balance sheet ratio targets.

Group Finance mainly invests surplus cash in time
deposits, with appropriate maturities.

The table below analyses the Group's non-
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

-5 —E@E —ERf @t
Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=B-=F As at 31 December 2013
+=A=+-H
S Borrowings 1,230,740 88,100 - 1,318,840
EZF S Interest payments on borrowings 47,214 1,978 - 49,192
B REMENZIE  Trade and other payables 1,039,984 = = 1,039,984
2,317,938 90,078 = 2,408,106
R-EB-DF As at 31 December 2014
+=A=t+-8H
EE Borrowings 1,523,971 - 46,171 1,570,142
SRHERAS Interest payments on borrowings 49,341 2,892 2,445 54,678
B REMEMTIA  Trade and other payables 1,234,833 - - 1,234,833
2,808,145 2,892 48,616 2,859,653
201443  AnnualReport2014 141
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
holder, return capital to equity holders or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total bank borrowings (including
“current and non-current borrowings” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Total capital is calculated
as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet
plus net debt.

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—EF-mFE —F=
2014 2013
ARET T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITE R4 (MI5E21) Total bank borrowings (Note 21) 1,570,142 1,318,840
W BRERBEESZED Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15(a))
(Ff3E15(0)) (693,013) (1,077,535)
2R &R S (M FE 15(0) Restricted cash (Note 15(b)) (468,417) (118,287)
BEFE Net debt 408,712 123,018
ey ] Total equity 2,633,926 2,407,042
BARRIE Total capital 3,042,638 2,530,060
BEARAELE Gearing ratio 13% 5%

KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets,
including trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, financial liabilities including
trade and other payables and current borrowings, are
assumed to approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities. The carrying values less any
estimated credit adjustments for financial assets with a
maturity of less than one year are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experiences and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwiill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.10. The recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates (Note 8).

(ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

2014%43%% o Annual Report 2014 143
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment and land use rights are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset
value may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or
net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in
the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting future
cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an
impairment charge to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Estimated write-downs of inventories

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write-downs on inventories are recorded
where events or changes in circumstances that the
balances may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact carrying values of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
The Group's management estimates the provision of
impairment of trade and other receivables by assessing
their recoverability. Provisions are applied to trade and
other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible and require the use of estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact carrying value of trade and other
receivables and impairment charge in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and in
Hong Kong. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined
using tax rates that are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax assets are realised or the
deferred income tax liabilities are settled. The expected
applicable tax rate is determined based on the enacted
tax laws and regulations and the actual situation of the
Group. The management of the Group will revise the
expectation where the intending tax rate is different from
the original expectation.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive Directors. The executive Directors review the
Group’s internal reports in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the internal reports provided for review by
the executive Directors. The executive Directors consider the
performance of the Group from a product perspective. The
executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of gross profit for the year
which is consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s operations are mainly organised under the
following business segments: own brand products and third
party brand products, and each has the segments of non-
alcoholic beverages, alcoholic beverages, food and snacks,
and others.

The amounts provided to executive Directors with respect to
total assets, total liabilities and capital expenditure are
measured in a manner consistent with that of consolidated
financial statements. The executive Directors review the total
assets, total liabilities and capital expenditure at Group level.
Therefore no segment information of total assets, total
liabilities and capital expenditure information was presented.
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5 2EER®@ 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
RIBEAEBNANBTBRE - NEBEFE In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting, the
EBDE2INEEAEERME—RFREF - Group has determined that business segments be presented

as the primary and only reporting format.

(a) #XHE (@) Turnover
AEBRUWA (BNEEE) T ¢ The Group's revenue which represents turnover is as
follows:
BE+-HA=+—RHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-F —T—=
2014 2013
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
— BEmEER — Own Brand Products
FEB R Non-alcoholic beverages 671,774 427,562
B E R Alcoholic beverages 249,866 238,217
BEmkER Food and snacks 724,861 709,978
Efh Others 56,509 50,990
1,703,010 1,426,747
— X REER — Third Party Brand Products
I ER R Non-alcoholic beverages 58,044 57,427
AR Alcoholic beverages 2,464,681 2,328,926
EmkER Food and snacks 716,660 830,461
W) Others 141,617 81,327
3,381,002 3,298,141
F Total 5,084,012 4,724,888
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5 SEER@E 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) oEBER (b) Segment information
HE—_Z—NF+-_A=+—HIF The segment information for the year ended 31
EDEERAT December 2014 is as follows:

BEREER E=HRMER
Own Brand Products Third Party Brand Products
FERHR FEREH
Non- ERHH RARER Non-  BRHH RERER
alcoholic ~ Alcoholic  Food and Hify Nt alcoholic  Alcoholic  Food and Hfty it by
beverages hbeverages snacks Others  Sub-total beverages heverages snacks Others  Sub-total Total

ARBTT ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARRTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARRTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000

Bl Segment sales 671,774 249,866 724,861 56,509 1,703,010 58,044 2,464,681 716,660 141,617 3,381,002 5,084,012
BHERMA Segmentcostofsales  (488,744)  (163,486)  (518,651)  (43,327) (1,214,208)  (55,237) (2,157,475) (669,810)  (133,420) (3,015,942) (4,230,150)

oy
7

PEEF Segment gross profit 183,030 86,380 206,210 13,182 488,802 2,807 307,206 46,850 8,197 365,060 853,862
HE_ZT—=F+-_A=+—HIF The segment information for the year ended 31
EHDEBERINT December 2013 is as follows:
BEmEER E-FREER
Own Brand Products Third Party Brand Products
FERHH FEEREHRE
Non-  BEHH RERER Non-  EEHE RERER
alcoholic ~ Alcoholic  Food and e /st alcoholic  Alconolic  Food and A et it
heverages  beverages snacks Others  Sub-total  beverages  beverages snacks Others  Sub-total Total

ARBTR ARETT ARETRT ARRTR ARMTR ARETT ARKTL ARMTR ARMTR ARMTT ARMTR
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Bl Segment sales 427,562 238,217 709,978 50,990 1,426,747 571421 232892 830,461 81327 3298141 4,724,888
BHERA Segmentcostofsales (322065 (182867)  (483174) (39,508)  (1,027,616) (53139 (2051,661)  (779,903) (76,116)  (2960819)  (3988,435)

PEER Segment gross profit 105,497 55,350 226,302 11482 399,131 4,288 277,265 50,558 5211 337,322 736,453
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5 o2WBERE 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) ZHER(E) (b) Segment information (Continued)
K o B AR B AR AR SR AT Operating segments results are reconciled to profit

before income tax as follows:

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—B-OFE =%

2014 2013

AR¥T T ARBTT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

D EBER Segment gross profit 853,862 736,453
CaN =] DN Distribution costs (211,439) (156,411)
THHEX Administrative expenses (143,046) (140,300)

HAng A — F58 Other income — net 19,469 23,139
HAbE1E Other losses (2,314) (8,556)

KRR Operating profit 516,532 454,325

IR N Finance income 20,931 8,871
BT TSR AR Finance costs (96,635) (91,334)
BIFERA — B Finance costs — net (75,704) (82,463)

FE(LEEE R A= A Share of profit of associates 514 565

e S PN | Share of profit of a joint venture 29,736 30,459

BiAREF Profit before income tax 471,078 402,886
REBBET R REIH B AT Most of the Group companies are domiciled in the PRC
B A K& »IEREEEI N o and majority of the non-current assets are located in the

PRC.
REE-T—WF+=-_A=+—H801t During the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue
FE K E AEBEE N A MK derived from Nanpu, a joint venture of the Group,
ABREBRARN271%(HE=-Z accounted for 27.1% (for the year ended 31 December
— =+ -_A=+—HIEEE: 2013: 29.5%) of the Group's revenue.

29.5%) o
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6

150

W% - BERRE —F5E

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP

BERXE LR RRIE
BF Machinery =L Other  Construction @it
Buildings and equipment Vehicles equipments in progress Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-E-=£-A-A At 1 January 2013
A Cost 406,131 165,518 35,304 3250 11,405 650,628
ZihE Accumulated depreciation 7.7 (42.230) (19.280) (16,005) - (148786)
RAFE Net book amount 334,860 123,288 16,044 16,245 11,405 501,802
HZ-Z-ZE+-H=1-H VYearended 31 December 2013
LEE
“F-=F-f-H 1 lanuary 2013 334,860 123,288 16,044 16,245 11,405 501,842
2 Additions 2835 10,685 2388 11,951 669 66,528
P} Transfer 32074 5947 - 3376 1,397) -
& (H3E31) Disposals (Note 31) ) (126) (127) (14) - (276)
e (Fz31) Depreciation (Note 31) (18,556) (16,114) (4.879) (8.475) - (48,024)
—3-=£+-A=+-H 31 December 2013 351,204 123,680 13,426 23083 8677 520070
RZB-=£+-A=+-8  At31December 2013
Bk Cost 140,766 181,064 35,829 47,8 8677 713620
ZiriE Accumulated depreciation (89,562 (57,384) (22409 (24,201) - (193,550)
REFE Net book amount 351,204 123,680 13,426 23083 8677 520070
BZ-2-ME+-A=t-R Yearended 31 December 2014
LFE
“5-M5-F-R 1 January 2014 351,204 123,680 13,426 23,083 8,677 520,070
BB AR (i 33) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 33) 9,991 24,535 64 756 3,202 38,548
| Addtions 1,198 9,343 5,614 11,344 212,497 239,99
o | Transfer 42,467 29,018 - 3,050 (74,535) -
& (HizE31) Disposals (Note 31) (3) (982) (17 (52) - (1,208)
EGRE)) Depreciation (Note 31) (18,476) (15,851) (4,243) (12,925) - (51,495)
—E-ME+-B=+-R 31 December 2014 386,381 169,743 14,690 25,256 149,841 745911
R-2-mE+-A=+-A  At31December 2014
A Cost 494,356 240,987 40,022 62,081 149,841 987,287
ZiNE Accumulated depreciation (107,975) (71,244) (25,332) (36,825) - (241,376)
EEEE Net book amount 386,381 169,743 14,690 25,256 149,841 745911
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6 Y% BERRZRE —FEE®HE 6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — GROUP
(Continued)
(@) WERXERGEEEBERATHE (@) Depreciation expense has been charged to the
FFIBAT ¢ consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
follows:

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NE —T =4

2014 2013
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
SHEMA Cost of sales 32,343 29,560
THHEX Administrative expenses 18,715 17,639
SO =] DN Distribution costs 437 825
51,495 48,024
b HESHEBDEREATEEER (b)  The net book amount of buildings pledged as collateral of
(FFEE21) IR RIS FEREDFET the Group’s borrowings (Note 21) as of respective

balance sheet dates were as follows:

R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—F-mE  —T=F

2014 2013

ARET T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EF Buildings 268,498 203,790
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T fERAE — ARE 7
T8 BB TR E 4 B SR REDE

B - A& B FTA LI ER SRR -
BN T 20 E 50 FRAEHE -

LAND USE RIGHTS — GROUP

Land use rights represent the net book amount of prepaid
operating lease payments. All the land use rights of the Group
are located in the PRC and are held on leases from 20 to 50
years.

T E AR E BT ¢ Movements in land use rights are as follows:
BE+=-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—ZT—UF —FT—=
2014 2013
AR®T T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HAYIBREDFE Opening net book amount 85,734 75,446
b2y Additions 487 12,015
U BB R B A A (BFsE33) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) 8,845 =
B eHFA S (EE31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) (1,776) (1,727)
HACR AR A Closing net book amount 93,290 85,734

BB ERNRA 2 AR [HERE
ERXH -

BERGERERERAKEBR(MEE21)
HR e L BRI FE T

+ b 4 Land use rights

Amortisation expense has been charged to “cost of sales” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The net book amount of land use rights pledged as collateral of
the Group’s borrowings (Note 21) as of respective balance
sheet dates was as follows:

BR+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-NE —T =4

2014 2013
ARBTR AR¥TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
24,432 19,158

RZE—=Rk_F—NF+_A=+—8
AEBINAREBME T L HERREE - 18R
THERENEAFEINAEARKE
1,348,000 7T & A K #1,229,000 7T ° AN &
A EZE L EREEAEETE
£ MEARZETNESEE LT O SEHbsT
£ WZEACEASAG BRI

B ©

KIEEE IR AR AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, the Group is still in the
process of renewing certificates for certain land use rights with
net book value amounting to RMB1,348,000 and RMB1,229,000
respectively. The Group might incur certain obligations in
connection with such application of land use right certificates,
while since the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability, this obligation has been disclosed as
contingent liabilities in Note 35.
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HEZ

8 #FEE —4+5KH

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP

Rk
[5ES [k Mining ik @st
Goodwill Trademark Licenses  Software Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-Z—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013
AR Cost 7,913 1,361 = 216 9,490
ZEHTE Accumulated amortisation - (622) - (25) (647)
IREFE Net book amount 7,913 739 = 191 8,843
HE-E-—=F Year ended 31 December 2013
+t-A=+-HLEE
—Z—=%—F—H 1 January 2013 7,913 739 = 191 8,843
i Additions - - - 545 545
Y (E31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) - (129) = 72) (201)
—Z—=F+=-A=+—H 31December 2013 7.913 610 - 664 9,187
RNR-B—=F At 31 December 2013
+=—HA=+-H
BN Cost 7,913 1,361 - 761 10,035
2T Accumulated amortisation - (751) - 97) (848)
IREFE Net book amount 7,913 610 = 664 9,187
BEZ-_Z—MNF Year ended 31 December 2014
+ZA=+-HLEE
—ZT-—mFE—F—H 1 January 2014 7,913 610 - 664 9,187
b=l Additions - - - 112 112
WEsHT BN Al (Hi5E33) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) 17,121 1,880 33,320 - 52,321
B R X (FEE31) Amortisation charge (Note 31) - (184) (184) (142) (510)
“Z—mFE+=A=+—H 31December 2014 25,034 2,306 33,136 634 61,110
RZE—NE At 31 December 2014
t=A=+-H
AR Cost 25,034 3,241 33,320 873 62,468
2 Accumulated amortisation - (935) (184) (239)  (1,358)
REFE Net book amount 25,034 2,306 33,136 634 61,110
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154

/\\\ﬁ/ﬁg z‘gﬁ(ii
BHERAERNEAEERERA [1TRAX ]
TN

FETHEREARSELET(REER
Ex|) BHETER - U TAZEEDHE
BORMBE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)
Amortisation expense has been charged to “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

The goodwill is monitored by the management at cash
generating units (“CGU") level. The following is a summary of
goodwill allocation for each operating segment:

BEt+=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-mNFE =%
2014 2013
AR¥T T ARBTFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
REIZSDRBIRAR] Changxinxian Jinshaguan Co., Ltd.
([€DFR]) ("Jinshaquan”) 17,121 =
EBIIHAMRRERAA Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and
(F381) Food Co., Ltd. (“Chuanxiang”) 4,500 4,500
FEEXRBEERAR] Shanghai Royal Winery Co., Ltd.
([EXEE]) (“Royal Winery") 3,413 3,413
25,034 7,913

AETRERND  BECIEZCHERARE
TEHETNS/IMER - BEELEITHA
WE B IREREBEFETEETE - B
AEERESVHEENRERERR - [
R2EHREMHERN BERK—ERKH

(TRE8) © 0% BBOMAS R T i s
EEH - ERETRBRASEN BT

BEBHRATHERE

KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

For the purposes of impairment test, goodwill has been
allocated to the smallest individual of CGU identified. The
recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-
use calculations. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budget made by the Directors, with
reference to the prevailing market conditions, covering certain
future period (the “Period”). Cash flows beyond the Period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.
The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

BREE —FXEE @) 8
—E-MERRAEEAEENEZRRN
T

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP (Continued)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2014
are as follows:

EDR JIH EXREH
Jinshaquan Chuanxiang Royal Winery

HEERE Sales growth rate 10% 5% 5%
FEF = Gross profit margin 25% 25% 25%
ARG IR X Pre-tax discount rate 13% 12% 12%
TEE HIMEETIR € R A Growth rate to extrapolate cash flows

BR=X beyond the budget period 0% 3% 3%

ENERENNGE R-T-—HF+ A
=t+—HAYERERE -

HINBLARANRERAOHMBARRE 9
HER — ARF
(@) HHBLANKRE

Based on management’'s assessment, there was no
impairment of goodwill as at 31 December 2014.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY AND LOAN TO
A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY
(@) Investment in a subsidiary

BEt+t-A=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—F-mE  —F=F

2014 2013

AR¥T T AREEFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

K& - RN Investment, at cost 572,312 572,312

2=k F—NE+=A
+—H HHEBEARKNKREGRE

R-BE-—MFE+_HA=+—H &
BB N R RIS P E 36 M FE -

HE_ZT—NF+_A=1+—HILF
B BB A R IEERERERA
E@MEESATE -

As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, investment in
subsidiary represents 100% interests in Praise Sheen.

The particulars and details of principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2014 are set out in Note 36.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, non-controlling

interests in each individual subsidiary are not material to
the Group.

20144 %% o AnnualReport2014 155



B ISR AR M A

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE—T-ME+-A=t+—BLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

9 HHEBRAANKRERCQKBEAFIR
HER — F2FHD

(b)

@) Ff 8 A R IR L E K

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY AND LOAN TO

A SUBSIDIARY — COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Loan to a subsidiary

R-ZZE—WNE+=-_RA=+—H " Ak
BARKMERASRER 2E5BE&E
EERBHEF - 5 5l430,000,000
Z (% A AR ¥182791,0007T ) *
1,204,288,0007% 7T( 49 & A R &
955,461,0007T ) bA &2 A R #& 418,210,000
T (ZE—=F+=HA=+—H:
30,000,000 7T ~ 885,800,000 7% 7T & A
R#418,210,0007T) °

(c) EFAMEBARRKE
RZE—=FRZF—EOF+=A
=+—HB EAHRBARZKERKE
RNARARRZ MR ERNERS -

As at 31 December 2014, loan to a subsidiary is
unsecured, interest free, denominated in US dollar, HK
dollar and RMB amounting to US$30,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB182,791,000), HK$1,204,288,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB955,461,000) and
RMB418,210,000 respectively (31 December 2013:
US$30,000,000, HK$885,800,000 and RMB418,210,000),
with no fixed repayment date.

Amount due to subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, amount due to
subsidiaries represents the payable for the expenses
paid by subsidiaries on behalf of the Company.

10 HEEQATHNRE — XEE 10 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

Year ended 31 December

—®—mFE —F-=

2014 2013
ARBFRT AREKTFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
n—HA—H At 1 January 27,190 26,625
JE % F Share of profits 514 565
Rt+t-—A=+—H At 31 December 27,704 27,190
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10 HEEZNTHNRE — XAEEH (B) 10 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP
(Continued)

RZZFE—NF+-_A=1+—H  AEEHH The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
ERNRERBRIT - FIEEERRINEE December 2014 are set out as follows, all of which are unlisted

s
BIE LMD BIiREREAR and equity method is used to account for, are set out as

follows:
EEMB MR ILER
ERERE Place of business/ FrERERERE %
Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest
—E-mE ==
2014 2013
i H T R R R AN E K H Bl E
BRAR ([EHEEME] Putian, PRC
Putian Rural Microfinance Co., Ltd.
(“Putian Rural”) 24.5% 24.5%
FEEENRmERARA] R EE
([EEREEND Shanghai, PRC
Shanghai Daoxiangcun Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Daoxiangcun”) 39% 39%

REESHE AR ZENERTESARE - There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's

interest in the associates.

BENANBENBER
AREBE ESHEANOBEM B AT
T ZERRIREEEAR -

Summarised financial information for associates
Set out below are the summarised financial information for
Putian Rural Microfinance Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Daoxiangcun
which are accounted for using the equity method.
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10 HEZEQATNKRE — XAEB(H) 10 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP
(Continued)
EEEERFE Summarised balance sheet
EHEmE LEEEN @t
Putian Rural Shanghai Daoxiangcun Total
“EZ-NE T ZB-mF -5 ZE-mF —T—=%
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
AR®TRT ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
wE Current
He&RIBE%EERE  Cashand cash equivalents 60 108 125 363 185 47
HinnsaeE Other current assets
(MeERE) (excluding cash) 111,540 107,339 3172 3,022 114,712 110,361
REEERE Total current assets 111,600 107,447 3,297 3,385 114,897 110,832
Hinsa s Other current liabilities
(BIEEMEER) (including trade payables) (2,862) (949) (1,012) (1,122) (3,874) (2,071)
REEELAE Total current liabilities (2,862) (949) (1,012) (1,122) (3,874) 2,071)
FRBEERST Non-current Assets 126 263 363 385 489 648
FEE Net assets 108,864 106,761 2,648 2,648 111,512 109,409
ZERBREPE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
EHERE LEREN @t
Putian Rural Shanghai Daoxiangcun Total
“E-mE —T-=Ff ZE-mF —T-=F CZZ-mF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ARETr ARETT AR¥TR ARETT AR%¥TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 4,319 6,969 2,256 2,533 6,575 9,502
WE N Depreciation and amortisation (50) (50) (1) ©) (51) (51)
BELENT Profit from continuing
operations 2,847 3,302 - 23 2,847 3,325
FraRif Y Income tax expense (744) (1,030) - ¥) (744) (1,032)
air sl Total comprehensive income 2,103 2,272 - 21 2,103 2,293

A EERRRERZABNHBEHRERAZ
RBRR (W I AR RB AR YHAKE
HEEE N R RN EREHAR -

158

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the associates (and not the Group's
share of those amounts) adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the associates.
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11 H—REZATHERE — KEH 11 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE — GROUP

BE+t-HA=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—B-mE  —F-=F
2014 2013
AR¥T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—H—H At 1 January 369,186 340,177
FEAE & (FE5E27) Share of profit (Note 27) 28,354 30,383
SN = [ A R R TN E Movement of elimination of unrealised
R B IR ) profits for sales to Nanpu from the Group 3,217 (1,374)
R+=—HA=+—H At 31 December 400,757 369,186
RZE—NF+-HA=+—H ~xEEHE The joint venture of the Group as at 31 December 2014, which
/N Eﬁ]&éﬁ’j%i m ik B iR EREA is unlisted and equity method is used to account for, are set
S U out as follows:
BB TR B X
EREE Place of business/ FRERERERE %
Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest
—E-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
[E2):} B
Nanpu China 51% 51%

REBFBENABERRZAR  BRNEFEER

REENRORERE e BERMAK - 1
BE_T-—MNFE+-_A=t+—H HH3%
EEZHARARE(CT—=F 7TR2EFT
R3BHAANRRRE) - FrA B R RAEER
MG REERRBRB=ZDZ A LENE
EHE - AMAKBEEEMA 2T KE S
FEH

AEBEHGERNRZFENERIL EAK LK
RAME-

Under articles of association of Nanpu, the Board of Nanpu is
the highest authority and decision-making body, which was
composed of 8 directors, of which 3 directors were appointed
by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
3 of 7 directors were appointed by the Company). All strategic
financial and operation decision relating to the activities of
Nanpu require the approvals of two thirds or more of the
directors and the Group shared control of Nanpu with other
joint venture party.

There are no commitments and contingent liabilities related to
the Group's interest in the joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

11 H—REEATIMWERE — &A£E 11. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE — GROUP

(%) (Continued)

RERARNRBENBER Summarised financial information for joint
venture

FRRREMBEERNT - BEREAIR - Set out below are the summarised financial information for

Nanpu which are accounted for using the equity method.

EEEBREE Summarised balance sheet
R+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—g-mE  —T—=
2014 2013
AR¥ TR ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
TE Current
ReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 111,552 160,818
HEi e EE (TeERE) Other current assets (excluding cash) 5,179,902 4,449,498
REEEHATE Total current assets 5,291,454 4,610,316
SR BE (TBIEEMERR) Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) (2,128,000) (2,136,000)
HitmBa & (BREMERI)  Other current liabilities (including
trade payables) (2,527,944) (1,872,436)
REAEAE Total current liabilities (4,655,944) (4,008,436)
JEmENE EEE Non-current Assets 80,639 54,995
FEE Net assets 716,149 656,875
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11 $—REENTHRE — 2~5£EH 11. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE — GROUP
(&) (Continued)
SENRBERBE Summarised statement of comprehensive income
BE+=-A=1+—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E—mEF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥T T ARBTIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
LN Revenue 5,931,288 5,763,785
e R H Depreciation and amortisation (17,936) (9,687)
I Bz Interest income 4,420 3,525
FEFX Interest expense (129,203) (123,733)
BESENRRN Profit from continuing operations 82,046 88,492
FiaFfif X Income tax expense (22,771) (27,540)
BERE W Total comprehensive income 59,275 60,952

N EBERRRERZABNHBEHRERAZT
R B (W I AR BTG R - YR AKE
HEE N R FE RN ERELHAE -

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
financial statements of the joint venture, adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and the
joint venture, and not the Group's share of those amounts.
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HE-T—WNF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

12 REEE S HERIA —XEEH 12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

— GROUP
R+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—F-mE  —T—=
2014 2013
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIBEGEEERERNEE Assets as per consolidated balance sheet
S REWGIA R RN EE Trade and bill receivables (Note 14)
(M$3E14) 1,977,038 1,612,452
H e lsRaa (BsE14) Other receivables (Note 14) 53,807 52,714
SR B 2 (5T 15() Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15(a)) 693,013 1,077,535
HeRIFALZEEY(MEE150)  Restricted cash (Note 15(b)) 468,417 118,287
3,192,275 2,860,988
BEBEGEEERERNARE Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet
B 5 REMAENFIE (M5E20)  Trade and other payables (Note 20) 1,032,337 1,039,984
fa R (fIzE21) Borrowings (Note 21) 1,570,142 1,318,840
2,602,479 2,358,824
RZE—NER T —=F+_H=4— As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, financial assets held by the
B AEBEFMFEREERE R KERGK Group represent loans and receivables, and financial liabilities
I AEEMFEE EAREEKNAAR held by the Group represent the financial liabilities at amortised
HEeRAaE - COSts.
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E-NFEF_A=+—HILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

13

78— F5£H 13 INVENTORIES — GROUP
W+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-mF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥T ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
[EM R K B EE R Raw materials and packaging materials 123,072 167,558
5K oh Work in progress 26,380 18,602
EK Finished goods 558,689 556,498
708,141 742,658
B IR EEE Less: inventory provision (260) (495)
707,881 742,163

BE_ZT-—NF+-_A=+—HILFE " R
REIRER 4 E B8 AR ¥ 235,000 T 7
EBE(ZT—=F#K: AKRK20000
7T YEBRESFSEZHEKRERMN [HEK
ZNI e

HE_ZT-—NF+-_A=+—HIFE &
REIHERET|NEFEXNRNAEARE
4055511000t ( = F — = F: AR ¥
3,850,841,000 7T ) (Mif5E24) °

Inventory provision of RMB235,000 was reversed for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: provision of RMB20,000), in
accordance with management’s assessment, which have been
included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

The cost of inventory recognised as ‘cost of sales’ amounting

to approximately RMB4,055,511,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB3,850,841,000) (Note 24).
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14

164

ESREMERFIE — XEH 14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
W+=—HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—RmFE —F-=
2014 2013
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
B 5 e Y F0E N EURETE (a) Trade and bill receivables (a) 1,982,436 1,613,639
—RERE=F — due from third parties 1,312,834 1,068,518
— FEUREERE 75 (P 5 34(0)() — due from related parties (Note 34(c)(i)) 669,602 545,121
B B S RBGRIERERE Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (5,398) (1,187)
B 5 el hE &k e 2% — J% %8 Trade and bills receivables — net 1,977,038 1,612,452
KRBT ETEN B Prepayment for procurement of inventories 307,855 237,163
IRER Deferred expenses 13,012 14,506
Hofh fE IR R - Other receivables: 54,021 53,023
— FEUREREE T by — Other amounts due from related parties
(B E 34(0)(ii)) (Note 34(c)(ii)) 1,161 1,885
— e — Deposit 9,440 13,018
— HAth — Others 43,420 38,120
B B R UGRIE R E R Less: provision for impairment of
other receivables (214) (309)
53,807 52,714
374,674 304,383
2,351,712 1,916,835

RiE AN RS EERRA LG SERK
FERREE -

HE_Z-NFE+_A=+—HLEFE 'R
BEEEN AEBIERERERT ARE
4,211,0007T( =T — =4F : A R # 670,000
J0) - WEBREELAESEEWERA [1TEFH
Xl

KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables of RMB4,211,000
was accrued for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
provision of RMB670,000), in accordance with management'’s
assessment, which has been included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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14 EERHMEKEIE —&A&BE (%) 14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)

() BEZERWFHEREREE (@) Trade and bill receivables
NEE KNI SEEEES R EST - The majority of the Group's sales are on open account
FERENT—RBAZE=EA - &EE with credit terms ranging from 1 month to 3 months. The
HEHIEH 2 B e W 28 & e bk ZE 4 Y ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables based
BRERDITIAT : on invoice date was as follows:
R+=A=+—H

As at 31 December
—E—mEF —E—=4F

2014 2013

AR%ET T AREEFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

31E B AR Within 3 months 1,851,850 1,532,346
3x61EA 3t0 6 months 99,628 43,575
6& 1218 A 610 12 months 26,572 35,281
121 B LA & Over 12 months 4,386 2,437
1,982,436 1,613,639
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14 EZREMEBWHRE —F&EH (@)

166

(a)

KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

ESRWRERERRE (&)
R-ZE—NWE+—_HA=+—H &5
A A R ¥ 130,586,000 L Y E 5 FE U 7k
HEAH(RZE—=F+=ZA=1+—
B : ARK%81,293,0007T) 48 fE R &
BB AR%S539800T( T —=
F+-A=+—H: AR#¥ 1,187,000
TT) o A E BB EER S EAK
IR ROER  BREPEARRE
B AEBEEmMST THOERIE
R e RN E S0 B 40 R AH A (E SR B RS o
G TEHAED > FE YRR IE FE AT U ) o #E
EREWRBEEBHERRE ZEE
SEWRFIERRR DT

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)
(@) Trade and bill receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of
RMB130,586,000 were past due (31 December 2013:
RMB81,293,000) and the amount of respective provision
for impairment was RMB5,398,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB1,187,000). The impairment is firstly assessed
individually for individual significant or long aged
balances, and then the remaining balances are grouped
for collective assessment according to their ageing and
historical default rates as these customers are of similar
credit risk characteristics. It was assessed that a portion
of the receivables was expected to be recovered. No
trade receivables were past due but not impaired. The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables was as follows:

R+=—HA=+—H

As at 31 December
—E-ImF —E-=F
2014 2013
AR%T T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
#HA 3 H AR Past due within 3 months 99,628 43,575
BmHA3E A = 6 @K Past due in 3 months to 6 months 26,572 35,281
wHEF6ME A LA £ Past due over 6 months 4,386 2,437
130,586 81,293
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14 BEZREMEBWRE —F&EH @)

(a)

45 O A A ()
5 R H At B OB B0 B A T
SEHHE -

14

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — GROUP
AND COMPANY (Continued)
(a) Trade and bill receivables (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables
were denominated in the following currencies:

R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—F-mE  —F=F

2014 2013

AR¥ET T AREEFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR #E RMB 2,343,558 1,901,051
BT HK$ 8,061 6,688
ETT us$ 93 3,524
e GBP - 504
BT EUR - 5,068
2,351,712 1,916,835

R-ZZE—MHWNE+-_A=+—08 4%
A AR 95,727,000 7T B E 5 FE UK
BRREWERE(R-_E——F+= A
=+—H :89,807,0007T) & ANE K
B (FE21@)) °

As at 31 December 2014, trade and bill receivables of
RMB95,727,000 (31 December 2013: RMB89,807,000)
were pledged for borrowings (Note 21(a)).
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15 RERBSEEUUARZIRFIRE

— AEBMRADT
@ RERALEEW

AEENARARE LRSS EFEYH

AREEDA NHIEMEHE ¢

15

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH — GROUP AND COMPANY
(@) Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's
cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

rEE
R+=—A=+—AH
Group
As at 31 December
—E-mF —T—=
2014 2013
AR¥T ARKET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 516,076 709,625
ETT us$ 111,926 728
BT HK$ 63,481 367,182
BroT EUR 1,530 -
693,013 1,077,535
AT
R+=—A=+—H
Company
As at 31 December
—2-mFE  —F=
2014 2013
ARBT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 2,583 61,733
BIT HKS 2,096 194,755
=TT us$ 19 202
4,698 256,690

168 X<EEREZERARAR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited



B R R MY EE
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ZT-—NMG+-_A=+—BLLFE
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15 BERALEEYURTSREGIIEEL 15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

— RAEERAEDQF (E) RESTRICTED CASH — GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)
(b) ZRHEES (b) Restricted cash
AEH
R+=A=+—H
Group

As at 31 December
—ZT—NE —E—=F

2014 2013

AR¥ET T AREFTT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

RITAH ZH RIRKIRFES  Deposit for issue of letter of credit and 243,500 31,497
letter of guarantee

RITERAEBERE S Deposit for bank acceptance notes 122,117 86,790

ZIRHTEBRES Restricted term deposit 52,800 =

HIEPETIR B2 (M3 21@) Deposit for secured borrowing (Note 21(a)) 50,000 —

468,417 118,287
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16 BREARBRAFRE — AKEREQF

170

16 SHARE CAPITAL— GROUP AND COMPANY

EER
ERREY ERREE HESE [RGB
Equivalent
Number of Nominal value nominal value
ordinary  of ordinary  of ordinary Share
shares shares shares Premium
B zE BT AREFT ARETT
Notes HK$ RMB'000 RMB'000
HEIE - Authorised:
RZE—=F—H—H Asat 1 January 2013 3,800,000 380,000
RZE—=FAA+NH Capitalincrease
BRI on 19 August 2013 0] 9,996,200,000 999,620,000
RZZE—=K-Z—MF  Asat31December 2013
+=-A=1+—H and 2014 10,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
B#1T Issued:
R-ZE—=%—f—H As at 1 January 2013 100,000 10,000 8.202 189,534
RZZ—=%RA++H Capitalisation issue
BRMLET on 17 September 2013 (i 1,499,900,000 149,990,000 119,092 (119,092)
RZZ—=%AA++H Issueofordinary shares
BITLER on 17 September 2013 (D} 500,000,000 50,000,000 39,700 1,143,561
RZE—=F+A+AH Issue of ordinary shares
BITEBR on 10 October 2013 (i) 73,612,000 7,361,200 5,834 171,483
RZE—=F+_A Balance at 31 December 2013
=t+—H#&sH 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,385,486
RZE—MF—F—H#&H  Balance at 1January 2014 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,385,486
) Dividends (iv) - - - (122,154)
R-ZE—HmFE+=A Balance at 31 December 2014
=t—B&E# 2,073,612,000 207,361,200 164,634 1,263,332
B Representing:
BEARURE Proposed final dividend (iv) 66,628
Hit Others 1,196,704
RZZ-WE+_A Balance at 31 December 2014
=T —B&& 1,263,332
KIEEE IR AR AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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HEZ

For the year ended 31 December 2014

16 BRARRAMNE — REBREALT

(#)
(i)

(i)

BEARREFERRIANR_T—=
FNATIBEBBNEEARARE A2
7l 2 & TF B 7K §1.380,00058 7T (D A
3,800,000 f% & A% I B.0.178 7T K & 38
A% ) # Hn = 1,000,000,0005 Tt (5 &
10,000,000,000 % & AX TEIE0.10% 7T ) -

EBIMENN9,996,200,000 PR ©

RZE—=FhLA+tH BEARQ
ARRER_ZE—=FEN\ATHIBA
BORARR  FARARKRERR
EHRBEEMESNE RS E
149,990,000% JT( # & N A R &
119,092,000 70) BFRE AR » WIRNEEE
71 B EIAT — B 5 R A SR A 2 5
RARRRREMAOROFEABRS
SRRSO g o
1,499,900,000 I % EI B A BR 71| & &1 2
RIS ©

16 SHARE CAPITAL— GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)

(i)

(if)

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the
Company's board of directors and shareholders on 19
August 2013, the authorised share capital of the
Company increased from HK$380,000 divided into
3,800,000 Shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 Shares of HK$0.10 each by
the creation of an additional 9,996,200,000 Shares.

On 17 September 2013, pursuant to a shareholders’
resolution dated 19 August 2013, conditional on the
share premium account of the Company being credited
as a result of the global offering, the Company capitalised
an amount of HK$149,990,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB119,092,000), standing to the credit of
its share premium account by applying such sum to pay
up in full at par a total of 1,499,900,000 shares for
allotment and issue to the persons whose names were
on the register of members of the Company at the close
of business on the day immediately preceding the listing
date in proportion to their respective shareholdings in
the Company.
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16 BEARBERGHE — FAKEEREAT

(#8)

(il R=ZT—=FnA+LtRH ARAHE
HE2RBEEPRGRIISE LI
500,000,000 % & AR E B 0.1 A TTHY 31 &
AR BAEEFMEREHR
1,575,000,000% 7T( 83 & A B %
1,250,550,0007%) ° AR AIHRMH R E
HREABBMERSFMABR AR ER L

N

m o

RZZE—=F+HA+H ' AQFBEB
1TE B AR E IR B AR 3.15 8 T 34T
73,612,000 % & I TE 1B 0.1 7 JT K9 5T &
AAR - ATISFIE 47 231,878,000 7T (47
A AR % 183,763,000 7T ) °

RNAR LB FIENR EHRXZ%E
#4975 AR #1,360,578,000 7T » £ AN A
A B B 17 IR AN 3 i A K % 45,534,000
7T RASRELE n AR #51,315,044,000
e

i+

BIEFE B S A R)E (2003 F(EFThR)
FEIMERRNNTRABEIZME - 0
ARAREBEEENBEARARERE
RABANBFETHEE - BIF] AR R 88 AR
MREMRRELDIK HEEZT
— =+ _A=1+—HILFERMNHE
- &8A ARS85181,0007T & %
B REEZZE-—NFSA=1+HIE
~EA - 28/ A KE36,973,0007T
MREEREBEEZZE—NF+=A
=T+ —BHIEFEAZNTFARRARMRR °
BHRZEARBAR S MBI N
30 °

172 <EERERARAR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

16 SHARE CAPITAL— GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

(iif)

On 17 September 2013, the Company issued 500,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at HK$3.15 per share
in connection with its global offering and raised gross
proceeds of approximately HK$1,575,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,250,550,000). The Company's
shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the same day.

On 10 October 2013, the Company issued 73,612,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at HK$3.15 per share
by exercising over-allotment option, and raised gross
proceeds of approximately HK$231,878,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB183,763,000).

The listing proceeds to the Company, net off listing
expenses, were approximately RMB1,360,578,000
resulting in the increase in issued share capital of the
Company by RMB45,534,000 and the share premium by
RMB1,315,044,000.

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law
(2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, share premium of the Company is available for
distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency test on
the Company and the provision of the Articles of
Association of the Company. Dividends amounting to
RMB85,181,000 in relation to the profits for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and interim dividends
amounting to RMB36,973,000 in relation to the profits for
the six months ended 30 June 2014 were paid to the
Company’s shareholders during the year ended 31
December 2014. Details of the proposed final dividend
are set out in Note 30.
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17 REEFN — AXKERELQT

17 RETAINED EARNINGS — GROUP AND

COMPANY
REE
BEZ+-A=1+—HLEE
Group
Year ended 31 December
—E-NF —T—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—HA—BREBEF Retained earnings at 1 January 642,039 526,345
FZ A Profit for the year 345,335 286,304
A% B Dividends - (157,000)
L e ek = Appropriation to statutory reserve (31,867) (13,610)
TZA=t—BREEF Retained earnings at 31 December 955,507 642,039
AT

BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE
Company
Year ended 31 December

—ZT—NF —ET—=
2014 2013
AR¥ET AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—HA—BZ&EE Accumulated losses at 1 January (21,569) (4,702)
FEEE Loss for the year (7,507) (16,867)
+—A=+—HZ&:EiE Accumulated losses at 31 December (29,076) (21,569)
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18 Hhf#E — FXEBERE QT 18 OTHER RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY
P |
Group
BRDE
REARH
R al HNERE
Pre-IPO 1]
BERfifE share JEERME()  Currency
Capital award  Statutory translation @t
reserve  scheme reserve (i) reserve Total

ARBTR ARBTE ARBTT ARETR ARETR
RVMBOO0 ~ RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMB'000

RZZE—=%—Hf—H At 1 January 2013 78,804 — 84,177 2,064 165,045
MEREZEE Currency translation differences - - - (11,927) (11927)
BEDLTHE Appropriation to Statutory reserve - - 13610 - 13610
BADHAEERMRMERE  Pre-PO share award scheme

— RARERBOBEE() — value of current employee Services (i) - 1893 - - 1,893
R-ZZE-—=#+-fA=1+—H At 31 December 2013 78,804 1,893 97,787 (9,863) 168,621

RZZ-mF—A—H At 1 January 2014

NEFEZEE Currency translation differences

EBRELTRE Appropriation to statutory reserve

HADARENRIDREE  Pre-IPO share award scheme
—BAREREHERID — value of current employee Services (i

78,804 1,893 97,787 (9,863) 168,621
- - - (1,783) (1,783)
- - 31,867 31,867

- 2,588 -

2,588

R-Z—MF+=-A=1+—H  At31December 2014

78,804 4,481 129,654 (11,646) 201,293

() RETEEERAEESATHAT (i)

RS RRMA - 75D RS A0
IR AR B S A A
R SR EEET RS ERET
T —EEEEE  BEENEE
ST R0 10% B A EE EBEES -
8 4 0 65 85 12 B 45 X R BRAS 9 50%
B AR RIS -

174 XESEEZERAERAT * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the articles
of association of the companies of the Group, before
distributing the net profit of each year, companies of the
Group registered in the PRC are required to set aside
10% of its statutory net profit for the year after offsetting
any prior year's losses as determined under relevant PRC
accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve
fund. When the balance of such reserve reaches 50% of
each company’s share capital, any further appropriation
is optional.
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18

T—NE+_A=1T—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Hitftts — AREREADQT (@)

(i)

REAREA RO EBITE

BRER-_Z—=F/\A - BHRR R
& ARFMITERARESHER
HEAHE o Ut BIR ARG E SR B R RT
FMEMRERE (BRER)ARE
AR R RS EARBE - SRS
ABEERBEHEX - AEHFHR
hHEES  MANEBREAKRENE
HERIENENEHRES -

B E R ARSI BRETSIRE
BRETEAEEITHORDBEE
37,083,334 %  {GAR EIGE1E B BT
BEAS491.79% © It A FAEE & AT REARAE R
—F-=FN\A-RAET-

HRETRERENKRD  ARFAALQT
REBBARSMERAR TR ET
iR REENEFEBHERT DA
RBRARA BEADFHIR=-F
—=FAA+tR " ZE-—mFHIA
++B ZE-—AFAATER =
E-REANRATEERZZE—1LFh
A+t BoRBITEEBRE -

BHE_Z-—NF+_A=+—HIAE
BRI B A TIE

18 OTHER RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)

(i)

Pre-IPO share award scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated on 1 August 2013, the
Company adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to give the employees
(including directors) an opportunity to acquire a personal
stake in our Company and help motivating such
employees to optimize their performance and efficiency,
and also to help retaining the employees whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of our Group.

Total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 37,083,334 shares representing
approximately 1.79% of the enlarged issued share capital
of the Company. The Pre-IPO share options were granted
on 1 August 2013.

For shares granted to the employees, subject to the
meeting of the criteria of the Company being listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the employee being still on service at the
end of each vesting period, the granted shares can be
vested in five tranches on 17 September 2013, 2014,
2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively.

No options had been exercised up to 31 December 2014.
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18

176

Hitf# s — AREREAQT (@)

(i)

KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

DR ER R KRB B (%)
R-T-—mFE+-A=+—0 BX
N ERBRESNEE A RT
BRI -

18

OTHER RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

(ii) Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)
The Pre-IPO share options outstanding as at 31
December 2014 have the following vesting dates and
exercise prices:

TREER (BR)
BT i Bk IR 42

Exercise prices
(per share) Outstanding
%8B 8 Vesting Date HK$ shares
—ET—=FhA+EtH 17 September 2013 1.8 3,708,334
—E-NFEAATER 17 September 2014 1.8 8,312,500
—E-hFENATER 17 September 2015 1.8 9,208,333
—T—R"FNATER 17 September 2016 1.8 10,104,166
—E—t+FNATEHR 17 September 2017 1.8 5,750,001

37,083,334

RZZE—=%/\H—HB BIETAH:
BEERAREERBRESSR L
BhzrAEEBERAR6799.895
T BEBEBYAERGEMERZ
B HERAHE -

HE-_Z-—NE+-_A=+—HI%F
B AEEERARE 2,588,119 7T (F
F£25) AN EES RN ERMAY

The fair value of the shares granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme as at 1 August 2013, the grant
date, was RMB6,799,895, and has been valued by an
independent qualified valuer using Binomial valuation
model.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
recognised an expense of RMB2,588,119 (Note 25) in
relation to the shares awarded by the Company to the
employees.
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18 HfttfRE — AXEKERAXDQF (#) 18 OTHER RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)
(i) "HAREIRGEBTE(E) (i) Pre-IPO share award scheme (Continued)
PO
Company
BADMH
BERRA
NERE KRB
1] Pre-IPO
EXRfEE  Currency share
Capital translation award by
reserve  reserve  scheme Total

ARBTL ARBTT ARMTRL ARETR
RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO

W-E-=F+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2013 572,312 (20,045) 1,893 554,160

HEREZR Currency translation differences - 4997 - 1,997

BRAREERRDREEE Pre-IPO share award scheme - - 2,588 2,588

R-E-mE+-A=+-R At 31 December 2014 572,312 (15,048) 4,481 561,745
19 BUR@EBIWEEZERA — XEE 19 DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT

GRANTS — GROUP

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NF —E—=4F

2014 2013
ARETRT ARETET
RMB’'000 RMB'000

T 478 B D3R R LT Deferred income on government grants
— REE D — Current portion 2,915 2,915
— JEmEIH o — Non-current portion 23,242 25,420
26,157 28,335
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19 BAMBHEZERA —FEE@E) 19

DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT
GRANTS — GROUP (Continued)

BE+-A=1t—BLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-mF —E—=
2014 2013
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Rn—H—H As at 1 January 28,335 30,647
et s Amortisation (2,178) (2,312)
R+=—_A=+—H AS at 31 December 26,157 28,335

ZEMPEERTEETHBAR THBA
e EREAKERERYE - BE&RE
B SR -

178 REEREZERARAR o Tenwow International Holdings Limited

These mainly represent government grants received from
certain municipal governments of the PRC as an
encouragement for the Group’s construction of property, plant
and equipment.
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E-NFEF_A=+—HILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

20

€5 REMEARE — REE

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — GROUP

R+=-—A=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-NF —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥F T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
2 5 REMEFRIE Trade and bills payables

— ERE= — due to third parties 802,159 713,539
— FETRARS 75 (B =E 34(c)(ii) — due to related parties (Note 34(c)(iii) 174,629 127,487
976,788 841,026
ME - MENMREREMNRIE Payables for property, plant and equipment 6,254 25,814
EEHE Rt EF Salary and social welfare payables 9,831 9,630
JETIEER R E A 18 Value-added tax and other taxes payables 101,409 50,507
EETENIE Advance from customers 91,259 62,123
TEREH Accrued expenses 16,682 22,890

JE A< BB 5 Y L i SR IE Other amounts due to related parties
(B &E34(0)v) (Note 34(C)(v)) 1,139 796
B fE T 3RIE Other payables 31,471 27,198
258,045 198,958
1,234,833 1,039,984
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20 B REMPEEIE — AEBE (&) 20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — GROUP
(Continued)

R EHHHMNE S ENSRERENZES The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables based on
BREROITAAT : invoice date was as follows:
R+=-—A=+-—H

As at 31 December
=F-mFE T =F

2014 2013
AR%T ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
218 AR Up to 2 months 910,009 581,886
2@A=E3M@A 2 months to 3 months 30,318 103,509
3MAZE6MEA 3 months to 6 months 28,868 149,340
6EAZ=1EFE 6 months to 1 year 6,620 4,038
156 E Over 1 year 973 2,253
976,788 841,026

REBWE 5 NREMENFIBRREENLT The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables

HIEEEHE : were denominated in the following currencies:
W+=HA=+—H

As at 31 December
—F-mE —F—=F

2014 2013

ARET T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 1,206,431 1,025,082
BT EUR 22,836 11,061
Hh gk Other currencies 5,566 3,841
1,234,833 1,039,984
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21 B — AREBERARQT 21 BORROWINGS — GROUP AND COMPANY
KEE N
R+=A=+-8 R+=A=+-8
Group Company

As at 31 December As at 31 December
—E-NF —T—=-F ZZE-NFE —T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

AR®TR ARBTT AR®TR ARBTT
RMB'000  RMVB'O00 RMB'000  RMB'000

FRE Non-current
REJRITIE X Long-term bank borrowings 46,171 88,100 - =
TRE Current
HISRITE R Short-term bank borrowings 1,473,971 12210940 123,142 -
REIRITE R R B2 D Current portion of long-term bank
borrowings 50,000 19,800 - -
1,523,971 1,230,740 123,142 -
BRAE Total borrowings 1,570,142 1,318,840 123,142 =
Hep: Representing:
— ER — Unsecured 768,171 809,070 - -
— B (@) — Secured (a) 485,080 368,220 - =
—BH#E D) — Guaranteed (o) 316,891 141,550 123,142 -

1,570,142 1,318,840 123,142 =
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21 BR— AEBREAT #H) 21 BORROWINGS — GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)
(a) BEBEZHLITAOT (a) Analyses of secured borrowings are as follows:
rEE
W+=A=+-H
Group

As at 31 December
—E-NE —T—=F

2014 2013
AR%T R ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
EHm - Secured by:
— BFER TR — Buildings and land use rights

(MtzE6 K& 7) (Notes 6 and 7) 317,000 245,000

— B el E Lk EWEY  — Trade and bill receivables (Note 14)
(M45E14) 118,080 123,220
— REE (FHEE15) — Deposit (Note 15) 50,000 =
485,080 368,220
(b) BEREZHITAOT (b) Analyses of the guaranteed borrowings were as follows:

rEE AT
R+=HA=+—H W+=BR=+—H
Group Company
As at 31 December As at 31 December
—E-NF —T-—=F ZE-NF —T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBTRT AREBTT ARETR ARETRT
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
B A TSR Guaranteed by:

— ERE — Letter of credits 123,142 - 123,142 -
— IREK — Letter of guarantee 107,249 - - -
—%H=h — Third parties 86,500 91,550 - -
— BAEA — Related parties - 50,000 - =

316,891 141,550 123,142 =
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21 B — AXKEREDQF (&) 21 BORROWINGS — GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)
(b) BEREFTOITOT : (&) (b) Analyses of the guaranteed borrowings were as follows:
(Continued)
REEEREEENT The Group's borrowings were repayable as follows:
rEH AT
R+=A=+-—H R+=A=+-—H

Group Company

As at 31 December As at 31 December
“E-NE —T—=F —B-NF —T=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTR AR®TE ARWTR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB'000

1FR Within 1 year 1,523,971 1,230,740 123,142 -
1829 Between 1 and 2 years - 88,100 - -
2E54% Between 2 and 5 years 46,171 - - -

1,570,142 1,318,840 123,142

HEEHOMELHERERERDT The weighted average effective interest rates per annum
at the balance sheet date were as follows:

REH b N
R+=HB=+—H R+t=A=+—H
Group Company

As at 31 December As at 31 December
“E-NE —T—=F ZT-NF —T—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013

ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETET
RMB'000  RMB'O00 RMB'000  RMB'000

RITER Bank borrowings 5.80% 6.24% 1.96% =
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HE

—E—NF+-A=t+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

21

184

B — AEERALQE (@) 21
RN EL TEX - R

t&
BEEEKERERES - FFRBDERNTA
BOEEERAREENT

RITERK Bank borrowings

BORROWINGS — GROUP AND COMPANY
(Continued)

The fair values of current borrowings approximate their
carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not
significant. The carrying amounts and fair values of non-current
borrowings as at each balance sheet date are as follows:

rEE
BREE
R+=A=+—H
Group
Carrying amount
As at 31 December
—E-ImF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR%T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

46,171 88,100

RITEX Bank borrowings

AREE
R+=HA=+—H
Fair value
As at 31 December
—E-ImF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR®T ARBTFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

46,118 84,646

FRBEFNAARBEENBRRERE
RASBNEE RRGIRITHISH X R FERK
B HABAAR M S B T ARG -

AEBEWERETMEAAREE-

KIEEE IR AR AR * Tenwow International Holdings Limited

The fair values of non-current borrowings are estimated based
on discounted cash flow using the prevailing market rate of
interest allocated to the Group for financial instrument with
substantively the same terms and characteristics at the
respective balance sheet dates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are all
denominated in RMB.
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HEZ

E-NFEF_A=+—HILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

22

EERBEE — A 5H

22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP

R+=RA=t+—H

As at 31 December
=F-mFE T =F

2014 2013
AR¥F T AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEERIBEE ¢ Deferred tax assets:
— ¥R 1288 AEIRK — Deferred tax asset to be recovered
EREFIE B E within 12 months 15,079 13,475
BELEFIEAE - Deferred tax liability:
— B 12E B EEER — Deferred tax liability to be settled
FEERIEA & after 12 months 25,953 11,871
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22 BHEFIBBEE — XREH (&) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Continued)
RIEFTSTAR B ARSI T The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:

EEFREHREE : Deferred income tax assets:

£8HE

B ERE

Taxloss  Provision FEREN  AREA

carried for Unrealised  Accrued -

forward impairment profit  expenses Total

ARBTL ARBTL ARBTL ARBTL ARETRL
RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0  RMBOOO

R-B-=5-F—-H At 1 January 2013 939 282 6,404 3315 10,940
NEA2EWERNGEA/ (%) Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

statements of comprehensive income (903) 215 868 2,355 2535
RZE-=%+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2013 36 497 1272 5,670 13475
WERI B AR (B 33) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) 2,587 - - - 2,587
NEA2EWEZ NG/ (%)  Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

statements of comprehensive income 113 166 (1,304) 2 (983)
R-B-ME+=-A=+-H At 31 December 2014 2,736 663 5,968 5712 15,079
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22 BEFIBBEE — KREH (&) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Continued)
EEFMEHEE Deferred income tax liabilities:
BEYTE
() PG
RERZA
B
B E BEFEE Withholding

E
REE ANREE tax on
Fair value  Fair value unremitted

>

of of earnings of
intangible  tangible PRC @t
assets assets subsidiaries Total

ARBTL ARBTT ARETR ARETI
RMB000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMBO00  RMB'000

R-B—=F—f— At 1 January 2013 - = 14,481 14,481
RiRE 2 ENER A %Dfﬂéé Charged to the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income - - 4,050 4,050
IR BRI ARINH Payment of withholding tax upon
declaration of dividends - - (6,660) (6,660)
R-EB-=F+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2013 = = 11,871 11,871
HSZ@%MT B A (fizE33) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) 9,466 3,066 - 12,532
WA 2GR AR Charged to the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income - - 5,235 5,235
BRI S TR Payment of withholding tax upon
declaration of dividends - - (3,685) (3,685)
R-E-MNE+=-A=1+—-H At 31 December 2014 9,466 3,066 13,421 25,953
T A8 B8 750 T8 ) 22 P B2 375 38 N 21 8 R At i 1) 2 Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
REBERAT A ETEEERERELNS forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
HEEE © benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

22 BHEFIBBEE — XREH (&) 22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP (Continued)
RZE—=F+_A=1+—HAK=_T—NF The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
+—A=+—H AEEIXERSES R A RMB2,052,000 and RMB753,683 in respect of the tax losses
A R #8,208,000 7T & A R ¥ 4,567,777 TT HY amounting to RMB8,208,000 and RMB4,567,777 as at 31
MIEEEERSED 5 A AR 2,052,000 December 2013 and 31 December 2014. The tax losses
TR AR 753,683 TTHIIRET ST & E © amounting to RMB113,000 (2013: nil) will expire in 2019
HEEENZERIEE B A2 EHE - BRI according to PRC tax law and the remaining tax losses will not
REIRBERE - @ER/ARK 1130007 (= expire according to Hong Kong tax law.

T—=F  B)ANEBBEBKR=Z—NF
FE - R EE B R IRE R BRI AR
A B ER o
RBEZEFTSHRE 22— WFE+_H In accordance with the board resolution, 30% of the net profit
=+— aﬁig@,ﬁﬂﬂ’mo% 15 A FR B K for the year ended 31 December 2014 will be paid outside of
BANE A AtFENEE T —NE+—A Mainland China and accordingly withholding tax of
=+—BIEFEMEHRARES,2350007T ° RMB5,235,000 was provided for the year ended 31 December
2014.
23 HMWA — FHE 23 OTHER INCOME — NET
BE+t-A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-mEF —E—=4F
2014 2013
AR%T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BT Bh (FE) Government grants (Note) 16,340 21,897
1 & Wk Rental income 1,497 1,199
EAh Others 1,632 43
19,469 23,139

i3 RZEHBEIRETERETMBRAS TEOBEEHE
By EREAEE ST KBERAERRAE
B DA R B B AR FE MR N B 8 (PR £ 19) ©

188 XEEEEZERARAR  Tenwow International Holdings Limited

Note: These mainly represented government grants received from certain
municipal governments of the PRC as encouragement for the Group’s
contributions to the development of the local economy and amortisation
of deferred income on government grants (Note 19).



B ISR AR MR

Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-F-MF+-A=+-ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

24

RMEESNRAX 24 EXPENSES BY NATURE
BZE+-—A=1+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December
—E-ImF —E—=F
2014 2013
ARET T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FT R R M 4 B2 4B Raw materials used and changes in
BN BN E R E) inventories of finished goods and
work in progress 4,055,511 3,850,841
BEERAA (HFE25) Employee benefit expenses (Note 25) 195,102 142,928
FER#HER (M6 - 7%8) Depreciation and amortisation charges
(Notes 6, 7 & 8) 53,781 49,952
EEREFEKAE Advertising and promotion costs 80,065 59,098
B Transportation expenses 38,826 28,813
BEIRA A Utility costs 26,894 21,350
SNEE A Outsourcing fee 34,658 29,133
il Listing expenses - 17,024
s HE R Machinery maintenance expenses 18,717 16,500
218 K BT n e Taxes and surcharges 19,361 13,577
KERE Operating leases 13,258 9,759
=iRE Travel expenses 11,155 11,194
HBiFE Entertainment fee 10,456 9,458
WA Office expenses 7,259 6,490
B 5 REAMERFIER Provision for impairment of trade and
FEREEE other receivables and inventory 3,881 861
B Other expenses 15,711 18,168
4,584,635 4,285,146
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HE-T—WNF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

25 EEEAMAX

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

BEt+t=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-NF —T—=
2014 2013
AR®T T AREETFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ITERFS Wages and salaries 163,261 116,290
& RER A Social security costs 29,253 24,745

BRAFZENRM, EEETE]  Pre-IPO share award scheme-value of

— B TARFS(EE (FI5E18) employee services (Note 18) 2,588 1,893
195,102 142,928
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25 EETEAMEEX @ 25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(a) EEM= (@) Directors’ emoluments
BE_T—=F+-_A=+—HI#F The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/
B AEBEN EBNAQARZES payable by the Group for year ended 31 December 2013
HFEET T - are set out as follows:
HRDE
FEARRD
RENEEl
Pre-IPO
e8] share
e b7l Other award @t
BEMA Name of Director Salary Bonus benefits scheme Total

ARBTL ARBTT ARMTRL ARMTR ARMTR
RVBO00  RMBO00  RMBOO0 ~ RMBOO0  RMBOOO

BTES Executive Directors

MEERE() Mr. Lin Jianhua () 449 - 12 - 461
b e Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 481 - 10 85 576
THELE() Mr. Wang Juewei () 401 10 61 85 557
EBEE Mr. Lam Hang Boris 608 - 12 213 833
EEELZT Ms. Au Lai Hang 608 - 12 85 705
FHTES Non-executive Director

B (i) Ms. Chen Shiyou (i) - - - - _
BUFHTES Independent non-executive Directors

HELREE Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong 70 - - = 70
TER%E Mr. Wang Longgen 70 - - _ 70
REERE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren 70 - = - 70

2,757 10 107 468 3,342
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25 EERFAMAXE 25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(@) ZE=Z=EM< (&) (@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
HE-_Z—WNF+_A=+—HItF The remuneration of each director of the Company paid/
B AEBEN/ EBNAQRZES payable by the Group for year ended 31 December 2014
NS P a0 are set out as follows:
BRDE
BEARS
®EE
Pre-IPO
Hit &7 share
e i Other award by
BEfE Name of Director Salary Bonus  henefits  scheme Total

ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARBTR ARBTR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

BTES Executive Directors

MEERE() Mr. Lin Jianhua () 484 - 13 - 497
AL Mr. Yeung Yue Ming 529 - 10 114 653
THELE() Mr. Wang Juewei () 442 - 63 114 619
METE Mr. Lam Hang Boris 655 - 13 285 953
EEELL Ms. Au Lai Hang 655 - 13 114 782
FHTES Non-executive Director

B+ 2 () Ms. Chen Shiyou (i) - - - - -
BIFHTES Independent non-executive Directors

R Mr. Liu Chang-Tzong 236 - - - 936
IRRRE Mr. Wang Longgen 236 - - - 236
REELE Mr. Cheung Yui Kai Warren 236 - - - 236

3,473 - 12 627 4,212
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E-NFEF_A=+—HILEFE

HEZ

For the year ended 31 December 2014

25 EERFMAXZ )

(a)

(b)

EEME (B

() ZEFEEEAEENEBTAEH
% EBRER AR A T
T HREOBEERARFLRE
HORBER - HREZRAY
GEAR RN 25 b YL
B RREREETENDET
DIBER - MW EEDEMDE

(i #HE—_Z-—MWE+_-_F=1+—H
rF=ZE—=F+=ZA=+—HILt
FE - BMEFHINTIENTE
% °

HE_Z—NF+-_A=+—8Bk=
T—=—F+"fA=+—HItEE
EEEEAEERRTAME  EA
REMEREE LN MBAREEREHD
RENERBBMEE UESEENE
R BEWEE RS o

EEmEHMAL
BE_ZT-NE+_A=1t—HL#F
B AEEMHeESHNERALRR
ZEE EHME 29N EXHAE ST
A o

HE-ZT—=F+-A=+—HBK=
T—NE+_A=+—ALLFE " K
EEBMERNRAA TR A LTZAE
MBS « 1EABRE IR NS B 5 N
BAKEENESKIEARBFEE -

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments(Continued)

() These directors received emoluments from both
the Group and the related parties, Nanpu or
Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd., part of
which are in relation to their services to the
Company. No apportionment has been made in
respect of emoluments from related parties as the
directors consider that it is impractical to apportion
the amount between their services to the Company
and their services to the related parties.

(i) No emolument was paid to non-executive Director
for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
directors received emoluments from the Group as
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. No directors waived or
had agreed to waive any emoluments.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group are 5 directors, whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above.

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
individuals as inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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HE-T—WNF+-_A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

26 BAERA — FE 26 FINANCE COSTS — NET

BEt+t=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-NF —T—=
2014 2013
AR®T T AREETFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EURID RN Finance costs
— IRITERHF S — Interest expense on bank borrowings
(FfF5E31) (Note 31) 96,635 91,334
UL A Finance income:
— RITERAF BWA — Interest income on bank deposits (Note 31)
(FI7E31) (18,385) (6,324)
— HM BB A — Other finance income (2,546) (2,547)
(20,931) (8,871)
B SRR AN RE Net finance costs 75,704 82,463
27 EE—REEQTHER 27 SHARE OF PROFIT OF A JOINT VENTURE
BET-H=1+—HIEFE
Year ended 31 December
—2-mE  —T—=
2014 2013
AR¥T ARETIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FEAG A (BFE11) Share of profit (Note 11) 28,354 30,383
HEFERMAEBEITHER  Movement of elimination of unrealised profits
REBREIEEE) for sales from Nanpu to the Group 1,382 76
29,736 30,459
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HE-ZT-—NMG+-_A=+—BLLFE
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28 FrEHMAX 28

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
=F-mFE T =F

2014 2013
ARETRT AREBTET
RMB’000 RMB'000
BNEAFT1S %X Current income tax 110,284 108,036
DR FEEEEHEE Adjustments in respect of prior year's
annual tax filing (2,705) =
BEIEFTSHL (FIFE22) Deferred income tax (Note 22) 6,218 (2,535)
Fri8fiF Income tax expense 113,797 105,501
(i) BASEEFEH (i) cayman Islands profits tax
RAGBAMMENFRERFSER The Company is not subject to any taxation of the
FiIH o Cayman Islands income tax.
(i) KEEEABESNES (i) British Virgin Island profits tax
BRELABHERRHS(EHENER T The subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
Y T M R R B B R AR AL A B under the International Business Companies Acts of the
BARARERABNEEERREEST British Virgin Islands is exempted from payment of the
1510 British Virgin Islands income tax.
(iii) BEFEH (ili) Hong Kong profits tax
BB RGP 5T R B W = 12 Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate
16.5% BT K ET IR B A o of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits.
(iv) PEIREFRBH (iv) PRC Corporate income tax

BEPEREEERER  EFEE
T/ B 37 A B B8 2 R) E A HUE TR i ) -
I %15 T H R R OB % P IS B Y R
XIEBETHAER  FTECEMEH
(TE¥EmRBHRD - REB(PEARLRN
B EEHUE) ([ REMEBE]D -
FTAERANERNCEMBHMER
KL — 5 25% o

The Corporate income tax (“CIT”) is calculated based on
the statutory profit of subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC in accordance with the PRC tax laws and regulations,
after adjustments on certain income and expense items,
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax
purposes. Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law (“the CIT Law"), the CIT is unified at 25% for all type
of entities.
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28

196

REBiEx% (&)

(v) HEFEHNMAEH
IR AT RS R B A RE A
ZRIRBRIRTE - A EER D EARE
PR SZE)F 2 ) A B B S R AR B 4
i 5% B FEN

& BB A s A BB AR TR A B
R & 0 E 885 F5E B /9 0 F 15
BERGFENEWSENOT

28

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(v) PRC withholding income tax

Pursuant to the CIT Law and tax treaty between Mainland
China and Hong Kong, a 5% withholding tax will be levied
on the dividends declared from the Group's subsidiaries
established in the Mainland China to Hong Kong.

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated

entities as follows:

BE+-—A=1t—BLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-mF —T—=
2014 2013
AR¥ T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

R BT 15 55 A g ) Profit before income tax 471,078 402,886
BREBBEZENERR Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable

AR AERFIE to profits in the respective countries 116,470 100,147
R Adjusted by:
RalHmi E ek & Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,020 6,733
R R BB IARGS Tax holiday and preferential tax treatment (610) (751)
AERBELEFSHEER Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset

HIEEE was recognised 2,052 3,078
R KREERIMNEEH Withholding tax on the profits attributable to

FE(G M FBES the investors outside of China Mainland 5,235 4,050
JE(EB S AR R —FKAESAAIR Share of profits of associates and

ER AR ke gl a joint venture, which are not subject to tax (7,665) (7,756)
NI FEERE =R Adjustments in respect of prior year's

annual tax filing (2,705) -

TSR 52 Income tax expenses 113,797 105,501

KEFBFIZAEAR AT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited
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HE-ZT-—NMG+-_A=+—BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

29 SRER
(a) EX

29 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) Basic

BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—F-mE  —T=
2014 2013
NN TR AREMRAA]  Net profit attributable to the equity holders
(ARETFTT) of the Company (RMB’000) 345,335 286,304
BETEBRERER Weighted average number of ordinary shares
B F 8 InREEH g (F %) in issue for basic earnings
per share (thousands) 2,073,612 1,661,945
EREARRF(ARESD) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 17 17

BRERBMIIRARBESTEA
REAMNRABE _T—NFR_-F
— =+ A=+ -BLFEE®ET
BEBR I EEE -

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net
profit attributable to the Company’s equity holders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

20144 %% o AnnualReport2014 197



B ISR AR M A

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

29

198

BRER (&)
(b) #F

29 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

BE+-A=1t—BLEE
Year ended 31 December

=F-mE  —F-=
2014 2013
AR%T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RNATIRERTEA AE(AA]  Net profits attributable to the equity holders
(AREETFTT) of the Company (RMB'000) 345,335 286,304
BETEEREREKRETNE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
niETFHE (FR) in issue for basic earnings per share
(thousands) 2,073,612 1,661,945
R I A (T %) Adjusted for share options (thousands) 13,662 7,162
BT MR EREE RN A Weighted average number of ordinary shares
MRS E(FI%) for diluted earnings per share (thousands) 2,087,274 1,669,107
FREBEF(ARED) Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 17 17

FREERMNBRRAA T EENE

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the

TERWHERE  BEEBETEER weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
RINHE R BT E - AR A A #55 to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
B VETE AR F HARE AR A o B HARE - shares. The Company’s dilutive potential ordinary shares
RIBARITE BN RE RN T comprised share options. For the share options, a
BE BERALEBE(EBEERAAR calculation is done to determine the number of shares
RHrFEEEETE) 7B ARRDE that could have been acquired at fair value (determined
BN EAXGFENROEE @ & as the average annual market share price of the
RFAEITEMED H/THRMDE R company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
YEH LR - subscription rights attached to outstanding share options.

The number of shares calculated as above is compared
with the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options.
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30

e
RZE—NFEFLANOBREAEARE
12215400 ( — T — = F: AR &

257,283,0007T) * BIEEHE—T—=F+=
A=+—HBILEFERE ARKS5181,000
T RZZE—FENA =+ B 178 A
BRI AR 36,973,0007C c N —ZE—H4F
AAT+NARTHRFEFAS EHERIK
BHEZT—NE+-A=+—HIFER
HR B AEAR4.06 51 - & 84,189,000 7%
T (HHE R AR 66,628,0007T) ° A8 153K
FUWARBMZARRE - BHEZZT—OF
TZA=T—HIEFEEZEREER634E
(=T —=4 : 5.2%l) -

30 DIVIDENDS

The dividends paid in 2014 were RMB122,154,000 (2013:
RMB257,283,000), including RMB85,181,000 in relation to the
profits for the year ended 31 December 2013 and interim
dividends amounting to RMB36,973,000 in relation to the profits
for the six months ended 30 June 2014. A final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2014 of HK$4.06 cents
per share, amounting to a total dividend of HK$84,189,000
(equivalent to RMB66,628,000), is to be proposed at the
company’'s AGM on 18 May 2015. These financial statements
do not reflect this final dividend payable. Total proposed
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 is HK$6.34
cents per share (2013: HK$5.2 cents).

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NE —T =4

2014 2013
AR¥ET T ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
R EARR B E AR A% 2.2878 1l Interim dividend paid of HK$2.28 cents
(ZZ2—=%F : ®)([[z£17) (2013: nil) per ordinary share (Note 17) 36,973 -
FERHR B BT EAL406  Proposed final dividend of HK$4.06 cents
B (= —=4F : 5.278l) (2013: HK$5.2 cents) per ordinary share 66,628 85,891
EHRTDRM FIEARAR R A S Dividend to Controlling Shareholder
before listing - 157,000
103,601 242,891

R-Z— =R T NERSM RN
R 8 S BEERBEEA TGRS
5K -

The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and proposed
during 2013 and 2014 have been disclosed in the consolidated
income statement in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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31

200

RETHEENRS 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BE+-HA=1t—BLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-—NEF —T—=
2014 2013
AR%T R ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
R P15 T Al A Profit before income tax 471,078 402,886
KRR Adjustments for:
— & (Kizk6) — Depreciation (Note 6) 51,495 48,024
— BH (37 &% 8) — Amortisation (Notes 7 and 8) 2,286 1,928
—HEYE  BEK — Losses on disposal of property,
BN EE plant and equipment 288 50
— FLR WA (B 26) — Interest income (Note 26) (18,385) (6,324)
— A EFZ (MFE26) — Interest expense (Note 26) 96,635 91,334
— B E AR R — Share of profit of associates and
—KE &R AHE A ajoint venture (28,868) (30,948)
— FEURERIB R F SR E B — Provision for impairment of receivables
(P 5E24) and inventory (Note 24) 3,881 861
LIEESED Change in working capital:
— FERLEm) — Decrease/(increase) in inventories 65,610 (119,192)
— B 5 R Hth E U =T 0 — Increase in trade and other receivables (396,209) (494,844)
— B S NEMENFIE — Increase/(decrease) in trade and
a0 Omd>) other payables 153,936 (156,942)
ESEEIIE SR A (GR) F5  Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 401,747 (263,167)
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31 REFBEENRES(H) 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (Continued)
REERETRERN LEDE - HEKE In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from
HBARSRIBREE disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise:

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
=F-mFE T =F

2014 2013
AR¥T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR SHE (M52 6) Net book amount (Note 6) 1,208 276
HEYE  WERRERNEE  Losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (288) (50)
HEME  WENMBERSE  Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 920 226
32 & 32 COMMITMENTS
(@) BEAXREE (@) capital commitments
REFHZAEFTHNERKREENER Capital expenditure contracted for at each balance sheet
AT : date but not yet incurred is as follows:
R+=A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-ImF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥T ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
TH PRI - W Land use right, property,
= K 3R plant and equipment 374,685 55,639
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

32 &G (8) 32
(b) EEREHA® — AEENERF

AEEA
AEERBETAIHEEEHEHEE R
FoREZETARHELLEHE
SEARRKERERBARINT ¢

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments — the Group’s
entities as lessee
The Group lease buildings under non-cancellable lease
agreements. The Group's future aggregate minimum
lease payments under these non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

BEt+t=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NF =4

2014 2013

AR%T T ARBTT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

@1 F No later than 1 year 7.117 5,948
1FAEETBASFE Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 8,898 8,775
16,015 14,723
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33 EBaHt
(@ =R

R=F-ME+A=+—8 AEH
PA A R #5 80,000,000 7T Y2 i — R R A
BRKEERALY RO BB -

REBE BB G MEERAER
KXTIBHIER R BEABRBHRER
FERBEKSN - WBEEMNARE
17,121,000 T B E 2R G BN EE
MED KA O BATTE AR UE -
RO BB AT R ETSHL o

WEEEEBREF ABE-_S—NOF
TZ AT RALEFERFRAKERF
MITBAL KRB AENE=ZT
—mFE+ZA=+—HRH &P R
ABASBERKAMEBESHIHAR
#& 24,171,000 7T &2 A R # 753,000 7T,

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
(a) Jinshaquan

On 31 October 2014, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Jinshaquan, a natural mineral water
production company for RVB80,000,000.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to
increase its presence in natural mineral water market. It
also expects to reduce costs through economies of scale.
The goodwill of RMB17,121,000 arising from the
acquisition is attributable to economies of scale expected
from combining the operations of the Group and
Jinshaquan. None of the goodwill recognised is expected
to be deductible for income tax purposes.

Acquisition-related costs have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Jinshaquan contributed revenue and loss of
approximately RMB24,171,000 and RMB753,000 to the
Group for the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2014.
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33 EBEH @ 33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(@) &PRE) (@) Jinshaquan (Continued)
TREBERESDEIMNEE UK The following table summarises the consideration paid
TEEAHEANEENAEBEDN for Jinshaquan, the fair value of assets acquired and
RNABE - liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

HWE : Consideration:
AR®B T
R=Z—NFE+A=+—H At 31 October 2014 RMB’000
HWEHE—He Total consideration — Cash 80,000
ARANRBEENEEEENER Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
E¢C] acquired and liabilities assumed
ARET
R=Z-NOE+A=+—H At 31 October 2014 RMB'000
ReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1
- f5E AR AE (B EE7) Land use rights (Note 7) 8,845
M - BB KRR (et 6) Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 37,844
iR AEEEE)(KFEs) Trademarks (included in intangible assets) (Note 8) 1,880
R RE (3 A& E ) (M3E8)  Mining licenses (included in intangible assets)
(Note 8) 33,320
RIER IR & 2 (M5E22) Deferred tax assets (Note 22) 2,436
B 5 N H th FE Y IE Trade and other receivables 36,040
B 5 M HE R FRIA Trade and other payables (44,955)
EER T8 B & (fisE22) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 22) (12,532)
ARAFEELE Total identifiable net assets 62,879
2 (FEE8) Goodwill (Note 8) 17,121
80,000
EARN-_FT-OF+A=1T—HH® The fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
AHRNBREEENRESBENAR assumed of Jinshaquan as at 31 October 2014 were
BEEERESCREB I GEMMLEZS estimated by the Board through a valuation conducted
WENEEMBER -2 —HNF+ A by an independent valuer in respect of these acquired
=+—HAHEMETHMHE - assets and liabilities as at 31 October 2014.
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BE_ZTNFE+_A=1+—HItFHE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

33 XBE/H®E

(b) FMESEHEPRARATR ([ BRE

B )

RZZB-—NFLA=+—0 &x&HE
429,242,000 TL(HH F N AR
23,029,000) WE—RBEBEESH D
7] M BB 57 B 2 B AR o

AR EE R E NS TS
UREE SRR EAE -

WERREREFTABE-_ZT—NF
TZA=+—RULEFEHFalERTD
MITBRAS tEBRENE —F
—NEFE+-_A=t—HBKH BHEK
B RAEERERKRAFEED I
A K #5,950,0007T & A E # 715,000
5T o

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
(b) Nanpu Fine Wine & Spirits International

Company Limited (“Nanpu Fine
Wine&Spirits”)

On 31 July 2014, the Group acquired 100% of the share
capital of Nanpu Fine Wine&Spirits, a wine trading
company for HK$29,242,000 (equivalent to
RMB23,029,000).

As a result of the acquisition, the Group is expected to
increase its species of wine and its presence in Hong
Kong wine market.

Acquisition-related costs have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2014. Nanpu Fine Wine & Spirits contributed revenue and
loss of approximately RMB5,950,000 and RMB715,000 to
the Group for the period from the acquisition date to 31
December 2014.

201443% o AnnualReport2014 205



B ISR AR M A

Notes to the Financial Statements
HE—T-ME+-A=t+—BLEE
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33 XBEHE
(b) FREBEHEMRERAR (EHE
B 1) (&)

(b)

TREEERBES X R HE -
AREBEARBANEENAER
BEORAREE-

E/EN
NI

HE:

R=-Z-mOEtA=+—H At 31 July 2014

BHE—RE

Total consideration — Cash

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Nanpu Fine Wine & Spirits International
Company Limited (“Nanpu Fine
Wine&sSpirits™) (Continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for Nanpu Fine Wine & Spirits, the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

Consideration:

ARMBT T
RMB’000

23,030

IHRZNUBEENAREEBENER

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets

2aE acquired and liabilities assumed

ARBT T

R-ZE-NEtLtA=+—H At 31 July 2014 RMB’000
ReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 883
M - BB Kk (FeE6) Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 704
FE Inventories 31,093
RIERRIEE B (5 22) Deferred tax assets (Note 22) 151
B 5 & E A EUEIR Trade and other receivables 3,943
B 5 REMERNFIE Trade and other payables (13,340)
SRR FEERRE Total identifiable net assets 23,434
aBlE Negative goodwill (404)
23,030

MREEIN _E-HOFEA=1—
B &Rl A R B WS B E AR B E R
ANRBEREFEREBILGEMM
ZEWBNEEMBBEN T —MF
tA=1— B8 EMRETHI

st
= o
Ft
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HE

—E-NF+-A=t+—HItFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

34 BBAERE

W—HARNEELEEEN S -7 - £F
2B — D REELF R EERRE S —
J?EEMDEK%; RIS WA R A P

o YNEETT & HK[RWEHI - TMRAR & FERR -

BABESBEREN  UTREE-FT—=
FR-F-MNF+-_A=+—HLEFEAE
I L H BRI — ﬁx%i‘“ﬂ&qﬂ?ﬁ TEX
RGUBE - WER-ZFE—=FK-_F—N
F+-A=+— Hfﬁﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁim?uﬁ%

(@) MERE@ABLHER
(i) EBRERR
MEERLE

(i) MEEXENBEFRFL
BEDLL M ke RNES
#+

(iiiy) TEEEAE
FTHEEBELAE

(iv) Z"EENHEQT
R - EEEEN

V) EEMNAEAR
Gl

(vi) EREERR AR SRIZ
EBREARERAQT]
MR (BB)REARAR

(vii) EBMEBRELENE FEH
EERXERMERAR

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party, has joint control
over the party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operation decisions. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the following is a
summary of the significant transactions carried out between
the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course of
business during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014,
and balances arising from related party transactions as at 31
December 2013 and 2014.

(@) Name and relationship with related parties
(i) Controlling Shareholder
Mr. Lin Jianhua

(ii) wife and children of Mr. Lin Jianhua
Ms. Yan Yuzheng, Mr. Lin Qi, Ms. Lin Liping
(iii) Key management personnel

Mr. Wang Juewei

(iv) Associates of the Group
Putian Rural, Shanghai Daoxiang Cun

(v) Joint venture of the Group
Nanpu

(vi) Controlled by the Controlling Shareholder
Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse Co., Ltd.

Nan Pu (Hong Kong) Investments Limited

(vii) Controlled by the wife of Mr. Lin Jianhua
Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd.
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34 BBMARS (@) 34

(b) THIXR5Z BB ET

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) The following transactions were carried out
with related parties:

() HEBRRRESE (i) Sales of goods and services
BE+=-A=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-NF —T—=F
2014 2013
AR%T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
$HE 7 Sales of goods:
— FR — Nanpu 1,378,799 1,393,631
— B8R BERMAER AT — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. 260 353
1,379,059 1,393,984
RIEE RS Provision of warehousing services
— A — Nanpu 1,733 508
— BEXBEERBAMR AT — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. 120 279
1,853 787
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34 BHMARSZ (@) 34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) TIRZHBEESET : (B) (b) The following transactions were carried out
with related parties: (Continued)
(i) BEF@RRE (ii) Purchases of goods and services

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
=F-mFE T =F

2014 2013
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEMm Purchase of goods
— A — Nanpu 789,811 683,069
— EBXHRMAR AT  — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd. 59,556 41,376
— E8EEN — Daoxiang Cun - 8
— B RER/KERAT  — Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse
Co., Ltd. 434 _
849,801 724,453
BEX R R ERRE Receipts of warehousing and
logistics services:
— MEELA — Mr. Lin Jianhua 720 720
— bBREAMABMR AT — Shanghai Tiansheng Warehouse
Co., Ltd. 539 602
1,259 1,322
LR EREBITGETHNREERS TS The above sale and purchase transactions with
BENT ERRENERE related parties are carried out based on mutually
7 agreed prices between respective parties.
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34 BBERE ()

(b) TFIIRZHEABSET : (8)

(i) ERBEBTNEEXRZ

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) The following transactions were carried out
with related parties: (Continued)
(iii) Treasury transactions with related parties

BEt+t=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December
=F-mE T =F

2014 2013
AR®T T AREETFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

BT LBREERF Loans to Shanghai Tiansheng

ERARMNER : Warehouse Co., Ltd.:

Rn—H—H At 1 January - 7,951
el Collection - (7,951)
R+=-—A=+—~8 At 31 December - -

BEt+t=-A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-NF —T—=
2014 2013
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

WEMWFEESHERR :  Borrowings from Putian Rural:

Rn—A—H8 At 1 January - 14,710
B Repayment - (14,710)
Rnt+—A=+—8 At 31 December - -
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HEZ

34

BEHARS (&) 34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) FAHET &EeR (c) Balances with related parties
R+=—HA=+-—H
As at 31 December
—E-NEF —T—=
2014 2013
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
iy EZEUERIE: (i)  Trade receivables:
— A — Nanpu 610,588 545,121
— FBRXBERM — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd.
BRAFA 59,014 =
669,602 545,121
@iy EAbmEUERIE (i)  Other receivables:
— B — Nanpu 1,161 1,885
(iiy EHFEMFA : (iiiy  Trade payables:
— A — Nanpu 174,521 125,665
— LBEEN — Shanghai Daoxiang Cun 108 10
— EBXBERM — Shanghai Tianpu Food Co., Ltd.
BRAH - 1,812
174,629 127,487
(v) HibFEREEFZIE - (V) Other payables to related parties:
— EH — Nanpu 1,139 796

H fth & UK B Bt U7 SRR & B 45 B AR RE B
TRHEEE - M EMERE S HIEE

EREH T RAREXNHFAX -

Other receivables from related parties mainly
represented rental fees due from the related parties.
Other payables to related parties mainly represented the
expenses paid by the related parties on behalf of the
Group.
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34

35

212

BEL RS (1)
(d) HEBSEROER

34 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) Borrowings guaranteed by related parties

BEZ LT  HAaEER Ms. Yan Yuzhen, Mr. Lin Qi and Ms. Lin Liping

MEFL L

R+=HA=+—H
As at 31 December
—E2-—OFE —T—=
2014 2013
AR%T R ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
- 50,000

(e) EEEEASHM
TREEASBRES(BMITRIEAT)
BREEE - MEBERBE RE
NEEEEABNFHFMIIRAT

(e) Key management compensation
Key management includes Directors (executive and non-
executive) and senior management. The compensation
paid or payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

R+=A=+—A~
As at 31 December
—E-mF —E-=F
2014 2013
AR®T AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
T& RAEMEEEF Salaries and other employee benefits 3,817 3,567

HREE
R-E-—=FR-_FT-—OF+-_A=+—
B AERDESEMIREFEDHIR/ARE
1,348,0007T &2 A R #1,229,000 L8y & F +
HE MR - NEB R B FE LT L E
REESAREETEEL  MARZEETHSE
AR DA SEMETE - MABNGE PR
RAEL B -

35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013 and 2014, the Group is still in the
process of renewing certificates for certain land use rights with
net book value amounting to RMB1,348,000 and RMB1,229,000
respectively. The Group might incur certain obligations in
connection with such application of land use right certificates,
while since the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability, no provision was made in the
consolidated financial statements.
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36 TENBLARMNFE 36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
RZE—=FR T NF+_A=+— Particulars of the principal subsidiaries comprising the Group
B AKBEETEZEMBRFFBOT - as at 31 December 2013 and 2014 are as follows:

FEERERE
Effective interests
BAERES held %
MR (Fx) =A% =¥-=F
EEYEE] Registered T—A=t—H +t=A=+-8
ATER Country/Place capital/ 31 December 31 December FEXWK
Company hame of incorporation paid up (‘000) 2014 2013 Principal activities
BEEES:

Directly Owned:

FEARAA RBERES = 100 100 HEERBARESREER
Praise Sheen Limited BVI Investment holding in BVI
BEES

Indirectly Owned:

BEREHEERERAR B 68,0007 7T 100 100 DHBMESRBUARKE
Nan Pu International Limited HK HK$68,000 Distribution of food and

(Hong Kong Company) beverages and Investment
EERERM(SE)BRARF FE 990,000 7T 100 100 fERERER S R MEHRR
Shanghai Tenwow Foods (Group) Co., Ltd.  PRC HK$990,000 Manufacturing and distribution

of food and beverages in PRC

HER EREMBARRAR H AR 25,0007 66.65 66.65 TERBELE RS A S EAUR
Shanghai Dingshang Packing Material PRC RMB25,000 Manufacturing and distribution
Co., Ltd. of food and beverages in PRC
FERBEMRERA A HE AR 2,0007T 52.5 525 EHEEERDHEMERE
Shanghai Tenwow Paper Products PRC RMB2,000 Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd. distribution of food and

beverages in PRC

R EHEERRAA FE AR#50,0007T 100 100 EFEEERREKE
Shenzhen Nanpu Industrial Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000 Trading of food and

beverages in PRC

RETHBRMAREERF R AR 76,0007T 100 100 HEHFHREERRERE
Wuhan Nanpu Co., Ltd. PRC RMB76,000 Trading of food and

beverages in PRC

EBRERMEERRAA B AR #1,0007T 95 95 FEFREZER D HEmERE
Shanghai Tenwow Food Production PRC RMB1,000 Manufacturing and distribution
Co., Ltd. of food and beverages in PRC
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36 TEMEB LTINS ) 36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FsERERAES T
Effective interests
held %
B#EmER 0
ML (fp) ¥ EE  =%-=F
EEYE 1] Registered T=A=T—H t=A=t-H
ARER Country/Place capital/ 31 December 31 December FEX%
Company hame of incorporation paid up (‘000) 2014 2013 Principal activities
FERRERRARAR HE AR 13,0007T 65.5 655 fEFREIRLER S HEMERE
Shanghai Mornflake Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB13,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC
AE(ARE)RMARADA Al AR#30,0007C 100 100 FEFERERS HR MERE
Tenwow (Inner Mongolia) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB30,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC
RE(BZ)RmARAA e AR ¥ 100,000 70 100 100 A BBGE R 5 $HR m B R
Tenwow (Fujian) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB100,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC
FEERBBEERAR HE AR 12,0007T 51 51 fEPERRERSHRMERE
Shanghai Royal Winery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB12,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC
BRRBEREREAR DA HEl AR¥15,0007C 100 100 FEFERERS HR MERE
Fujian Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd. PRC RMB15,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC
PERBBEBRAR el AR 130,0007T 100 100 7EFEEER mERE
Shanghai Tiansheng Wines and Spirits PRC RMB130,000 Trading of food and
Co., Ltd. beverages in PRC
EEIEAMRRERRR] e AR#1,3507C 75 75 ERBEEER D HR mERE
Shanghai Chuanxiang Flavouring and PRC RMB1,350 Manufacturing and distribution
Food Co., Ltd. of food and beverages in PRC
EBIRRERAR e AR 8007T 75 75 TERBEZERSHR AR
Shanghai Chuanxiang Food Factory PRC RMB800 Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC
FEERBEEERAR Gl AR 10,0007T 100 100 EHRHEEBERRERE
Shanghai Royal Wines and PRC RMB10,000 Trading of food and
Spirits Co., Ltd. beverages in PRC
BRREDRAERDR e AR#5,0007C 100 100 fEAR BR A 7 R i Bk AR T
Fujian Tiansheng Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC RMB5,000 Warehousing and logistics

distribution services in PRC

214 FBREEERAERAT o Tenwow International Holdings Limited



B ISR AR MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_ZTNFE+_A=1+—HItFHE

For the year ended 31 December 2014

36 FEMEBATNFEE @)

DREE
Company hame

ERMRENRELNERRAT
Ningbo Contemporary Trading Co., Ltd.

MMM BEAR AR
Hangzhou Lin's Wines and Spirits
Co., Ltd.

PEERBEERAR
Shanghai Huasheng Wines and
Spirits Co., Ltd.

BHS EOEMEARRR
Putian Dingshang Packing Material
Co., Ltd.

RE(RE)RMAERAT

Tenwow (Wuhan) Food Co., Ltd.

EBREREHRHERAT
Shanghai Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd.

REREZRESREARARF
Wuhan Tenwow Drinks Co., Ltd.

EEMAERMARADA
Tenwow (Chongging) Food Co., Ltd.

EGTEBERAEREELRA
Xiangyang Nanpu Co., Ltd.
R (FK#) RMARAA

Tenwow (Chengdu) Food Co., Ltd.

BRRNEEXARAA
Fujian Tenwow Shiye Co., Ltd.

36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

EHEMmER
AR B 32 (F7t)
ExR 3% Registered
Country/Place capital/
of incorporation paid up (‘000)
HE AR®25,0007C
PRC RMB25,000
3l AR#15,0007C
PRC RMB15,000
H A% 120,000 7T
PRC RMB120,000
HE AR¥5,00070
PRC RMB5,000
3l AE# 220,000 7T
PRC RMB220,000
H AR 33,6007C
PRC RMB33,600
HE AR® 15,0000
PRC RMB15,000
I AR 10,000 7T
PRC RMB10,000
H ARE5007T
PRC RMBS500
H 31,8003 7T
PRC US$31,800
H AR 200,000 7T
PRC RMB200,000

FEBERERa At
Effective interests
held %
—E-mE —E-=F
t=A=t—-A t=A=t+-A
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
100 100
60 60
100 100
72.5 72.5
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
20144 3R

FEER
Principal activities

FEREE B R m ARk
Trading of food and
beverages in PRC

FEREEER M ESE
Trading of food and
beverages in PRC

FEREEE R mEARE
Trading of food and
beverages in PRC

R B E R D R mE R
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

TEFR BB I 5 85 fm AR
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

TR B SRE R D #H B mE R
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

TR B EGE I 7 $H R m EAE
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

TER B BLE R 5 $HR M E AR
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

il

BERmERE
Trading of food and beverages

TEFR BB R 5 85 R f ELAR
Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC

ERBEEERGERH

Trading of food and
beverages in PRC
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36 TEMEB LTINS ) 36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

FsBEREza It
Effective interests
held %
B#EmER 0
ML (Fx)  —¥-BFE  =%¥-Z=F
EEYE 1] Registered T=A=T—H t=A=t-H
ARER Country/Place capital/ 31 December 31 December FEX%
Company hame of incorporation paid up (‘000) 2014 2013 Principal activities
RE (R#E)RMARADH e AR 10,0000 100 100 7EREBLE RS A D EAR
Tenwow (Tianjin) Food Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC
REZSDPRARADA Al AR#91,0007C 100 - ERBRZERSHRMESRE
Changxinxian Jinshaquan Co., Ltd. PRC RMB91,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of food and beverages in PRC
FREERBR AR A A B8 20,0007 7T 100 - EAEAESERMERE
Nanpu Fine Wine&Spirits International HK HK$20,000 Trading of food and
Company Limited beverages in HK
IWARERAEE HER AR Al AR 30,0007 100 - EREZEER S HE M ESRE
Shanxi Tenwow Kanghongda trading PRC RMB30,000 Manufacturing and distribution
Co., Ltd. of food and beverages in PRC
REZRERmBERAR AR BB 10T 100 - EFHAEBRMERK
Tenwow Beverages International HK HK$10 Trading of food and
Company Limited beverages in HK
RERmEE(L8)EHERARF Bl AR 200,000 7T 100 - EHREDHEmERE
Tenwow Food Group (Shanghai) PRC RMB200,000 Distribution of food and
Sales Co., Ltd. beverages in PRC
A A B Sk SR A - DA B The English names of the PRC companies and statutory
FRENPEATFRENAEAEEEEIL auditors referred to above in this Note represent
ZRER BB RERE - management’s best efforts in translating the Chinese names of
those companies as no English names have been registered or
available.
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